
 
 
Meeting Date:    April 1, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Cheryl Brown, Executive Assistant 

Office of the Travis County Judge 
      512-854-9555 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:   Samuel T. Biscoe 
 Travis County Judge 
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:     
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
APPROVE RESOLUTION RECOGNIZING NATIONAL CRIME VICTIMS' RIGHTS WEEK FROM APRIL 6 
THROUGH APRIL 12, 2014 AND HONORING THE STATEWIDE COALITION FOR HOSTING THE 
30TH ANNUAL EVENT IN TRAVIS COUNTY. 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
Please see attached. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 2

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

WHEREAS, The Crime Victims’ Rights Movement in the United 
States is founded on the idea that, FROM the late modern period up 
to 1970, the American justice system strayed too far from its victim-
centric origins.  Since then, the movement has worked to give 
victims a more meaningful role in criminal proceedings, aiming at 
the inclusion of “the individual victim as a legally recognized 
participant with rights, interests, and a voice”; 

WHEREAS, In 1984, the Crime Victims Fund was established by 
the Victims of Crime Act to provide a permanent source of support 
for crime victim services and compensation through fines and 
penalties paid by convicted offenders; 

WHEREAS, The Crime Victim Fund today supports thousands 
of victim assistance programs that provide help and support to 
child victims of violence and sexual abuse, stalking victims, 
survivors of homicide victims, victims of drunk-driving cases, and 
victims of domestic, dating and sexual violence and other crimes; 

WHEREAS, Victims’ Rights are legal rights afforded to victims 
of crimes, which include the right to restitution, the right not to be 
excluded from criminal justice proceedings, and the right to speak 
at criminal justice proceedings; 

WHEREAS, The most important solution to address crime 
victimization in Travis County, our state and our nation is a 
collective understanding of the devastating emotional, physical, 
financial, spiritual and social impact of crime on survivors, and a 
collective commitment to provide support and services to victims in 
need of help; 

WHEREAS, Crime Victims’ Rights Coalition of Texas will observe 
April 6 through 12, 2014 as “Crime Victim’s Right Week”  Texas, 
and will commemorate the 30 - year Anniversary of the passage of 
the Victims of Crime Act in 1984.  This year’s theme is “30 Years: 
Restoring the Balance of Justice”; and 



WHEREAS, It is appropriate that residents of Travis County join 
forces with victim services providers, criminal justice agencies and 
other concerned entities to raise awareness of victims’ rights and 
observe National Crime Victims’ Week. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT WE, THE MEMBERS 
OF THE TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT, DO HEREBY 
PROCLAIM APRIL 6 THROUGH 12, 2014 AS 

                    “CRIME VICTIMS’ RIGHTS WEEK” 

IN TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS AND URGE ALL RESIDENTS OF 
TRAVIS COUNTY TO JOIN US IN COMMENDING THE TEXAS 
CRIME VICTIMS’ RIGHTS COALITION FOR ITS STEADFAST 
COMMITMENT TO ENSURING THAT CRIME VICTIMS ARE 
AFFORDED THE SERVICES AND OPPORTUNITIES THEY SO 
RICHLY DESERVE.  

Signed and entered on this 1st day of April, 2014. 

 

____________________                            
SAMUEL T. BISCOE                           
County Judge 

 

________________________                            _______________________ 
RON DAVIS       BRUCE TODD 
Commissioner, Pct. 1     Commissioner, Pct. 2 

 

________________________                            _______________________ 
GERALD DAUGHTERTY     MARGARET GOMEZ 
Commissioner, Pct. 3        Commissioner, Pct. 4 

 

 

 



 
 
Meeting Date:    April 1, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Cheryl Brown, Executive Assistant 

Office of the Travis County Judge 
      512-854-9555 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:   Samuel T. Biscoe 
 Travis County Judge 
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:     
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
APPROVE PROCLAMATION DECLARING THE MONTH OF APRIL 2014 AS “LIGHT OF HOPE – 
NATIONAL CHILD ABUSE AWARENESS MONTH” IN TRAVIS COUNTY.  
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
Please see attached. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 3

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
WHEREAS,  A society is judged not by how it serves its most powerful 

members, but by how it protects its most vulnerable members. 
Every child has a right to live in good health, learn and grow in 
a safe environment, receive care and protection and develop a 
positive self-image; 

 
WHEREAS,  “Light of Hope” began several years ago as a candlelight 

ceremony commemorating April as National Child Abuse 
Awareness Month.  It continues to be a collaborative effort of 
the Travis County Sheriff’s Office and local service 
organizations that are united by the mission of protecting 
children; 

 
WHEREAS, Surveys have shown that although a majority of Americans 

believe that everyone should play a role in stopping child abuse, 
many people admit to witnessing child abuse and doing nothing 
about it.  The reasons for not reporting abuse include not 
knowing where to call and incorrect assumptions regarding 
what will happen once a report is made to police or a child 
protective services agency; 

 
WHEREAS, In FY 2013, there were 66,398 confirmed victims of child 

abuse/neglect Statewide in Texas.  Of those, 2645 were in 
Travis County.  Five children died due to abuse/neglect and 639 
children entered CPS substitute care in Travis County;    

 
WHEREAS, Child abuse, like any type of violence, does not discriminate.  It 

occurs within every ethnic, religious and socio-economic group.  
Our entire community must increase its awareness of present 
day problems and the resulting impact on children; 

 
WHEREAS, On Thursday, April 10, 2014 from 5:00 to 7:00 PM, the Travis 

County Sheriff’s Office, Texas Department of Family and 
Protective Services along with other community partners will 
hold a Light of Hope celebration at the Carver Library; 

 



WHEREAS,  The theme for this year’s Child Abuse Awareness Month is “Be 
The Light In A Child’s Life”; 

 
WHEREAS,  “Child Abuse Prevention Month” is a perfect opportunity for 

the community to come together with “Light of Hope” and the 
Travis County Sheriff’s Office to promote the prevention of 
child abuse and neglect, increase the understanding of its causes 
and encourage the community to use available resources to 
protect Travis County children;  

 
WHEREAS, Travis County has a model response to child abuse in our 

community.  In conjunction with the Travis County Sheriff 
Office and Child Protective Services, the team includes: Austin 
Police Department, Austin Independent School District Police, 
Center for Child Protection, Dell Children’s Medical Center of 
Texas, Texas Department of Family and Protective Services, 
Travis County District Attorney’s Office, police departments of 
Elgin Jonestown, Lago Vista, Lakeway, Leander, Manor, 
Mustang Ridge and Pflugerville , Pflugerville Independent 
School District, Rollingwood, Sunset Valley, University of 
Texas at Austin and Westlake Hills; and  

 
WHEREAS,  When we provide for our children, we provide for their future 

and our future as well.  Together as a community, we can truly 
make a difference. 

  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT WE, THE MEMBERS OF THE 
TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT, DO HEREBY PROCLAIM 
THE MONTH OF APRIL AS: 
 
“LIGHT OF HOPE - NATIONAL CHILD ABUSE AWARENESS MONTH” 

 
IN TRAVIS COUNTY, AND ENCOURAGE ALL RESIDENTS TO SUPPORT 
“LIGHT OF HOPE” AND THE TRAVIS COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE IN 
THE CRUSADE TO END CHILD ABUSE.   
 
SIGNED AND ENTERED THIS 1ST DAY OF APRIL, 2014. 

 
 

              _____________________ 
              SAMUEL T.  BISCOE 
              COUNTY JUDGE 

 
 
_______________________                                      _____________________ 
RON DAVIS                       BRUCE TODD 
COMMISSIONER, Pct. 1                     COMMISSIONER, Pct. 2 
 
 
_______________________                              _____________________ 
GERALD DAUGHERTY                           MARGARET GOMEZ 
COMMISSIONER, Pct. 3                     COMMISSIONER, Pct. 4  











Item 5



Item 6





















Item 7











Item 8































Item 9











Item 10































Item 11































Item 12





























Item 13











Item 14













































Item 15

































Item 16













Item 17























Item 11Item 18















Item 19



































AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: April 1, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: David Walch 46663; Marvin Brice 49765 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve Modification No. 2 to Contract No. 
4400000434, Harry M. Whittington (D/B/A Travis Properties), for Office 
Space at 205-209 West 9th Street. 
 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  This procurement 
action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by the statutes. 

October 1, 2008, the Commissioners Court approved a lease agreement 
between Harry Whittington (D/B/A Travis Properties) and Travis County 
for space located at 205-209 West 9th Street in Austin, Texas.  The 
Office of Child Representation and office of Parent Representation are 
occupying 6,992 net rentable square feet at this location.   

This Modification No. 2 is an assignment of this contract from Harry M. 
Whittington D/B/A Travis Properties, Tax Id # 465208472 to Harry M. 
Whittington, Travis Properties, Tax Id # 74-1182338.  The agency 
restructured changing their tax entity resulting in the formulation of a 
new agency.  All services will remain the same. 

Amendment No. 1 to this contract extended the lease for a one year 
term from January 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014 at $19.22 per 
rentable square foot of space. 

 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last 12 months $134,386.24.00 has 
been spent against this contract/requirement. 

 
 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount: $122,360.00 (Year 1)   

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 20



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

Contract Type: Lease  
Contract Period: January 1, 2009 to December 31, 2013  

 
 
 

 
 
 



1

Juan Gonzalez

From: Tristan Whitmire

Sent: Tuesday, January 14, 2014 9:19 AM

To: Amy Draper; David Walch; Kapp Schwebke

Cc: Jennifer Proctor romero

Subject: Harry Whittington contract PO 4100030122 needs to be liquidated and re encumbered 

to V# 1000002687

Attachments: WhittingtonW9.pdf

Importance: High

The Vendor changed tax ID#s and so we have to block vendor 1000000948. Please re-encumber to vendor 1000002687 
and email me the new PO so it’s ready to be paid when Amy sends me the payment request.

Thanks!
Tristan





MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT NUMBER: 4400000434 - (H.T.E. PAGE 1 OF 2 PAGES

LA120017DW) Lease
ISSUED BY: PURCHASING OFFICE PURCHASING AGENT ASST: David Walch DATE PREPARED:

P.O. Box 1748 TEL NO: (512) 854-9700 February 20, 2014AUSTIN, TX 78767 FAX NO: (512) 854-9185

ISSUED TO: Harry Whittington MODIFICATION NO.: EXECUTED DATE OF ORIGINAL

Travis Properties 2 CONTRACT:

January 1, 2009P.O. Box 357
Austin, Texas 78767-0357

ORiGINAL CONTRACT TERM DATES: 01/01/2009— 12/31/2013 CURRENT CONTRACT TERM DATES: O1/O1/2014—12-31/2014

FOR TRAVIS COUNTY INTERNAL USE ONLY:

Original Contract Amount: $513.282.72 Current Modified Amount $647,668.96.

DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES:

The current contract will be assigned as it is written on page 2 of this modification and all correspondence and
payments references will be modified to read:

Harry M. Whittington
Travis Properties
P.O. Box 357
Austin, Texas 78767

Except as provided herein, all terms, conditions, and provisions of the document referenced above as heretofore modified, remain unchanged and in full
force and effect.

Note to Vendor:

IXI Complete and execute (sign) your portion of the signature block section below for all copies and return all signed copies to Travis County.

I I DO NOT execute and return to Travis County. Retain for your records. /

DBALEGAL BUSINESS NAME: 14) e
D CORPORATIONB4/Z

U OTHER

BY: 7k1H/ M k
DATE:PRINT NØ4E

TiTLE: /13 /)LfITS DULY AUTHORIZED AGENT

DATE:
TRAVISCUNTYIrS

CYD VRIMES, C.P.M., CPPO, TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS DATE:

BY:__________________________________________________
SAMUEL T. BISCOE, TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE



ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT

The parties to this Assignment of Contract (this “Assignment”) are Harry M. Whittington d/b/a Travis Properties, Tax II) # 465-20-8472 a
corporation duly authorized and operating under the laws of the State of Texas (“Assignor”), and Harry M. Whittington, Travis Properties,
Tax ID # 74-1182338, a corporation duly authorized and operating under the laws of the State of Texas (“Assignee”).

RECITALS:
A, Travis County and Harry M. Whittington dJb/a Travis Properties entered into a written Lease Agreement for the provision of

office space at the 205-209 West 9th Street location, Contract No. 4400000434 (H.T.E. Contract No. LA120017DW) on January
1, 2009, which is hereby incorporated by reference herein for all purposes as if fully copied and set forth herein at length, (the
“Contract”); and

B. Assignor desires by this Assignment to assign all of its right, title and interest in and to the Contract to Assignee subject to the
terms of the Contract and this Assignment.

TERMS: In consideration of the mutual agreements set forth in this Assignment, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. Assignor assigns, transfers and conveys to Assignee all of its right, title and interest in and to the Contract effective as January
28, 2014 (the “Effective Date of Assignment”).

2. Assignee accepts such assignment, and assumes and is bound by and shall perform all terms, conditions, covenants, obligations,
and duties of Assignor under the Contract as of the Effective Date of Assignment.

3. Assignor and Assignee acknowledge that nothing in this Assignment waives or modifies any of the provisions of the Contract.

4. The provisions of this Assignment are binding on and inure to the benefit of the heirs, representatives, successors and assigns of
the parties.

5. This Assignment shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas. Venue for any action arising
hereunder or connected herewith shall lie exclusively in Travis County, Texas.

6. All references in this Assignment to the Contract encompass the original Contract No. 44000000434 (H.T.E Contract No.
LA120017DW).

Harry M. Whittington dlb/a Travis Properties, Harry M. Whittington, Travis Properties
Tax ID #465-20-8472 Tax ID #74-1182338

By: A4./4L 1i1 By: /1%14C_7D

Printed Name: &- M &D A1 +1t Printed Name: . I—S iC 6 vs—

Title & Date: 3 /13M Title & Date: 3 /13 /i
Attest:

________________________________________________

Attest:

_________________________________________________

Date:

__________________________________________

Date:

__________________________________________

By its signature below, Travis County signifies its consent to and approval of this Assignment from Harry M. Whittington d/b!a Travis
Properties.

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS

By:

_________________________

Samuel T. Biscoe
Travis County Judge

Date:

_______________________________

4400000434 Modification 1
Page 2 of 2



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: March 25, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: David Walch, 46663, Marvin Brice 49765 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve Contract No. 4400001580, Maximus Consulting 
Services, Inc., for development of an Indirect Cost Allocation Plan. 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs with 
department and recommends approval of requested action. This procurement action 
meets the compliance requirements as outlined by the statutes. 

Travis County has historically contracted with Maximus to assist Travis County with 
developing an annual indirect cost allocation plan as required under OMB Circular A-
87.  PBO believes it is in the best interest of Travis County to continue to contract 
with Maximus to assist Travis County with developing the capacity to provide these 
services internally.  

Section 5.7 of the contract states: Pursuant to TEX. LOC. GOV’T. CODE ANN. § 
262  et seq., Commissioners Court hereby orders that this Agreement is exempt 
from the requirements of the County Purchasing Act because it is a contract for the 
purchase of personal or professional services.   

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last 12 months $22,660.00 has been spent 
against this contract/requirement. 

 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount:  $20,910.00  
Contract Type:  Professional Services Agreement 
Contract Period:  March 25, 2015 – September 30, 2015 
 

 Funding Information: 
  SAP Shopping Cart #: 
  Funding Account(s):  Fund Center 1100010000, fund 0001, Commitment Item 

511230, General Administration Budget 
  Comments: 

 
 

 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 21

gonzalj
Typewritten Text
REVISED

gonzalj
Typewritten Text

gonzalj
Typewritten Text

gonzalj
Typewritten Text

gonzalj
Typewritten Text

gonzalj
Typewritten Text

gonzalj
Typewritten Text

gonzalj
Typewritten Text

gonzalj
Typewritten Text







1

Juan Gonzalez

From: Alan Miller
Sent: Tuesday, November 19, 2013 7:38 AM
To: David Walch
Cc: Jessica Rio; Travis R Gatlin; Melissa Velasquez
Subject: Travis County Contract For Cost Allocation Consulting
Attachments: WBS - Travis Cnty-mar-2 yr revised_11122013.pdf; Travis County Contract FY 13_2YR_

11122013.pdf

David, 
 
What is attached is a two year proposal with an option for a third year for MAXIMUS to generate the Indirect Cost Plan. 
 
The rate proposed for just the indirect cost plan is $20,910 for all three years.  This is less than the FY 2013 amount. 
 
Let me know if you need anything else.  Thank you very much for your assistance. 
 
 

From: Meredith L Clonch/MAXIMUS [mailto:MeredithLClonch@maximus.com]  
Sent: Tuesday, November 12, 2013 9:49 AM 
To: Alan Miller; Mark A Rewolinski/MAXIMUS 
Cc: Travis R Gatlin 
Subject: RE: Travis County Contract For Cost Allocation Consulting 

 
Hi Alan, 
 
Attached please find our proposed contract and work breakdown schedule for the Cost Allocation Plan.  We have 
included pricing and details to continue serving the County for the next two years, with an option for a third year if the 
County is not ready to bring the work in house.  Please let me know if this will work for the County, if not, let me know 
how we can change it. 
 
Again, we apologize for the delay in getting this to you. 
 
Thanks, 
 
Meredith Clonch, Senior Consultant 
MAXIMUS Consulting 
5628 Green Oaks Blvd, Suite A 
Arlington, TX 76017 
 
Office: (972) 490‐9990 ext. 119 
Cell: (817) 675‐1625  
meredithlclonch@maximus.com 
 
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This e‐mail, including attachments, is for the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and may contain 
confidential and privileged information or otherwise be protected by law. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure or 
distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender, and destroy all copies and the 
original message. 

 
 



2

From: Alan Miller [mailto:Alan.Miller@co.travis.tx.us]  
Sent: Tuesday, November 05, 2013 11:25 AM 
To: Mark A Rewolinski/MAXIMUS 
Cc: Meredith L Clonch/MAXIMUS; Travis R Gatlin 
Subject: RE: Travis County Contract For Cost Allocation Consulting 

 
We would also like a scope of service option to continue the current level of service for the next two years and then 
transfer to Travis County taking over the service. 
 
Thank you. 
 

From: Alan Miller  
Sent: Wednesday, October 16, 2013 10:11 AM 
To: 'Mark A Rewolinski/MAXIMUS' 
Cc: Meredith L Clonch/MAXIMUS (MeredithLClonch@maximus.com) 
Subject: RE: Travis County Contract For Cost Allocation Consulting 

 
What is the status of getting the scope of service? 
 
From: Mark A Rewolinski/MAXIMUS [mailto:markrewolinski@maximus.com]  
Sent: Thursday, August 15, 2013 6:07 PM 
To: Alan Miller 
Subject: Travis County Contract For Cost Allocation Consulting 

 
 
Alan  
 
Sorry for the delay in getting back to you on this. I have attached a two files the first being the current costs as proposed 
by task, the second identifies cost savings should the County provide assistance over the next three years as we 
discussed on our call. The intent would be to phase out our assistance by the year 2015 and have the county assume all 
aspects of the process should you choose to do that.  
 
I have made notes off to the side of the grey shaded areas where we feel you could begin to realize savings immediately 
by assisting us with this years cost plan preparation. In doing this you would also be receiving on-the-job training which 
will be needed for future plan preparation without our assistance. The down side for you in all of this is that you would not 
be saving any money this year should you choose to purchase our cost allocation software and the associated training 
which you will need to run it. Year 2 however (2014) would be the year you start to save significant reimbursement as we 
only assist you with the tasks and direct you in how to attain allowable cost and statistical data from each of the 
departments included in the plan. Under this scenario you also receive unlimited Maxcars software support in order start 
entering the plan yourself. By year 2015 you are virtually on your own and can be totally should you desire since I only 
added a few hours of consultant support for this year.  
 
Let me know if this is the optional cost options you were looking for or if I totally misunderstood what you want. Once I 
hear back from you I can go ahead and edit the contract, send it to my legal department for their execution and out to you 
for the same. Talk to you soon and again I apologize for the delay in getting this out to you, it's been one of those weeks. 
 
Thanks, Mark 
 
(First Year Costs w/100% consultant assistance)  
 
  (Optional Cost structure with County assuming certain project tasks)  

 
Mark A. Rewolinski, Vice President 



AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE 
PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES 

 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this ______ day of________, 20_____ (the “Effective Date”), 
by and between MAXIMUS Consulting Services, Inc. ("Consultant"), and Travis County ("Client").  
In consideration of mutual promises and covenants, the parties agree as follows: 
 
(1) Scope of Services.  Consultant shall perform in a professional manner the Services 

detailed in Exhibit A. 
 
(2)  Term.  This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall remain in effect 

until (a) sixty months thereafter, (b) completion of, and payment in full for, the Services 
specified in Exhibit A, or (c) termination in accordance with Section 4, whichever occurs 
first. Should the Services not be completed at the conclusion of sixty month term, and this 
Agreement has not been terminated pursuant to Section 4, the parties may agree to extend 
the agreement for a specified period of time pursuant to an amendment signed by both 
parties. 

 
(3) Compensation.  Client shall pay Consultant a fee for services rendered as set forth in 

Exhibit B, incorporated herein by reference as if fully set forth as part of this Agreement. 
 
(4) Termination.   
 

a) Termination for Cause.  Upon material breach of the terms of this Agreement, the non-
breaching party shall provide written notice to the breaching party specifying the nature 
of the default.  The breaching party shall have 30 days (or such longer period as the 
parties may mutually agree upon) from the date of receipt to cure any such default prior 
to the effective date of termination. Any notice of default shall be delivered by certified 
mail or overnight courier.  
 

b) Termination for Convenience.  Either party may terminate this Agreement without 
cause upon 60 days prior written notice to the other.  In the event the Agreement is so 
terminated by Client, Client shall reimburse Consultant for all reasonable costs incurred 
by Consultant due to such early termination.  

 
c) Rights Upon Termination.  Upon termination for whatever reason and regardless of the 

nature of the default (if any), Client agrees to pay Consultant in full for all goods and/or 
services provided to Client under this Agreement, or any amendment thereto, as of the 
effective date of termination of the Agreement.   

 
(5) Services and Materials to be Furnished by Client.  Consultant shall provide guidance to 

Client in determining the data required. The Client acknowledges and agrees that 
Consultant shall be entitled to rely upon the accuracy and completeness of the data 
provided by the Client to perform the Services. Client shall provide all such data in a 
timely manner sufficient to allow Consultant to provide the Services. Consultant shall have 
no liability to Client whatsoever if Client provides incomplete or inaccurate data or provides 
data in an untimely manner. 

 
(6) Records and Inspections.  Consultant shall maintain full and accurate records with respect 

to all matters covered under this Agreement for 6 years after the completion of the 
Services.  During such period, Client shall have the right to examine and audit the records 
and to make transcripts therefrom.  Client shall provide 30 days written notice of its intent to 
inspect or audit any such records and shall conduct such inspection or audit only during 
Consultant’s normal business hours and no more than once every six months.  Any 



employee, consultant, subcontractor or agent of Client granted access to such records shall 
execute a non-disclosure agreement prior to being granted such access. 

 
(7) Copyright for Consultant’s Proprietary Software.  To the extent that the Services provided 

by Consultant are generated by Consultant’s proprietary software, nothing contained herein 
is intended nor shall it be construed to require Consultant to provide such software to 
Client.  Client agrees that it has no claims of ownership, including copyright, patents or 
other intellectual property rights to Consultant’s software.  Nothing in this Agreement shall 
be construed to grant Client any rights to Consultant’s materials created prior to the 
execution of this Agreement. All of the deliverables prepared by Consultant for Client 
included in the Services are specifically set out in Exhibit A.  

 
(8) Insurance. Consultant shall maintain appropriate general liability insurance, workers’ 

compensation insurance, automobile insurance, and professional liability insurance. 
 
(9) Indemnification.  To the extent allowed by law, each party (an “Indemnifying Party”) shall 

defend, indemnify and hold harmless the other party (an “Indemnified Party”) from and 
against any and all third-party claims and resulting proven direct damages, liabilities and 
costs (including reasonable attorney fees) to the extent proximately caused by the 
negligent actions or willful misconduct of the Indemnifying Party, its employees or agents.  
The Indemnifying Party shall not be responsible for any damages, liabilities or costs 
resulting from the negligence or willful misconduct of the Indemnified Party, its employees, 
consultants, or agents or any third party. 

 
(10) Limitation of Liability.  Client agrees that Consultant’s total liability to Client for any and all 

damages whatsoever arising out of, or in any way related to, this Agreement from any 
cause, including but not limited to negligence, errors, omissions, strict liability, breach of 
contract or breach of warranty shall not, in the aggregate, exceed the lesser of (a) the 
amount actually paid to Consultant during the contract year in which the claim arose, or (b) 
$150,000. 

 
In no event shall Consultant be liable for indirect, special, incidental, economic, 
consequential or punitive damages, including but not limited to lost revenue, lost profits, 
replacement goods, loss of technology rights or services, loss of data, or interruption or 
loss of use of software or any portion thereof regardless of the legal theory under which 
such damages are sought even if Consultant has been advised of the likelihood of such 
damages, and notwithstanding any failure of essential purpose of any limited remedy. 
 
Any claim by Client against Consultant relating to this Agreement must be made in writing 
and presented to Consultant within one (1) year after the date on which Consultant 
completes performance of the services specified in this Agreement. 

 
(11) Consultant Liability if Audited.  The Client represents that all financial and statistical 

information provided to Consultant by Client, its employees and/or agents is accurate and 
complete to the best of Client’s knowledge.  Consultant shall, upon notice of audit, make 
work papers and other records available to the auditors.  Consultant’s sole responsibility 
under an audit shall be to provide reasonable assistance to the Client through the audit and 
to make those changes to the work product as required as a result of the audit.  Consultant 
shall not be liable for any audit disallowances or any missed or lost revenue associated 
with, or related to, the Services, regardless of cause. 

 
(12) Notices.  Any notices, bills, invoices, or reports required by this Agreement shall be 

sufficient if sent by the parties in the United States mail, postage paid, to the address noted 
below: 

 
 



Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 
County Judge 
PO Box 1748 
Austin, TX 78767 
 
 
Mark Rewolinski 
MAXIMUS Consulting Services, Inc. 
5628 Green Oaks Blvd, Suite A 
Arlington, TX 76017 
972-490-9990 
markrewolinski@maximus.com 
 
Such notice shall be deemed delivered 5 days after deposit in the U.S. mailbox. 

 
(13) Changes.  The terms and scope of Services of this Agreement may be changed only by 

written agreement signed by both parties. 
 
(14) Miscellaneous.   

a. There are no third-party beneficiaries to this Agreement and nothing in this 
Agreement shall be construed to provide any rights or benefits to any third-party. 

b. The parties intend that Consultant, in performing the Services specified in this 
Agreement shall act as an independent contractor and shall have full control of the 
work and the manner in which it is performed.  Consultant and Consultant's 
employees are not to be considered agents or employees of Client for any purpose. 

c. In the event that any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid, illegal or 
unenforceable for any reason, this Agreement will continue in full force and effect 
without said provision, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining 
provisions shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby, and this Agreement 
will be interpreted to reflect the original intent of the parties insofar as possible.    

d. The titles of the sections, subsections, and paragraphs set forth in this Agreement 
are inserted for convenience of reference only and shall be disregarded in construing 
or interpreting any of the provisions of this Agreement. 

e. This Agreement and any additional or supplementary document or documents 
incorporated herein by specific reference contain all the terms and conditions agreed 
upon by the parties hereto, and no other agreements, oral or otherwise, regarding the 
subject matter of this Agreement or any part thereof shall have any validity or bind 
any of the parties hereto. 

f. Neither party shall be liable hereunder by reason of any failure or delay in the 
performance of its obligations hereunder on account of strikes, shortages, riots, 
insurrection, fires, flood, storm, explosions, earthquakes, acts of God, war, 
governmental action, labor conditions, material shortages or any other cause which is 
beyond the reasonable control of such party. 

g. Each individual signing this Agreement certifies that (i) he or she is authorized to sign 
this Agreement on behalf of his or her respective organization, (ii) such organization 
has obtained all necessary approvals to enter into this Agreement, including but not 
limited to the approval of its governing board, and (iii) when executed, this Agreement 
is a valid and enforceable obligation of such organization. 

h.     Waiver by either party of a breach of any provision of this Agreement or the failure by 
either party to exercise any right hereunder will not operate or be construed as a 
waiver of any subsequent breach of that provision or as a waiver of that right. 



 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Client and the Consultant have executed this Agreement as of the 
date first written below. 
 
 
By:         
 (Client Official) 
 
Name:       
 
 
Title:         
 
 
Date:           
 
 
MAXIMUS Consulting Services, Inc. 
 
 
By:         
 
 
Name:       
 
 
Title:         
 
 
Date:         
 



EXHIBIT A 
Scope of Services 

 
 
 
 
Description of Services: 
 
The Consultant shall do, perform, and carry out in a good and professional manner the following 
services: 
 

• Prepare an OMB A-87 acceptable cost allocation plan based on actual costs incurred. 
This plan will identify the various costs incurred by the County to support and administer 
non-general fund programs. 

 
• Under direction of the Consultant, the County shall gather input data.  

 
• Computer processing of the plan prepared. 

 
• Provide the County draft reports; Consultant shall revise the reports based on the 

County’s feedback. 
 

• Assist the County in its negotiation of acceptable rates with federal and state authorities, 
as necessary. 

The final document shall comply with the cost principles established by the Federal Office of 
Management and Budget Rules and Regulations, 2 C.F.R. part 225 (formerly known as OMB A-
87) for state and local governments.  
 
Consultant represents that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all personnel required in the 
performance of Services under this Agreement.  All of the Services required hereunder will be 
performed by Consultant or under its supervision, and all personnel engaged in the work shall be 
fully qualified to perform the services described herein.  . 
 
Consultant shall provide the Services stated in this Exhibit A in a professional and workmanlike 
manner consistent with the typical standards of the industry.  Consultant specifically disclaims all 
other warranties, express or implied, including but not limited to the warranties of merchantability 
and fitness for a particular purpose. 
 
Consultant reserves the right to subcontract for Services hereunder.  Consultant agrees to notify 
Client in writing of any such subcontracts. 
 
  



EXHIBIT B 
Compensation 

 
 
For Services provided as set forth in Exhibit A, Client agrees to pay Consultant compensation in 
the amount of twenty thousand nine hundred and ten dollars, $20,910 (Year 1) for the OMB A-87 
Cost Allocation Plan based on FY 2013 and twenty thousand nine and hundred ten dollars, 
$20,910 (Year 2) for the preparation and delivery of an OMB A-87 Cost Allocation Plan based on 
Fiscal Year 2014.   It is the Client’s intent to enter into a two year agreement for a grand total two 
year not to exceed price of forty one thousand eight hundred and twenty dollars ($41,820). 
 

Fiscal Year 2014  $20,910 (Year 2) 
 
Fiscal Year 2015  $20,910 (OPTIONAL) 

 
Payment of the standard annual fee which shall include reimbursement for expenses incurred 
shall be made in two separate installments:  ninety-five percent (95%) of the standard fee shall be 
due upon delivery of draft plan(s); the remaining five percent (5%) of the standard fee shall be 
due upon delivery of the final plan(s) for each of the Fiscal Years (2013 and 2014).  Invoices shall 
provide detail sufficient to Client’s requirements.  
 
Consultant will render to Client one or more invoices for the fees specified herein, with payment 
due thirty (30) days after the invoice date.   
 
The services and associated compensation covered under this Agreement may be modified 
through a written amendment, approved and executed by both parties.  For additional Services, 
the inclusive hourly rates by resource category are as follows:   
 
Executive Director   $200/hr 
Senior Project Manager   $175/hr 
Project Manager   $150/hr 
Senior Consultant   $125/hr 
Consultant/Analyst   $100/hr 

  
 

  
 



Consultant Hour Summary

Quality 

Assurance

Project 

Manager Total

Total project hours 7.00            151.00      158.00             

Hourly rate 175.00$      125$         

Expenses (Travel/Miscellaneous) 810$         810$                

Total Proposal 1,225$        19,685$    20,910$           
 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Task 1:  Data Request of available financial 
information and departmental organization charts 
for review. 2.00          
Task 2:  Review requested information to set up 
plan

a.  Classify all City departments as direct or 
indirect 1.00          
b.  Develop basic structure of plan 2.00          

Task 3:  Interview administrative departments, 
activities, and costs

3.1. Conduct inerviews with PBO liason and 
other necessary County staff 22.00        
3.2. Determine departmental activities based 
on interviews with staff of administrative 
departments 16.00        
3.3. Review departmental expenditures for 
determination of activity expense and 
allowability 3.00          
3.4 Determine allocation statistics and 
develop allocation base data 12.00        
3.5 Additional data request resulting from 
interviews 4.00          

Task 4:  Prepare cost allocation worksheets for 
each County department, calculating expenses 
in the appropriate year that are allowed under 
the OMB A-87 guidelines and in conformity with 
GAAP applied on a consistent basis 72.00        

Task 5: Prepare departmental indirect cost rates 2.00          
Task 6:  Prepare reports

a.  Prepare draft reports 4.00            4.00          
d.  Edit 1st draft 2.00          
e.  Prepare 2nd draft 2.00          
f.   Edit 2nd draft for finalization 1.00            1.00          

Task 7: Finalize and deliver final Full Cost Plan 4.00           
Task 8: As necessary, negotiate County's 
recoverable cost pursuant to OMB Circular A-87 
guidelines with Federal and State officials 2.00            2.00          

7.00            151.00      

Week



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
AGREEMENT/CONTRACT

BETWEEN

TRAVIS COUNTY

ANI

MAXIMUS CONSULTING SERVICES, INC.

FOR

INDIRECT COST ALLOCATION PLAN

CONTRACT NO. 4400001580

4400001580
Page 1 of 23

r —

Travis County Purchasing Office



4400001580
Page 2 of 23

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.0 Definitions 3
2.0 Term 4
3.0 Contractor’s Responsibilities 4
4.0 County Performance of Services 6
5.0 Compensation 6
6.0 Invoicing and Payment 7
7.0 Records, Confidentiality and Access 8
8.0 Amendments 9
9.0 Other Provisions 9

Approvals 14

Attachments

Attachment A — Scope of Services & Performance Measures 15
Attachment B — Compensation 16
Attachment C — Insurance Requirements 17
Attachment D — Ethics Affidavit including 20

Exhibit 1 - List of Key Contracting Persons 21
Attachment E — Certification regarding Debarment 23



4400001580
Page 3 of 23

STATE OF TEXAS §
§

COUNTY OF TRAVIS §

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
BETWEEN TRAVIS COUNTY AND MAXIMUS
CONSULTING SERVICES, INC.

This Agreement is made and entered into by and between the following parties: Travis County, Texas, (the
“COUNTY”) and MAXIMUS Consulting Services, Inc.., (the “CONTRACTOR”).

WHEREAS, COUNTY desires to obtain the services of a qualified firm to prepare a central service cost
allocation plan, indirect cost rates and other documents annually, for Travis County and;

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR has the professional ability and expertise, and any necessary professional
degrees, licenses, and certifications to provide these services;

NOW, THEREFORE, COUNTY and CONTRACTOR agree as follows:

1.0 DEFINITIONS

In this Agreement,

1.1 “Commissioners Court” means the Travis County Commissioners Court.

1.2 “Purchasing Agent” means Travis County Purchasing Agent Cyd V. Grimes or her successor.

1.3 “County Auditor” means Travis County Auditor Nicki Riley or her successor.

1.4 “Parties” mean Travis County and MAXIMUS Consulting Services, Inc.

1.5 “Is doing business” and “has done business” mean:

1.5.1 paying or receiving in any calendar year any money or valuable thing which is worth
more than $250 in the aggregate in exchange for personal services or for the purchase of any
property or property interest, either real or personal, either legal or equitable; or,

1.5.2 loaning or receiving a loan of money; or goods or otherwise creating or having in
existence any legal obligation or debt with a value of more than $250 in the aggregate in a
calendar year;

1.5.3 but does not include

1.5.3.1 any retail transaction for goods or services sold to a Key Contracting Person at a
posted, published, or marked price available to the public,

•

.• 1.5.3.2 any financial services product sold to a Key Contracting Person for personal,
family or household purposes in accordance with pncing guidelines applicable to
similarly situated individuals with similar risks as determined by Contractor in the
ordinary course of its business; and



4400001580
Page 4 of 23

1.5.3.3 a transaction for a financial service or insurance coverage made on behalf of
Contractor if Contractor is a national or multinational corporation by an agent, employee
or other representative of Contractor who does not know and is not in a position that he or
she should have known about the Contract.

1. 6 “Key Contracting Person” means any person or business listed in Exhibit 1 to the Affidavits
attached to this contract and marked as Attachment D.

1.7 “Project Director” means the County Executive, Planning and Budget Office or her designee.

2.0 TERM

2.1 Initial Term. The Initial Term of this Agreement shall begin upon execution and shall continue
through September 30, 2015, unless sooner terminated as provided herein. The initial term of this
agreement may be extended by mutual agreement in accordance with Section 8.0: Amendments.

2.3 Termination. Either party may terminate this Contract at any time by giving the other party
written notice of such termination at least thirty (30) days before the effective date of the termination.

3.0 CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES

3.1 Scope of Services. CONTRACTOR shall perform, in a timely manner, the services and activities
described in the Scope of Services set forth as Attachment A to this Agreement, which is expressly
incorporated herein and made a part hereof.

3.2 Ethical Standards. CONTRACTOR shall perform all services and exercise all discretionary
powers in a manner consistent with applicable canons of professional ethics and his best professional
judgment.

3.3 Subcontracting. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, CONTRACTOR is
prohibited from hiring or subcontracting with any other person to perform any of the
CONTRACTOR’S obligations under this Agreement.

3.4 Civil Rights/ADA Compliance. CONTRACTOR shall provide all services and activities
pursuant to this Agreement in compliance with the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Public Law 93-1122, Section 504, and with the provisions of the Americans
with Disabilities Act of 1990, Public Law 101-336 {S.933].

3.5 Legal Compliance. CONTRACTOR shall comply with all federal, state, county, and city laws,
rules, regulations and ordinances applicable to the provision of the services described herein and the
performance of all obligations undertaken pursuant to this Agreement.

3.6 Payment of Property Taxes. CONTRACTOR warrants that CONTRACTOR is not currently
delinquent in payment of property taxes to the Travis County Tax Assessor Collector.



4400001580
Page 5 of 23

3.7 Insurance Requirements CONTRACTOR shall comply with the insurance requirements set out in
Attachment C, “Insurance Requirements”, which is incorporated herein by reference and made a part
hereof.

3.8 Federal Funds. CONTRACTOR warrants that no Federal appropriated funds have been paid or
will be paid, by or on behalf of CONTRACTOR, to any person for influencing or attempting to
influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with awarding of any Federal
contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any
cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

3.9 Communications. CONTRACTOR may communicate all requests for direction and factual
information relating to services performed pursuant to this Agreement to the Project Director and may
rely on all factual information supplied by the Project Director in response to these requests. However
Project Director shall not serve as the agent of County or the Commissioners Court or any elected
official of County for any other purpose than conveying factual information.

3.10 CONTRACTOR expressly acknowledges that, in entering into this Agreement, COUNTY has
relied on the representations of CONTRACTOR about the persons who will be performing the services
and their qualifications and that any other person except staff must be approved by COMMISSIONERS
COURT before providing services under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR warrants that all work done
will be done by the employees or members of CONTRACTOR that are presented as performing the
services in CONTRACTOR’S proposal.

3.11 Professional Licensure/Certification. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain all necessary licenses
and certifications related to the Counseling services being provided hereunder. In the event licensure or
certification expires, is revoked, suspended, probated, or is canceled, CONTRACTOR shall inform
COUNTY of such event within five (5) working days.

3.12 Standard of Care. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, CONTRACTOR
shall perform all services and responsibilities required of CONTRACTOR under this Agreement using
at least that standard of care which a reasonably prudent person would use in similar circumstances.
CONTRACTOR warrants the duties within this Agreement shall be performed in a good and
workmanlike manner. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to relieve CONTRACTOR of this
duty.

3.13 Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion from
Participation in Contracts Exceeding $100,000.00. Contractor shall complete and execute the
certification in Attachment E prior to execution and approval of contract by County.

The Contractor certifies, by entenng into this Contract, that neither it nor its principals are
debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from
participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency. The Contractor shall
include this certification requirement in all subcontracts to this contract that exceed $100,000.00.
*Form is provided as Attachment E*



4400001580
Page 6 of 23

3.14 CONTRACTOR certifies that the individual or business entity named in this Agreement is not
ineligible to receive the state funds or specified grant or payment under Section 231.006 of the Texas
Family Code and acknowledges that this Agreement may be terminated and payment withheld if this
certification is inaccurate.

3.15 Financial Reporting. Upon request, CONTRACTOR shall provide COUNTY copies ofprofit and
loss statements, annual financial statements, audit reports, and other financial records and reports that
may be requested by COUNTY in relation to the services provided herein. COUNTY shall have the right
to conduct onsite review of CONTRACTOR’S financial records and source documents.

3.16 Monitoring. COUNTY shall have the right to conduct periodic financial and programmatic
monitoring of CONTRACTOR’s work as it relates to the services provided herein. CONTRACTOR
agrees to cooperate fully with COUNTY’S monitoring activities.

3.17 Upon request, CONTACTOR shall report on the status, progress, and general nature of the work
perfonned to date pursuant to this Agreement.

3.18 Upon reasonable request, CONTRACTOR shall be available to the Commissioners Court, the
Travis County Judge and Commissioners or their representatives for questions with respect to the
services being performed pursuant to this Agreement.

4.0 COUNTY PERFORMANCE OF SERVICES

4.1 COUNTY shall designate a Project Director who will be the person responsible for monitoring
CONTRACTOR’s performance under the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

4.2 COUNTY shall provide CONTRACTOR, at COUNTY’s expense, periodic access to on-site
working space for up to four CONTRACTOR staff members at a time, with a desk or work table, access
to a telephone, and access to an analog telephone line for internet access. Such work space may be in
multiple locations and will not be solely dedicated to CONTACTOR during the contract period.

4.3 COUNTY shall provide CONTRACTOR copies of or access to documents that are necessary for
the successful completion of work required by this Agreement.

5.0 COMPENSATION

5.1 Compensation shall be in the amounts outlined in “Attachment B Compensation”.

5.2 Overpayment. CONTRACTOR shall refund to COUNTY any money which has been paid to
CONTRACTOR by COUNTY, which COUNTY determines has resulted in overpayment to
CONTRACTOR. Such refund shall be made by CONTRACTOR to COUNTY within thirty (30) days
after the refund is requested by COUNTY. If COUNTY enters into any subsequent Agreement with
CONTRACTOR and CONTRACTOR fails to refund any money owed to COUNTY within thirty (30)
days of request, COUNTY may offset the difference against the next advance or payment payable to
CONTRACTOR.



4400001580
Page 7of23

5.3 Taxpayer Identification. CONTRACTOR shall provide COUNTY with an Internal Revenue
Form W-9 Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification that is completed in
compliance with the Internal Revenue Code, its rules and regulations, and a statement of entity status in
a form satisfactory to the County Auditor before any Agreement funds are payable.

5.4 Delinquent Property Taxes. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, if the
CONTRACTOR is delinquent in the payment of property taxes at the time of invoicing, the
CONTRACTOR hereby assigns any payments to be made for services rendered hereunder to the Travis
County Tax Assessor-Collector for the payment of said delinquent taxes.

5.5 Disbursements to Persons with Outstanding Debt.

5.5.1 In accordance with Section 154.045 of the Local Government Code, if notice of
indebtedness has been filed with the County Auditor or County Treasurer evidencing the
indebtedness of CONTRACTOR to the State, the COUNTY or a salary fund, a warrant may not
be drawn on a COUNTY fund in favor of the CONTRACTOR, or an agent or assignee of
CONTRACTOR until:

5.5.1.1 the County Treasurer notifies CONTRACTOR in writing that the debt is
outstanding; and
5.5.1.2 the debt is paid.

5.5.2 “Debt” includes delinquent taxes, fines, fees, and indebtedness arising from written
agreements with the COUNTY.

5.5.3 COUNTY may apply any funds COUNTY owes CONTRACTOR to the outstanding
balance of debt for which notice is made under section 5.9.1.1 above, if the notice includes a
statement that the amount owed by the COUNTY to CONTRACTOR may be applied to reduce
the outstanding debt.

5.6 Period of Services. COUNTY shall not be liable for costs incurred or performances rendered by
CONTRACTOR before or after the term of this Agreement.

5.7 Exemption from County Purchasing Act. Pursuant to TEX. LOC. GOV’T. CODE ANN. § 262
et seq., Commissioners Court hereby orders that this Agreement is exempt from the requirements of the
County Purchasing Act because it is a contract for the purchase of personal or professional services.

5.8 Funding Out. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, if, during budget planning and
adoption, Commissioners Court fails to provide funding for this Contract for the following fiscal year of
COUNTY, COUNTY may terminate this Contract after giving CONTRACTOR 30 calendar days
written notice that this Contract is terminated due to the failure to fund it.

6.0 1NVOICING AND PAYMENT

6.1 CONTRACTOR shall invoice COUNTY within 10 days after the delivery to COUNTY of the
documents for which payment is sought.

6.2 Invoices shall include a description of the services performed and the documents delivered.



4400001580
Page 8 of 23

6.3 Invoices shall be submitted to:

County Executive (or successor)
Travis County Planning and
Budget
P.O. Box
1748
Austin,
Texas
78767

6.4 If services performed and documents delivered comply with the terms and
conditions of this Agreement, COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR within 30 days of
receipt of a complete and correct invoice submitted in accordance with this Section 6.0.

6.5 Accrual and payment of interest on overdue payments shall be governed by
Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code.

7.0 RECORDS CONFIDENTIALITY AND ACCESS

7.1 Confidentiality. CONTRACTOR shall establish a method to secure the confidentiality
of records and other information relating to services provided under this Agreement in
accordance with the applicable federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations, and
applicable professional ethical standards. This provision shall not be construed as limiting
the right of COUNTY access to client information. Upon authorization from COUNTY to
render client files anonymous, CONTRACTOR agrees to mask information identifying
clients in a way that will not obstruct COUNTY’S monitoring and evaluation duties in any
way.

7.2 Records Maintenance. CONTRACTOR shall create, maintain, and retain, and shall
make reasonably available to COUNTY, all necessary and appropriate records, information,
and documentation (including all accounting records) relating to services provided under
the terms of this Agreement for a period of three (3) years after the provision of the
services, or until any litigation concerning any of the services has been satisfactorily
resolved, whichever occurs later. CONTRACTOR shall provide copies of such records to
COUNTY upon written request to CONTRACTOR at a cost mutually agreed to by
COUNTY and CONTRACTOR

7. 3 Access to Records. COUNTY or its duly authorized representatives shall have access
to any and all records, information and documentation of CONTRACTOR, which are
directly pertinent to the services to be performed under this Agreement for the purposes of
making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. CONTRACTOR shall maintain
the records, information, and documentation in a readily available state and location,
reasonably accessible to COUNTY or their authorized representatives.

7.4 Right to Contractual Material. All work products produced under this Agreement
including programming, reports, charts, schedules, or other appended documentation to any
responses, inquiries, correspondence, and related material submitted by CONTRACTOR in
completion of the services provided herein jjjbecome property of the COUNTY.



4400001580
Page 9of23

8.0 AMENDMENTS

8.1 General. Unless specifically provided otherwise in this Agreement, any change to the
terms of this Agreement or any attachments to it shall be in writing and signed by each party.
IT IS ACKNOWLEDGED BY CONTRACTOR THAT NO OFFICER, AGENT,
EMPLOYEE OR REPRESENTATIVE OF COUNTY HAS ANY AUTHORITY TO
CHANGE THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY ATTACHMENTS TO if
UNLESS EXPRESSLY GRANTED THAT AUTHORITY BY COMMISSIONERS COURT.

8.2 Requests for Changes. CONTRACTOR shall submit all requests for changes to the
terms of this Agreement or any attachment to it to the Director with a copy to Purchasing.

8.3 Purchasing Agent Authority. Contractor understands and agrees that the Purchasing
Agent has certain authority to approve an Amendment subject to applicable law (specifically
the County Purchasing Act, TEX. LOC. GOV’T CODE, Chapter 262, and other applicable
law) and County policy, as approved by the Commissioners Court. Within that authority, the
Purchasing Agent may approve Amendment requests under this Contract. The Purchasing
Agent will advise Contractor as to such authority upon submission of a request for
Amendment; at any time, the Purchasing Agent may submit any request to the
Commissioners Court for approval, regardless of the authority of the Purchasing Agent to
sign the Amendment.

9.0 OTHER PROVISIONS:

9.1 INDEMNIFICATION. CONTRACTOR AGREES TO AND SHALL INDEMNIFY
AND HOLD HARMLESS COUNTY, ITS OFFICERS, , AND EMPLOYEES, FROM
AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL THIRD-PARTY CLAIMS, LOSSES, DAMAGES,
NEGLIGENCE, CAUSES OF ACTION, SUITS, AND LIABILITY OF EVERY KIND,
INCLUDING ALL EXPENSES OF LITIGATION COURT COSTS AND REASONABLE
ATTORNEY’S FEES, FOR INJURY TO OR DEATH OF ANY PERSON OR
DAMAGE TO ANY PROPERTY, DIRECTLY CAUSED, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, BY
THENEGLIGENTACT OR OMISSION OF CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR IS
NOT LIABLE FOR THOSE DAMAGES RESULTING FROM THE
NEGLIGENCE, IN WHOLE, OF THE COUNTY’S EMPLOYEES,
AGENTS, OR CONSULTANTS.

9.2 Copyrights, Patents & Licenses. CONTRACTOR represents and warrants that (i) all
applicable copyrights, patents, licenses, and other proprietary or intellectual property rights
which may exist on materials used in this Agreement have been adhered to and (ii) the
COUNTY shall not be liable for any infringement of those rights and any rights granted to
the COUNTY shall apply for the duration of this Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall
indemnify the COUNTY, its officers, agents, and employees from all claims, losses, damages,
causes of action, and liability including expenses of litigation, court costs and
reasonable attorney’s fees for damages a r i s i n g i n c o nfl e c t i o n w it h any
alleged or actual infringements of existing patents, licenses, or
copyrights applicable to materials used in this Agreement and
incurred by COUNTY due to CONTRACTORS breach of applicable patents, copyrights,
licenses, and other proprietary or intellectual property rights which may exist on materials
used in this Agreement.

9.3 Claims Notification. If any claim, or other action, including proceedings
before an administrative agency, is made or brought by any person, firm, corporation, or



4400001580
Page 100f23

other entity against CONTRACTOR or COUNTY in relation to the performance of this
Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall give written notice to COUNTY of the claim or other
action within three (3) working days after being notified of it or the threat of it; the name
and address of the person, firm, corporation or other entity that made or threatened to make
a claim, or that instituted or threatened to institute any type of action or proceeding; the
basis of the claim, action or proceeding; the court or administrative tribunal, if any, where
the claim, action or proceeding was instituted; and the name or names of any person
against whom this claim is being made or threatened. This written notice shall be given in the
manner provided herein. Except as otherwise directed, CONTRACTOR shall furnish to
COUNTY copies of all pertinent papers received by CONTRACTOR with respect to these
claims or actions.

9.4 Suspension. If CONTRACTOR fails to comply with any provision herein,
COUNTY may, upon written notification to CONTRACTOR, suspend this Agreement in
whole or in part and withhold further payments to CONTRACTOR, until CONTRACTOR
is in compliance with the terms of this Agreement or Agreement is terminated as provided
herein.

9.5 Limitation of Liability. COUNTY agrees that CONTRACTOR’S total liability
to COUNTY for any and all damages whatsoever arising out of, or in any way related to, this
Agreement from any cause, including but not limited to negligence, errors, omissions, strict
liability, breach of contract or breach of warranty shall not, in the aggregate, exceed Fifty
Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00). In no event shall CONTRACTOR be liable for indirect,
special, incidental, economic, consequential or punitive damages, including but not limited to
lost revenue, lost profits, replacement goods, loss of technology rights or services, loss of data,
or interruption or loss of use of software or any portion thereof regardless of the legal theory
under which such damages are sought even if CONTRACTOR has been advised of the
likelihood of such damages, and notwithstanding any failure of essential purpose of any
limited remedy.

9.6 Contractor Liability if Audited. The COUNTY represents that all financial and
statistical information provided to CONTRACTOR by COUNTY, its employees and/or agents
is accurate and complete to the best of COUNTY’S knowledge. CONTRACTOR shall, upon
notice of audit, make work papers and other records available to the auditors.
CONTRACTOR’S sole responsibility under an audit shall be to provide reasonable assistance
to the COUNTY through the audit and to make those changes to the work product as required
as a result of the audit. CONTRACTOR shall not be liable for any audit disallowances or any
missed or lost revenue associated with, or related to, the Services, regardless of cause.

9.7 Non-Waiver of Default

9.7.1 No payment, act or omission by COUNTY may constitute or be construed as a waiver
of any breach or default of CONTRACTOR which then exists or may subsequently exist.

9.7.2 All rights of COUNTY under this Agreement are specifically reserved and any
payment, act or omission shall not impair or prejudice any remedy or right to COUNTY
under it. Any right or remedy in this Agreement shall not preclude the exercise of any
other right or remedy under this Agreement or under any law nor shall any action taken in
the exercise of any right or remedy be deemed a waiver of any other rights or remedies.

9.8 Forfeiture of Contract If CONTRACTOR has done business with a Key Contracting
Person during the 365 day period immediately prior to the date of execution of this Agreement or



4400001580
Page 11 of23

does business with any Key Contracting Person at any time after the date of execution of this
Agreement and prior to the full performance of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall forfeit all
benefits of this Agreement and COUNTY shall retain all performance by CONTRACTOR and
recover all considerations, or the value of all consideration, paid to CONTRACTOR pursuant to
this Agreement, provided, however, that this section may be waived by Commissioners Court
pursuant to Section 3(g) of the Travis County Ethics Policy.

9.9 Entire Agreement

9.9.1 Entire Agreement. All written or oral agreements between the parties to this
Agreement related to the subject matter of this Agreement that were made prior to the
execution of this Agreement have been reduced to writing and are contained in this
Agreement or in the policies and procedures approved by Commissioners Court for County.
Any prior agreements, promises, negotiations, or representations not expressly set forth in this
document are ofno force and effect.

9.9.2 Attachments. The attachments enumerated and denominated below are hereby made
a part of this Agreement, and constitute promised performances by CONTRACTOR in
accordance with all the provisions of this Agreement.

9.9.2.1 Attachment A — Scope of Services
9.9.2.2 Attachment B — Compensation
9.9.2.3 Attachment C — Insurance Requirements
9.9.2.4 Attachment D — Ethics Affidavit

including: Exhibit 1 - List of Key
Contracting Persons

9.9.2.5 Attachment E —Certification Regarding
Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and
Voluntary Exclusion for Covered Contracts

9.10 Notices:

9.10.1 Written Notice. Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement
by one party to the other shall be in writing and shall be given and deemed to have been
given immediately if delivered in person to the address set forth in this section for the party
to whom the notice is given, or on the third day following mailing if placed in the United
States Mail, postage prepaid, by registered or certified mail with return receipt requested,
addressed to the party at the address herein specified.

9.10.2 County Address. The address of County for all purposes under this Agreement shall be:

Cyd Grimes, C.P.M. CPPO (or her successor)
Travis County Purchasing Agent
P. 0. Box 1748
Austin, Texas
78767

With copies to (registered or certified mail with return receipt is not required):

County Executive, (or successor)
Travis County Planning and Budget
P.O. Box 1748
Austin, Texas
78767



4400001580
• Pagel2of23

9.10.3 Contractor Address. The address of CONTRACTOR for all purposes under this

.•

Agreement and for all notices hereunder shall be:

I: M(IMUS Consulting Services, Inc.
P.O. Box21279
Baltimore, MD 21279-1188

9.11 Change of Address. Each party may change the address for notice to it by giving written
notice of the change in compliance with Section 9.8. Any change in the address shall be reported
within fifteen
(15) days of the change.

9.12 Authority: The DIRECTOR or her designee will act on behalf of COUNTY with respect to
the work to be performed under this Agreement. The DIRECTOR shall have complete authority to
interpret and define in writing COUNTY’S policies and decisions with respect to
CONTRACTOR’S services. The DIRECTOR may designate representatives to transmit instructions
and receive information.

9.13 Dispute Resolution - Administration by Purchasing Agent. When the CONTRACTOR
andJor COUNTY have been unable to successfully resolve any question or issue related to this
COUNTY, the CONTRACTOR or COUNTY shall then present the matter to the Purchasing Agent
by providing the Purchasing Agent with written notice of the dispute. Such notice shall contain a
specific written description of the issues involved as well as the CONTRACTOR’s requested
resolution of the dispute and any other relevant information which CONTRACTOR desires to
include. As of the receipt of such notice by the Purchasing Agent, the Purchasing Agent will act as
the COUNTY representative in any further issuances and in the administration of this Contract in
relation to the described dispute. Unless otherwise stated in this Contract, any document, notice or
correspondence in relation to the disputes at this stage not issued by or to the Purchasing Agent
may be considered void. If the CONTRACTOR does not agree with any document, notice or
correspondence relating to the dispute issued by the Purchasing Agent or other authorized County
person, the Contractor must submit a written notice to the Purchasing Agent with a copy to the
Director within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the document, notice or correspondence,
outlining the exact point of disagreement in detail. The Purchasing Agent will issue a written
notice of the final resolution of the dispute to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of the
initial written notice of dispute by the Purchasing Agent. If this final resolution does not resolve
the dispute to the Contractor’s satisfaction, Contractor may submit a written Notice of Appeal to
the Commissioners Court through the Purchasing Agent. The Purchasing Agent will provide a copy
of such response to the Director. This Notice of Appeal must be submitted within ten (10) calendar
days after receipt of the unsatisfactory final resolution. Contractor then has the right to be heard by
Commissioners Court and the Purchasing Agent will coordinate placing the matter on the
Commissioners Court agenda.

9.14 Mediation. If the Contractor is not satisfied with the resolution of the dispute pursuant to
paragraph 9.11, Contractor shall notify the Travis County Management representing this contract, and,
if mediation is acceptable to both Parties in resolving the dispute arising under this Contract, the
Parties agree to use the Dispute Resolution Center of Austin, Texas, or another mediation group as
chosen by County and approved by Contractor, as the provider of mediators for mediation as
described in the TEX. CIV. PRAC. AND REM. CODE, Section 154.023. Unless both Parties are
satisfied with the result of the mediation, the mediation will not constitute a final and binding
resolution of the dispute. All communications within the scope of the mediation shall remain
confidential as described in TEX. CIV. PRAC. AND REM. CODE, Section 154.073, unless both



4400001580
Page 13 of 23

Parties agree, in writing, to waive the confidentiality.

9.15 Cooperation and Coordination. CONTRACTOR shall cooperate and coordinate with
COUNTY staff and other contractors as reasonable and necessary and as required by the DIRECTOR.

9.16 Independent Contractor. The parties expressly acknowledge and agree that CONTRACTOR is
an independent contractor, operating solely in that capacity, and assumes all of the rights,
obligations and liabilities applicable to him as an independent contractor. CONTRACTOR shall
not be considered an employee of COUNTY, or gain any rights against COUNTY pursuant to
the COUNTY’S personnel policies.

9.17 Governing Law. The validity of this agreement and of any of its terms or provisions, as well
as the rights and duties of the parties hereunder, shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas.

9.17.1 Severability. Any clause, sentence, provision, paragraph, or article of this
Agreement held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, or ineffective
shall not impair, invalidate, or nullify the remainder of this Agreement, but the effect
thereof shall be limited to the clause, sentence, provision, paragraph or article so held to be
invalid, illegal, or ineffective.

9.17.2 Law and Venue. All obligations under this Agreement shall be performable in
Travis County, Texas. Venue for any litigation concerning this Agreement shall be in the
City of Austin, Travis County.

9.17.3 Assignment. No party may assign any of the rights or duties created by this
Agreement without the prior written approval of the other party. It is acknowledged by
CONTRACTOR that no officer, agent, employee or representative of COUNTY has any
authority to assign any part of this Agreement unless expressly granted that authority by
Commissioners Court.

9.18 Binding Contract. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, this Agreement
shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the COUNTY and the CONTRACTOR and their
respective successors, executors, administrators, and assigns. Neither the COUNTY nor the
CONTRACTOR may assign, sublet, or transfer his interest in or obligations under this Agreement
without the written consent of the other party hereto.

9.19 Performance of Other Services. As a part of this Agreement, it is understood that
CONTRACTOR is free to provide services outside this Agreement as it sees fit at those times
which CONTRACTOR is not obligated to COUNTY. It is also understood that COUNTY is free to
have more than one contractor providing the type of services included in this Agreement.

9.20 Survival. Conditions and covenants of this Agreement which by their terms are
performable after the termination, expiration, or end of this Agreement shall survive such
termination, expiration, or end and remain fully performable.

9.21 Interpretational Guidelines

9.21.1 Computation of Time. When any period of time is stated in this Agreement, the
time shall be computed to exclude the first day and include the last day of the period. If the
last day of any period falls on a Saturday, Sunday or a day that COUNTY has declared a
holiday for its employees, these days shall be omitted from the computation.
9.21.2 Number and Gender. Words of any gender in this Agreement shall be construed



4400001580
Page 14 of23

to include any other gender and words in either number shall be construed to include the
other unless the context in the Agreement clearly requires otherwise.

9.21.3 Headings. The headings at the beginning of the various provisions of this
Agreement have been included only to make it easier to locate the subject matter covered by
that section or subsection and are not to be used in construing this Agreement.

9.22 Conflict of Interest Questionnaire: If required by Chapter 176, Texas Local Government
Code, the Consultant shall complete and file a Conflict of Interest Questionnaire with the
County Clerk, Elections Division, 5501 Airport Blvd., Austin, Texas 78751. The Consultant shall
update this Questionnaire by September 1 of each year for the duration of this Contract, as required
by Chapter 176 of the Local Government Code. In addition, if any statement on a submitted
Questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate, the Consultant shall submit an updated
Questionnaire. The Consultant should note that the law requires the County to provide access to a
filed Questionnaire on the official Travis County Internet website.

9.23 The person or persons signing this Agreement on behalf of CONTRACTOR, or representing
themselves as signing this agreement on behalf of CONTRACTOR, do hereby warrant and guarantee
that he, she or they have been duly authorized by CONTRACTOR to sign this Agreement on behalf of
CONTRACTOR and to bind CONTRACTOR validly and legally to all terms, performances, and
provisions in this Agreement.

10.0 DUPLICATE ORIGiNALS

This Agreement will be executed in duplicate originals and be effective when executed by both parties.

Adam Polatnick
By: Vice President

Name ad S! PffiltCoinse

Travis County

By: Samuel T. Biscoe
Travis County Judge

Date:

Approved as to Legal Form By:

Approved by Auditor’s Office

Approved by Purchasing:

Assistant County Attorney

Nicki Riley, County Auditor

Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO Purchasing Agent

MAXIMUS ervices, Inc..

Date: 3/t/1’(



-

4400001580
Page 15 of 23

-Y

- —

ATTACHMENT A
SCOPE OF SERVICE

Description of Services:

The Consultant shall do, perform, and carry out in a good and professional manner the following services:

• Prepare an 0MB A-87 acceptable cost aNocation plan based on actual costs incurred. This plan will identify the
various costs incurred by the County to support and administer non-general fund programs.

• Under direction of the Consultant, the County shall gather input data.

• Computer processing of the plan prepared.

• Provide the County draft reports; Consultant shall revise the reports based on the County’s feedback.

• Assist the County in its negotiation of acceptable rates with federal and state authorities, as necessary.

The final document shall comply with the cost principles established by the Federal Office of Management and Budget
Rules and Regulations, 2 C.F.R. part 225 (formerly known as 0MB A-87) for state and local governments.

Consultant represents that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all personnel required in the performance of Services
under this Agreement. All of the Services required hereunder will be performed by Consultant or under its supervision, and
all personnel engaged in the work shall be fully qualified to perform the services described herein.

Consultant shall provide the Services stated in this Exhibit A in a professional and workmanlike manner consistent with the
typical standards of the industry. Consultant specifically disclaims all other warranties, express or implied, including but
not limited to the warranties of merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose.

Consultant reserves the right to subcontract for Services hereunder. Consultant agrees to notify Client in writing of any
such subcontracts.



4400001580
Page 16 of 23

EXHIBIT B
Compensation

For Services provided as set forth in Exhibit A, Client agrees to pay Consultant compensation in the amount of twenty
thousand nine hundred and ten dollars, $20,910 (Year 1) for the 0MB A-87 Cost Allocation Plan based on FY 2013 and
twenty thousand nine and hundred ten dollars, $20,910 (Year 2) for the preparation and delivery of an 0MB A-87 Cost
Allocation Plan based on Fiscal Year 2014. It is the Client’s intent to enter into a two year agreement for a grand total two
year not to exceed price of forty one thousand eight hundred and twenty dollars ($41 ,820).

Fiscal Year 2014 $20,910 (Year 2)

Fiscal Year 2015 $20,910(OPTIONAL)

Payment of the standard annual fee which shall include reimbursement for expenses incurred shall be made in two
separate installments: ninety-five percent (95%) of the standard fee shall be due upon delivery of draft plan(s); the
remaining five percent (5%) of the standard fee shall be due upon delivery of the final plan(s) for each of the Fiscal Years
(2013 and 2014). Invoices shall provide detail sufficient to Client’s requirements.

Consultant will render to Client one or more invoices for the fees specified herein, with payment due thirty (30) days after
the invoice date.

The services and associated compensation covered under this Agreement may be modified through a written amendment,
approved and executed by both parties. For additional Services, the inclusive hourly rates by resource category are as
follows:

Executive Director $200/hr
Senior Project Manager $1 75/hr
Project Manager $1 50/hr
Senior Consultant $125/hr
Consultant/Analyst $1 00/hr



4400001580
Page 17 of23

ATTACHMENT C
INSURANCE REOUIREMENTS

Contractor shall have, and shall require all subcontractors providing services under this Contract to have,
Standard Insurance meeting the General Requirements as set forth below and sufficient to cover the needs of
Contractor andJor Subcontractor pursuant to applicable generally accepted business standards. Depending on
services provided by Contractor andlor Subcontractor(s), Supplemental Insurance Requirements or alternate
insurance options shall be imposed as follows:

I. General Requirements ADplicable to All Contractors’ Insurance.

The following requirements apply to the Contractor and to Subcontractor(s) performing services or activities
pursuant to the terms of this Contract. Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the following concerning
insurance requirements applicable to Contractor and subcontractor(s):

A. The minimum types and limits of insurance indicated below shall be maintained throughout the
duration of the Contract.

B. Insurance shall be written by companies licensed in the State of Texas with an A.M. Best rating
of B+ VIII or higher.

C. Prior to commencing work under this Contract, the required insurance shall be in force as
evidenced by a Certificate of Insurance issued by the writing agent or carrier. A copy of the Certificate of
Insurance shall be forwarded to County immediately upon execution of this Contract.

D. Certificates of Insurance shall include the endorsements outlined below and shall be submitted
to the Travis County Purchasing Agent within ten (10) working days of execution of the contract by both
parties or the effective date of the Contract, whichever comes first. The Certificate(s) shall show the Travis
County contract number and all endorsements

E. Insurance required under this Contract which names Travis County as Additional Insured on the
General and Automobile Liability policies shall be considered primary..

F. Insurance limits shown below may be written as Combined Single Limits or structured using
primary and excess or umbrella coverage that follows the form of the primary policy.

G. County shall be entitled, upon its request and without expense, to receive copies of policies
and endorsements only in the event of a claim occurring.

H. County reserves the right to review insurance requirements during any term of the Contract and
to require that Contractor make reasonable adjustments when the scope of services has been expanded.

1. Contractor shall not allow any insurance to be cancelled or lapse during any term of this
Contract. Contractor shall not permit the minimum limits of coverage to erode or otherwise be reduced.
Contractor shall be responsible for all premiums, deductibles and self-insured retention. All deductibles and
self-insured retention shall be shown on the Certificates of Insurance.



4400001580
Page 18 of 23

J. Insurance coverage specified in this Contract is not intended and will not be interpreted to limit
the responsibility or liability of the Contractor or subcontractor(s).

II. Specific Requirements

The following requirements (II.A - II.E, inclusive) apply to the Contractor and Subcontractor(s) performing
services or activities pursuant to the terms of this Contract. Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the
following concerning insurance requirements applicable to Contractor and subcontractor(s):

A. Workers’ Compensation and Employers’ Liability Insurance

1. Coverage shall be consistent with statutory benefits outlined in the Texas Workers’
Compensation Act.

2. Employers’ Liability limits are:

$500,000 bodily injury each accident
$500,000 bodily injury by disease
$500,000 policy limit

3. Policies under this Section shall apply to State of Texas and include the following
endorsements in favor of Travis County and City of Austin:

a. Waiver of Subrogation (Form 420304 or equivalent)
b. Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form 420601 or equivalent)

B. Commercial General Liability Insurance

1. Minimum limit:
$500,000* per occurrence for coverage A and B with a
$1,000,000 policy aggregate

2. The Policy shall contain or be endorsed as follows:
a. Blanket contractual liability for this Contract
b. Independent Contractor Coverage

3. The Policy shall also include the following endorsements in favor of Travis County

4. a Waiver of Subrogation (Form CG 2404 or equivalent)
b. Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form CG 0205 or
c Travis County named as additional insured (Form CG 2010)

*



4400001580
- Page 19 of 23

C. Business Automobile Liability Insuraricet

1. , Coverage for all of the Contractor’s use of owned, non-owned, and hired vehicles shall be
maintained with a combined single limit of $300,000* per occurrence
2. Policy shall also include the following endorsements in favor of Travis County

a. Waiver of Subrogation (Form TE 2046A or equivalent)
b. Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form TE 0202A or equivalent)
c. Travis County named as additional insured (Form TE 9901 B or equivalent)

D. Professional Liability/E & 0 Insurance

1 Coverage shall be provided with a mimmum limit of $1,000,000 per claim /$3,000,000
aggregate to cover Contractor’s errors and/or omissions while performmg professional services under
the contract.

2. If coverage is written on a claims made policy, the retroactive date shall be prior to the date
this Contract is signed and/or effective, whichever comes first. Contractor shall maintain
continuous coverage for three years after the end of the contract. If the continuous policy is not
renewed with the same retroactive date, a three-year extended reporting period shall be purchased and
maintained.

3. Subcontractor(s) shall provide Contractor with current certificates of insurance annually
on the renewal date of their insurance policy.

E. Blanket Crime Policy Insurance

1. If an advance against Contract Funds is requested or received in an amount greater than
$5,000, a Blanket Crime Policy shall be required with limits of the Contract Funds allocated in the
Contract or the amount of scheduled advances.

2. If coverage is written on a claims made policy, the retroactive date shall be prior to the date
services begin under this Contract or the effective date of this Contract, whichever comes first.

Contractor shall maintain continuous coverage for three years after the end of the contract. If the
continuous policy is not renewed with the same retroactive date, a three-year extended reporting
period shall be purchased and maintained.



4400001580
Page 20 of 23

AT[ACIIMENT D
ETHICS AFFIDAViT

STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF TRAVIS

ETHICS AFFIDAVIT

Date:_______________________________________________
Name of Affiant: At)rV (‘0’. o—
Title ofAffiant: JxCt Q(ZA
Business Name ofProponent: &K Cf’U cc ci1’C &xNc & m
County ofProponent: l U19-y vr•c
Affiant on oath swears that the following statements are true:

1. Afllant is authorized by Proponent to make this affidavit for Proponent.

2. Affiant is fully aware of the facts stated in this affidavit.

3. Affiant can read the English language.

4. Proponent has received the list of key contracting persons associated with this solicitation which is attached to this affidavit as
Exhibit “1”

5. Affiant has personally read Exhibit “1 “to this Affidavit.

6. Affiant has no knowledge of any key contracting person on Exhibit “1” with whom Proponent is doing business or has done
business during the 365 day period immediately before the date of this affidavit whose name is not disclosed in the
solicitation.

Si nature ofAfliant
fVIjf (LfliJ Or., fr#-t’r. JPc I9O

Address

SUBSCRIBED A}.TL) SWORN TO before me by,477 4LA7AQ(J< on,t’(W /f , 2O/

ER2

________

NOTARY -

PUBUC
-

REG. #355683

__________________

MYCOMMISSON
EXPIRES -

07/31/2017 /

Tl-
I

U

Notary Public, State of/4/’67A94
/h1i Y’ V i4/i 7 V%YcJkA

Typed or printed name ofnotary
My commission expires: IZii’1 3i -6I 7



4400001580
Page 21 of 23

EXHIBIT 1
LIST OF KEY CONTRACTING PERSONS

December 11 2013

CURRENT
Name of Individual Name ofBusiness

Position Held Holding Office/Position Individual is Associated

County Judge Samuel T. Biscoe
County Judge (Spouse) Donalyn Thompson-Biscoe
Executive Assistant Cheryl Brown
Executive Assistant Melissa Velasquez
Executive Assistant Josie Z. Zavala
Executive Assistant David Salazar*
Commissioner, Precinct 1 Ron Davis
Commissioner, Precinct 1 (Spouse) Annie Davis Seton Hospital
Executive Assistant Deone Wilhite
Executive Assistant Felicitas Chavez
Executive Assistant Sue Spears
Commissioner, Precinct 2 Bruce Todd*
Commissioner, Precinct 2 (Spouse) Elizabeth Christian Consultant
Executive Assistant Sara Krause*
Executive Assistant Joe Hon
Executive Assistant Peter Einhom
Commissioner, Precinct 3 Gerald Daugherty*
Commissioner, Precinct 3 (Spouse) Charyin Daugherty Consultant
Executive Assistant Bob Moore*
Executive Assistant Martin Zamzow*
Executive Assistant Barbara Smith*
Commissioner, Precinct 4 Margaret Gomez
Executive Assistant Edith Moreida
Executive Assistant Norma Guerra
County Treasurer Dolores Ortega-Carter
County Auditor Nicki Riley
County Executive, Administrative Vacant
County Executive, Planning & Budget Jessica Rio
County Executive, Emergency Services Danny Hobby
County Executive, Health/Human Services Sherri E. Fleming
County Executive, TNR Steven M. Manilla, P.E.
County Executive, Justice & Public Safety Roger Jefferies
Director, Facilities Management Roger El Khoury, M.S., P.E.
Chief Information Officer Tanya Acevedo
Director, Records Mgment & Communications Steven Broberg
Travis County Attorney David Escamilla
First Assistant County Attorney Steve Capelle
Executive Assistant, County Attorney James Collins
Director, Land Use Division Tom Nuckols
Attorney, Land Use Division Julie Joe
Attorney, Land Use Division Christopher Gilmore
Director, Transactions Division John Hille
Attorney, Transactions Division Daniel Bradford
Attorney, Transactions Division Elizabeth Winn
Attorney, Transactions Division Mary Etta Gerhardt
Attorney, Transactions Division Barbara Wilson
Attorney, Transactions Division Jim Connolly
Attorney, Transactions Division Tenley Aidredge
Director, Health Services Division Beth Devery



4400001580
Page 22 of 23

Attorney, Health Services Division Prema Gregerson
Purchasing Agent Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO
Assistant Purchasing Agent Marvin Brice, CPPB
Assistant Purchasing Agent Bonnie Floyd, CPPO, CPPB, CTPM
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV CW Bruner, CTP
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Lee Perry
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Jason Walker
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Richard Villareal
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Patrick Strittmatter
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Lori Clyde, CPPO, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Scott Wilson, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Jorge Talavera, CPPO, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Loren Breland, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV John E. Pena, CTPM
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Rosalinda Garcia
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Angel Gomez
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Jesse Herrera, CTP, CTPM, CTCM
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Shannon Pleasant, CTPM
Purchasing Agent Assistant III David Walch
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Michael Long, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Sydney Ceder
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Ruena Victorino*
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Rachel Fishback*
Purchasing Agent Assistant II Vacant
Purchasing Agent Assistant II L. Wade Laursen
Purchasing Agent Assistant II Sam Francis
HUB Coordinator Sylvia Lopez
HUB Specialist Betty Chapa
HUB Specialist Jerome Guerrero
Purchasing Business Analyst Scott Worthington
Purchasing Business Analyst Vacant

FORMER EMPLOYEES

Name ofIndividual
Position Held Holding Office/Position Date ofExpiration
Commissioner, Precinct 3 Karen Huber 01/01/14
Executive Assistant Garry Brown 01/01/14
Executive Assistant Julie Wheeler 01/01/14
Executive Assistant Jacob Cottingham 01/01/14
Commissioner, Precinct 2 Sarah Eckhardt 05/31/14
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Nancy Barchus, CPPB 06/28/14
Purchasing Business Analyst Jennifer Francis 11/29/14

*
- Identifies employees who have been in that position less than a year.



4400001580
Page 23 of 23

ATTACHMENT E

CERTiFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY, AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION FOR
COVERED CONTRACTS

Federal Executive Order 12549 requires Travis County to screen each covered potential contractor to determine whether each has a right to obtain a
contract in accordance with federal regulations on debarment, suspension, ineligibility, and voluntaty exclusion. Each covered contractor must also
screen each of its covered subcontractors.

In this certification “contractor” refers to both contractor and subcontractor; “contract” refers to both contract and subcontract.

By signing and submitting this certification, the contractor/potential contractor accepts the following terms:

1. The certification herein below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this contract was entered into. If it is
later determined that the potential contractor knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the
federal government or Travis County may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.

2. The potential contractor shall provide immediate written notice to the person to which this certification is submitted if at any time the potential
contractor learns that the certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

3. The words “covered contract,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “participant,” “person,” “principle,” “proposal,” and “voluntarily
excluded,” as used in this certification have meanings based upon materials in the Definitions and Coverage sections of federal rules
implementing Executive Order 12549.

4. The potential contractor agrees by submitting this certification that, should the proposed covered contract be entered into, it shall not knowingly
enter into any subcontract with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless authorized by a federal department or agency, and/or Travis County, as applicable.

Do you have or do you anticipate having subcontractors under this proposed contract? YES NO

5. The potential contractor further agrees by submitting this certification that it will include this certification titled “Certification Regarding
Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion for Covered Contracts “without modification, in all covered subcontracts”; and
in solicitations for all covered subcontracts.

6. A contractor may rely upon a certification of a potential subcontractor that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from
the covered contract, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A contractor must at a minimum, obtain certifications from its covered
subcontractors upon each subcontract’s initiation and upon each renewal.

7. Nothing contained in all the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the
certification required by this certification document. The knowledge and information of a contractor is not required to exceed that which is
normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

8. Except for contracts authorized under paragraph4 of these terms, if a contractor in a covered contract knowingly enters into a covered
subcontract with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to
other remedies available to the federal government, any federal agency and/or Travis County may pursue available remedies, including
suspension and/or debarment.

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY, AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION FOR COVERED
CONTRACTS

Indicate in the appropriate box which statement applies to the covered contractor/potential contractor:

The contractor/potential contractor certifies, by submission of this certification, that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred,
suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this contract by any federal department or
agency, the State ofTexas, or Travis County.

The contractor/potential contractor is unable to certi to one or more of the terms in this certification. In this instance, the
contractor/potential contractor must attach an explanation for each of the above terms to which he is unable to make certification. Attach the
explanation(s) to this certification.

Name of Contractor Vendor I.D. or Social Security No.

________________

Ci - -

3jfL ç,f
‘.( Adam Polatnick

Signature of Authorized Representative Date ?iefsue & Title of Authorized Representative
Assistant General Counsel



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
Meeting Date:  Tuesday, April 1, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number:   Sydney Ceder, (512)854-9882 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve contract award for Medical and Surgical 
Supplies, IFB 1311-005-SC, to the low bidders: 

A. Central Texas Medical Equipment & Supplies – Primary 

B. Henry Schein, Inc. - Secondary 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes.  This contract will provide medical and surgical supplies for 
the Sheriff’s Office and the Gardner-Betts Juvenile facility. 

IFB No. 1311-005-SC was issued on February 11, 2014.  A total of forty-
four (44) vendors were solicted and five (5) bids were received. 

 As a note to the Court – the primary vendor, Central Texas Medical 
Equipment and Supplies , is a HUB vendor. 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount:  Estimated Quantity – as needed requirements 
Contract Type:  Annual 
Contract Period:  April 1, 2014 through March 31, 2015 

 Solicitation-Related Information: 

Solicitations Sent:  44  Responses Received:  5  
HUB Information:  N/A  % HUB Subcontractor: N/A 

 
 

 Funding Information: 
  Shopping Cart/Funds Reservation in SAP:  N/A 
  Comments:  Shopping carts are processed at the time of the 

requirement. 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 22



 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
   March 20th 2014 
 
 
 
   TO:        Sydney Ceder, Travis County Purchasing 
 
 
   THRU:   Mark Sawa, Major Adminstration and Support Bureau 
 
 
   FROM:  Kathryn Geiger, Director, Inmate Medical Services 
 
    
   RE:        Bid # 1311-005-SC, Medical/ Surgical Supplies 
 
 

I recommend that Central Texas Medical Eqipment and Supplies 
(CTMES) be awarded the contract as the primary vendor and 
Henery Schein be selected as the secondary vendor for medical 
surgical supplies. 
 
 
CC:  Ron Rizzato 
        Maria Wedhorn 

GREG HAMILTON 

 

TRAVIS COUNTY SHERIFF 
P.O. Box 1748 

Austin, Texas 78767 
(512) 854-9770 

www.tcsheriff.org 

JAMES N. SYLVESTER 
Chief Deputy 

 
DARREN LONG 
Major – Law Enforcement 
 

WES PRIDDY 
Major – Corrections 
 

MARK SAWA 
Major - Administration & Support 
 

 
Safety, Integrity, Tradition of Service 



Bid #1311-005-SC - MEDICAL AND SURGICAL SUPPLIES

Creation Date   Nov 14, 2013 End Date Mar 3, 2014 2:00:00 PM CST

Start Date Feb 11, 2014 2:07:47 PM CST Awarded Date   Not Yet Awarded

1311-005-SC--01-01   1311-005-SC

Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs

Central Texas Medical Equipment & Supplies [Ad] First Offer -  35.00%      1 / percentage 35.00%    Y

Product Code: 
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

Southwest Surgical Systems, Inc. First Offer -  25.00%      1 / percentage 25.00%    Y

Product Code: 
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

Bound Tree Medical, LLC [Ad] First Offer -  22.00%      1 / percentage 22.00%    Y Y

Product Code: 
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

Moore Medical LLC [Ad] First Offer -  18.00%      1 / percentage 18.00%    Y Y

Product Code: 
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code: DISCOUNT
Supplier Notes:

Henry Schein Inc [Ad] First Offer -   0.00%      1 / percentage 0.00%    Y Y

Product Code: 
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes: Insurance Document   

Supplier Totals

  Moore Medical LLC [Ad] $0.00    

 Bid Contact  Bonnie Irish 
bid@mooremedical.com 
Ph 800-234-1464   
Fax 877-354-5916 

 Address  1690 New Britain Ave
PO Box 4066
Farmington, CT 06032 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

  Central Texas Medical Equipment & Supplies [Ad] $0.00    

 Bid Contact  Charles Miller 
ctmes@att.net 
Ph 512-451-9704   
Fax 512-451-9760 

 Address  8212 Georgian Dr.
Austin, TX 78753-5904 

 Qualifications   HUB   MBE   SB   

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

  Henry Schein Inc [Ad] $0.00    

 Bid Contact  Joanne Viggiano 
biddept@henryschein.com 
Ph 800-851-0400   
Fax 866-738-8999 

 Address  135 Duryea Rd
E-270
Melville, NY 11747 

 Qualifications   TX   

 Bid Notes   Henry Schein Inc. offers full line of medical supplies and surgical equipment. Please visit our website 
www.henryschein.com/medical. Copies of the catalog have been shipped. 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:
Henry Schein Inc. offers full line of medical supplies and 
surgical equipment. Please visit our website 
www.henryschein.com/medical. Copies of the catalog have 
been shipped. 

  Southwest Surgical Systems, Inc.  $0.00    

 Bid Contact  Robert Olivo 
rolivo@swsurgical.com 
Ph 512-288-3824   
Fax 512-288-6106 

 Address  8803 Tara Lane
Austin, TX 78735 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

  Bound Tree Medical, LLC [Ad] $0.00    

 Bid Contact  Bethany Moore 
valia.way@boundtree.com 
Ph 800-533-0523   
Fax 877-311-2437 

 Address  5000 Tuttle Crossing BLvd
Dublin, OH 43016 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

**All bids/proposals submitted for the designated project are reflected on this tabulation sheet. However, the listing of the bid/proposal 
on this tabulation sheet shall not be construed as a comment on the responsiveness of such bid/proposal or as any indication that the 
agency accepts such bid/proposal as being responsive. The agency will make a determination as to the responsiveness of the vendor 
responses submitted based upon compliance with all applicable laws, purchasing guidelines and project documents, including but not 
limited to the project specifications and contract documents. The agency will notify the successful vendor upon award of the contract 
and, as according to the law, all bid/proposal responses received may be available for inspection at that time.

Bid #1311-005-SC -
MEDICAL AND SURGICAL

Travis County

3/3/2014 2:19 PM p. 1



Bid #1311-005-SC - MEDICAL AND SURGICAL SUPPLIES

Creation Date   Nov 14, 2013 End Date Mar 3, 2014 2:00:00 PM CST

Start Date Feb 11, 2014 2:07:47 PM CST Awarded Date   Not Yet Awarded

1311-005-SC--01-01   1311-005-SC

Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs

Central Texas Medical Equipment & Supplies [Ad] First Offer -  35.00%      1 / percentage 35.00%    Y

Product Code: 
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

Southwest Surgical Systems, Inc. First Offer -  25.00%      1 / percentage 25.00%    Y

Product Code: 
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

Bound Tree Medical, LLC [Ad] First Offer -  22.00%      1 / percentage 22.00%    Y Y

Product Code: 
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

Moore Medical LLC [Ad] First Offer -  18.00%      1 / percentage 18.00%    Y Y

Product Code: 
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code: DISCOUNT
Supplier Notes:

Henry Schein Inc [Ad] First Offer -   0.00%      1 / percentage 0.00%    Y Y

Product Code: 
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes: Insurance Document   

Supplier Totals

  Moore Medical LLC [Ad] $0.00    

 Bid Contact  Bonnie Irish 
bid@mooremedical.com 
Ph 800-234-1464   
Fax 877-354-5916 

 Address  1690 New Britain Ave
PO Box 4066
Farmington, CT 06032 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

  Central Texas Medical Equipment & Supplies [Ad] $0.00    

 Bid Contact  Charles Miller 
ctmes@att.net 
Ph 512-451-9704   
Fax 512-451-9760 

 Address  8212 Georgian Dr.
Austin, TX 78753-5904 

 Qualifications   HUB   MBE   SB   

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

  Henry Schein Inc [Ad] $0.00    

 Bid Contact  Joanne Viggiano 
biddept@henryschein.com 
Ph 800-851-0400   
Fax 866-738-8999 

 Address  135 Duryea Rd
E-270
Melville, NY 11747 

 Qualifications   TX   

 Bid Notes   Henry Schein Inc. offers full line of medical supplies and surgical equipment. Please visit our website 
www.henryschein.com/medical. Copies of the catalog have been shipped. 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:
Henry Schein Inc. offers full line of medical supplies and 
surgical equipment. Please visit our website 
www.henryschein.com/medical. Copies of the catalog have 
been shipped. 

  Southwest Surgical Systems, Inc.  $0.00    

 Bid Contact  Robert Olivo 
rolivo@swsurgical.com 
Ph 512-288-3824   
Fax 512-288-6106 

 Address  8803 Tara Lane
Austin, TX 78735 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

  Bound Tree Medical, LLC [Ad] $0.00    

 Bid Contact  Bethany Moore 
valia.way@boundtree.com 
Ph 800-533-0523   
Fax 877-311-2437 

 Address  5000 Tuttle Crossing BLvd
Dublin, OH 43016 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

**All bids/proposals submitted for the designated project are reflected on this tabulation sheet. However, the listing of the bid/proposal 
on this tabulation sheet shall not be construed as a comment on the responsiveness of such bid/proposal or as any indication that the 
agency accepts such bid/proposal as being responsive. The agency will make a determination as to the responsiveness of the vendor 
responses submitted based upon compliance with all applicable laws, purchasing guidelines and project documents, including but not 
limited to the project specifications and contract documents. The agency will notify the successful vendor upon award of the contract 
and, as according to the law, all bid/proposal responses received may be available for inspection at that time.

Bid #1311-005-SC -
MEDICAL AND SURGICAL

Travis County

3/3/2014 2:19 PM p. 2



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: April 1, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Scott Wilson/854-1182 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language: Approve Modification No. 12 to Contract No. 
4500000031 (H.T.E. Contract No. 07T00173VC), Securus Technologies, 
Inc., for inmate pay phone services. 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

On August 28, 2007, the Commissioner’s Court approved a contract with 
Securus Technologies, Inc., for inmate and public pay phone services.  
The initial term of the contract was October 1, 2007 through September 
30, 2008.  On October 30, 2012, the Commissioner’s Court approved a 
contract modification which added an Inmate Video Visitation Service 
that was expected to generate additional revenue amounts based on 
23% of the gross revenue.  Each video session was projected to last up 
to twenty-five (25) minutes and the cost to friends and family was $20. 

At this time, Travis County Sheriff’s Office (TCSO), through Information 
Technology Services (ITS) and Securus Technologies recommends 
offering a promotion to friends and family of inmates housed in Travis 
County facilities to use the Video Visitation Service at a reduced cost for 
up to sixty (60) days.  The proposed promotional period would be from 
April 1, 2014 through May 31, 2014 and the cost of a twenty-five (25) 
minute remote visit would be reduced from $20 to $5.  During this 
promotional period, Travis County would continue to receive 23% of 
gross revenue from the video visitation sessions, receiving $1.15 from 
each at-home visit. 

The goals of this promotion are to reduce traffic in visitation during the 
upcoming scheduled construction and remodeling of the Visitation 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 23



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

Center at the Travis County Correctional Complex in Del Valle and to 
increase at-home visits. 

 

Modification No. 11, approved by the Purchasing Agent on October 3, 
2013, extended the contract through October 31, 2014. 

Modification No. 10, approved by Commissioner’s Court on July 30, 
2013, was to temporarily reduce the cost of a video visitation from $20 to 
$10.  

Modification No. 9, approved by the Purchasing Agent on October 23, 
2012, extended the contract through October 31, 2013. 

Modification No. 8, approved by Commissioner’s Court on October 30, 
2012, added an Inmate Video Visitation Service. 

Modification No. 7, approved by Commissioner’s Court on April 17, 
2012, added an Automated Information Services (AIS) Solution. 

Modification No. 6, approved by the Purchasing Agent on October 27, 
2011, extended the contract through October 31, 2012. 

Modification No. 5, approved by Commissioner’s Court on October 19, 
2010, extended the contract for another twelve (12) months through 
October 31, 2011 and add the FCC2 functionality. 

Modification No. 4, approved by the Purchasing Agent on September 27, 
2010, extended the contract through October 31, 2010.   

Modification No. 3, approved by the Purchasing Agent on September 29, 
2009, extended the contract through September 30, 2010.   

Modification No. 2, approved by Commissioner’s Court on November 25, 
2008, lowered the Annual Guarantee Revenue from $1,600,000 to 
$1,100,000.   

Modification No. 1, approved by the Purchasing Agent on September 24, 
2008, extended the contract through September 30, 2009.    
 

 
 
 



                                 TRAVIS COUNTY INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 

                                                   Tanya Acevedo, Chief Information Officer 
 700 Lavaca, Suite 500, P. O. Box 1748, Austin, Tx 78767  (512) 854-9372 Fax (512) 854-4401 

 

 

 

 Travis County Courthouse, Austin, Texas 

 

DATE: February 28, 2014 

 

MEMORANDUM  

 

TO:  Cyd Grimes, C.P.M.-Travis County Purchasing Agent 

 

FROM: Walter LaGrone, Information Technology Director 

 

VIA:  Tanya Acevedo, Chief Information Officer 

   

SUBJECT: Recommendation to offer reduced cost of Inmate Video Visitation from $20.00 to 

$5.00 for up to 60 days to allow friends and family an opportunity to use the service 

at a reduced cost 

 

Proposed Motion: 

Recommendation to offer an opportunity for inmate friends and families to use remote Video 

Visitation for up to 60 days at reduced cost of $5.00 for a 25 minute visit  

 

Summary and Staff Recommendation: 

Travis County Sheriff Office, through ITS and Securus, recommends offering a promotion to the friends 

and families of inmates housed in Travis County facilities to use the Securus Video Visitation (SVV) 

system at a reduced cost for up to 60 days.  The proposed promotional trial period would be from 4/1/14 

through 5/31/14.  TCSO and Securus have offered to reduce the price of a 25 minute remote visit from 

$20.00 to $5.00 during this period.  The goal is to reduce traffic in visitation during an upcoming 

construction project and to increase at-home visits. 

 

Budgetary and Fiscal Impact: 

During the promotional period, Travis County will continue to receive 23% of revenue from video 

visitations.  At-home video visits would cost $5.00 per 25 minute session with Travis County receiving 

$1.15 from each visit. Compared to the $4.60 received by the County during regular pricing, this would 

result in a decrease of $3.45 per session during this sixty day window. 

 

Issues and Opportunities: 

This promotional period would coincide with upcoming scheduled construction for upgrades and 

remodeling of the Visitation building at the Travis County Correctional Complex.  The Sheriff’s Office 

hopes to use this promotion to help reduce visitation traffic during construction period. 

 

Background: 

Securus and its predecessor companies have served Travis County as its inmate phone vendor for more 

than 10 years.  The current agreement was approved by Commissioners Court on August 28, 2007 

pursuant to RFP # P070173-VC issued on April 2, 2007.  The agreement provides for an annual 

guaranteed payment as prepaid commission for inmate phone services, commissions from pay phones and 



C:\Users\lottr\Desktop\FY 14 Requesting Agenda for SVV promotion 022414.doc 

video visitation sessions at County facilities, and funds for a Contract Liaison.  This service provides 

telephone access privileges for Travis County inmates and additionally serves as a management tool for 

inmate populations.  This service additionally provides the opportunity for providing Travis County with 

other products or services that will enhance the Sheriff’s operation and assist the friends and families 

communicate with inmates held in the Travis County Jail. 

 

A 50% ($10.00) reduced rate promotion for Securus Video Visitation system that ran through 12/31/13 

was submitted and approved by Commissioners Court July 20, 2013.  TCSO noticed a significant 

reduction in facility traffic visits during that promotion. 

 

Required Authorizations: 

 

LEGAL:   Barbara Wilson, County Attorneys Office 

PURCHASING:    Bonnie Floyd, Scott Wilson, Purchasing Department 

BUDGET:     Katie Gipson, Planning and Budget Office 

 

Cc:   Sheriff Greg Hamilton, TCSO; Captain Wes Priddy, TCSO; Captain Lisa Brown, Tiffany Curnutt, 

TCSO  

 Leslie Browder, County Executive for Planning and Budget 

Leticia Marquez, Bruni Cruz, ITS 
 



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT NO. 4500000031 (H.T.E. Contract No. 07T00173VC) for Inmate Pay 

Phone Services                                                           PAGE 1 OF 5 PAGES  
 
ISSUED BY: PURCHASING OFFICE 

700 LAVACA ST. STE 800 

AUSTIN, TX 78701 

 
PURCHASING AGENT ASST:  Scott Wilson 

TEL. NO:   (512) 854-9700 

FAX NO:   (512) 854-9185 

 
DATE PREPARED: 

March 24, 2014 

 
ISSUED TO: 

Securus Technologies, Inc.  

Attn: Robert Pickens 

14651 Dallas PKWY, Ste. 600 

Dallas, Texas 75254 

MODIFICATION NO.:  

12  

EXECUTED DATE OF ORIGINAL 

CONTRACT:  

August 28, 2007 

ORIGINAL CONTRACT TERM DATES:  _October 1, 2007 through September 30, 2008 CURRENT CONTRACT TERM DATES: November 1, 2013 through October 

31, 2014  
FOR TRAVIS COUNTY INTERNAL USE ONLY:        

Original Contract Amount: $_____________                                                                                    Current Modified Amount $______________ 

DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES:  Except as provided herein, all terms, conditions, and provisions of the document referenced above as heretofore 

modified, remain unchanged and in full force and effect. 

 

This modification is by Securus Technologies, Inc. (“Contractor”) and Travis County, Texas (“County”). 

 

Recitals 

 

Federal Communications Commission 47 CFR Part 64 [WC Docket No. 12-375; FCC 13-113] – Rates for Interstate Calling 

Services (“FCC Order”), which became effective February 11, 2014, governs the interstate calling rates charged under this 

Contract.  The rates stated in the Contract are not consistent with these new rates.  

Under Modification 8 to that contract, Contractor implemented Video Visitation in the Travis County Jail System.  County and 

Contractor would again like to offer users of Video Visitation a reduced fee on a short term basis to encourage additional use 

of this functionality. Now, therefore, the Contractor and County agree as follows: 

 

Amendment 

 

1.   Pursuant to Attachment D, section 12, effective February 11, 2014, section 4.1 as stated in the original 

contract is deleted in full and the following section 4.1 is inserted in its place.  
 

 4.1 Commission on Inmate Telephone Services   In compliance with Federal Communications Commission 47 

CFR Part 64 [WC Docket No. 12-375; FCC 13-113] – Rates for Interstate Calling Services (“FCC Order”), which became 

effective February 11, 2014, gross revenue does not include any revenue earned under this Contract through the 

completion of interstate calls of any type.  Gross revenue shall be determined without consideration of whether (a) the 

revenue is collected after the call is originated or through prepaid collect services, (b) the revenue is not collectible, or (c) 

the call can be billed at all. Contractor shall pay County 60.3% of the gross revenue resulting from the inmate pay 

telephone service during the contract, including all years for which the Annual Option is exercised.  

.  
Note to Vendor:  

[ x  ] Complete and execute (sign) your portion of the signature block section below for all copies and return all signed copies to Travis County. 

[  ] DO NOT execute and return to Travis County.  Retain for your records. 
 
 

LEGAL BUSINESS NAME:  ________________________________________________ 

 

     BY:            
          SIGNATURE 

 

     BY:           
          PRINT NAME 

 

TITLE:           

            ITS DULY AUTHORIZED AGENT 

□ DBA 

□ CORPORATION 

□ OTHER 

 
DATE: 

 
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

 

BY:            

      CYD V. GRIMES, C.P.M., CPPO, TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT 

 
DATE: 

 
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

 

BY:            

      SAMUEL T. BISCOE, TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE 

 
DATE: 



Contract NO. 4500000031 Page 2 of 5 pages 

 

2.   Pursuant to Attachment D, section 12, effective February 11, 2014, section 4.2 as 

amended in Modification 7 is deleted in full and the following section 4.2 is inserted in its place.  
 

 
4.2 Annual Guaranteed Prepayment for Inmate Telephone Services before November 1, 2011 

 For each option year after the first contract term, the Annual Guaranteed Payment for inmate 

telephone services shall be adjusted so that it equals the Commission Percentage shown in the 

table below for that option year times the annual gross revenue for collect inmate phone calls 

during the preceding twelve months ending June 30 as long as the rate for collect telephone 

services to inmates, other than interstate long distance calls, remains a flat fee of $4.65 (surcharge 

plus rate in Attachment I) without any per minute charge.  For any option year in which the flat fee 

is changed from the flat fee of $4.65 for collect telephone services to inmates, other than interstate 

long distance calls, the Annual Guaranteed Payment for inmate telephone services shall be 

adjusted so that it equals the Commission Percentage shown in the table below for that option year 

times the product obtained by multiplying the rate to be applicable to collect telephone services to 

inmates for that option period by the quotient resulting from dividing the annual gross revenue for 

collect inmate phone calls, other than interstate long distance calls, during the preceding twelve 

months ending on the date shown in the chart by $4.65. 

 

Year: Commission Percent: Minimum Annual Guarantee 

(MAG) 

First Option  

October 1, 2008-September 30, 2009 
60.3% $1,600,000 

Second Option  

October 1, 2009-September 30, 2010 
60.3% Based on previous 12 months ending 

June 30, 2009 

Third Option 

October 1, 2010-October 31, 2011 
60.3% Based on previous 12 months ending 

June 30, 2010 

Fourth Option  

November 1, 2011- October 30, 2012 
60.3% $881,817.61 

Fifth Option 

November 1, 2012- October 30, 2013 
61.0% Based on previous 12 months ending 

August 31, 2012  

Sixth Option  

November 1, 2013- October 30, 2014 

unless Monthly Option(s) is/are exercised 

and then this option begins at the end of 

the last Monthly Option exercised and 

continues for 12 months 

61.7% Based on previous 12 months ending 

August 31, 2013  

Seventh Option 

November 1, 2014- October 30, 2015 

unless Monthly Option(s) is/are exercised 

and then this option begins at the end of 

the last Monthly Option exercised and 

continues for 12 months 

62.4% Based on previous 12 months ending 

August 31, 2014  

Eighth Option  

November 1, 2015- October 30, 2016 

unless Monthly Option(s) is/are exercised 

and then this option begins at the end of 

the last Monthly Option exercised and 

continues for 12 months 

63.1% Based on previous 12 months ending 

August 31, 2015  

 



Contract NO. 4500000031 Page 3 of 5 pages 

 

 4.2.1 On October 1, 2007, Contractor shall pay County $1,600,000 as pre-paid 

commissions on revenue from all inmate telephones services.  

 

 4.2.2 Before October 15, 2008, Contractor shall pay County $975,000 and 

before December 1, 2008, Contractor shall pay County the remainder of the Annual 

Guaranteed Payment for the first option year as pre-paid commissions on revenue from all 

inmate telephones services.  

 

 4.2.3 On October 1, 2009 and on the first of each of the following eleven 

months, Contractor shall pay County one twelfth of the Annual Guaranteed Payment for 

the second option year as pre-paid commissions on revenue from all inmate telephones 

services.  

 

 4.2.4 On October 1, 2010 and the first of each of the following twelve months, 

Contractor shall pay County one twelfth of the Annual Guaranteed Payment for the third 

option year as pre-paid commissions on revenue from all inmate telephones services.   

 

 4.2.5 On November 1, 2011 and on the first of each of the following eleven 

months, Contractor shall pay County one twelfth of the Annual Guaranteed Payment of 

$881,817.61 for the fourth option year as pre-paid commissions on revenue from all 

inmate telephones services.   

 

 4.2.6 On the first day of the fifth option and on the first of each of the following 

eleven months, Contractor shall pay County one twelfth of the Annual Guaranteed 

Payment for the fifth option year as pre-paid commissions on revenue from all inmate 

telephones services.  

 

 4.2.7 The Annual Guaranteed Payment for the sixth option is adjusted to 

comply with the FCC order.  The monthly payments of the Annual Guaranteed Payment 

before the order shall be based on gross revenue including interstate long distance calls 

and shall be equal to one twelfth of $835,875.  The monthly payments of the Annual 

Guaranteed Payment after the order shall be based on gross revenue excluding interstate 

long distance calls and shall be equal to one twelfth of $804,875.   On the first day of the 

sixth option and the first of each of the following two months, Contractor shall pay County 

one twelfth of the Annual Guaranteed Payment of $835,875 for the first three months of 

the sixth option year as pre-paid commissions on revenue from all inmate telephones 

services.  On the first day of the fourth month of the sixth option and the first of each of 

the following eight months, Contractor shall pay County one twelfth of the Annual 

Guaranteed Payment of $804,875 for the final nine months of the sixth option year as pre-

paid commissions on revenue from all inmate telephones services, except interstate long 

distance calls. 

 

 4.2.8 On the first day of the seventh option and the first of each of the 

following twelve months, Contractor shall pay County one twelfth of the Annual 

Guaranteed Payment for the seventh option year as pre-paid commissions on revenue from 

all inmate telephones services, except interstate long distance calls.   

 

 4.2.9 On the first day of the eighth option and the first of each of the following 

twelve months, Contractor shall pay County one twelfth of the Annual Guaranteed 



Contract NO. 4500000031 Page 4 of 5 pages 

 

Payment for the eighth option year as pre-paid commissions on revenue from all inmate 

telephones services, except interstate long distance calls.   

 

 4.2.10 In any option year, when the commissions earned in that option year 

exceed the total amount paid during that option year, Contractor shall pay County the 

amount of the commissions earned but not pre-paid no later than sixty days after the end 

of that option year. If commissions do not exceed the total amount paid during that 

contract year, Contractor is not entitled to have any of the pre-paid commissions returned. 
 

2.   Pursuant to Attachment D, section 12, effective February 11, 2014, section 8.3 as stated in 

the original Contract is deleted in full and the following section 8.3 is inserted in its place.  
 

 8.3 Rates The rate for local collect calls from the Equipment shall be a flat fee of $4.65 

(surcharge plus rate in Attachment I) without any per minute charge unless the rate is modified in 

compliance with this section 8. The rates for interstate long distance collect calls from the Equipment 

shall reflect the maximum interstate calling rates stated in the FCC order.  The rates for interstate long 

distance collect calls from the Equipment shall be $0.25 per minute.  The rates for interstate long 

distance debit calls from the Equipment shall be $0.21 per minute.  The rates for intralata and interlata 

long distance collect calls from the Equipment shall be the rates shown on Attachment I with no 

additional surcharges such as Bill Statement Fee or other fees unless the rate is modified in compliance 

with this section 8.  These rates are composed of a surcharge, an initial minute fee and an each 

additional minute fee based on the type of call (intralata or interlata), the time of day (day, evening, or 

night/weekend), and the calling distance based on mileage from inmate phone to the telephone number 

dialed.  In determining whether day, evening, or night/weekend rates apply, “day” is from 8 a.m. to 

4:59 p.m. on Monday through Friday, “evening” is from 5 p.m. to 10:59 p.m. Sunday through Friday, 

and “night/weekend” is from 11 p.m. to 7:59 a.m. seven days a week and all day Saturday and Sunday 

from 8 a.m. to 4:59 p.m. 
 

3.   Pursuant to Attachment D, section 12, effective March 19, 2014, section 13B.5 as stated 

in Modification 10 is deleted in full and the following section 13B.5 is inserted in its place.  
 

  13B.5 Rates Where a fee applies, the rate for VIDEO VISITATION shall be a fee of 

$10.00 for a 25 minute visitation for each remote visitation from August 1, 2013 to September 30, 

2013 inclusive and at all other times during this contract the rate for VIDEO VISITATION shall be a 

fee of $20.00 for a 25 minute visitation for each remote visitation unless the rate is modified in 

compliance with this section 13B and is charged to the person scheduling the visitation. Visitation 

sessions may be scheduled by friends or family.  On premises visitations are provided free of charge.  

Attorney video visitations are provided free of charge from 9:00 am to 3:00 pm on Monday through 

Friday All other visits by attorneys will be charged at standard visitation rate.  However; until 

functionality is fully developed and implemented, attorney visits will be free of charge.  The time 

parameter functionality will be developed within 12 months of signing of contract and Statement of 

Work. During the installation period and the first three months after completion of installation of video 

visitation equipment in all buildings, inmates may receive one free video visitation.  To receive the free 

visitation, inmates must enter their unique PIN number so Contractor can track which inmates have 

received the free visitation.  After all video visitation system equipment has been installed for three (3) 

months, all video visitations are charged at standard rates.  In addition, for visits scheduled from April 

1, 2014 to May 31, 2014, Contractor has offered and County has accepted the following promotional 

pricing rates: 

 

 $5.00 for a video visitation lasting from 15 to 30 minutes 

 $10.00 for a video visitation lasting from 45 to 60 minutes 



Contract NO. 4500000031 Page 5 of 5 pages 

 

 The $5.95 transaction fee does not apply to these visits. 

 

Contractor shall ship promotional mini-posters (8.5 inches by 11 inches) to the County 

jail at least two days before the promotion begins and Contractor shall add Secure Call 

Platform prompts to educate the inmates and the public about the promotional pricing 

rates during the promotion period.  Prompts will include the following wording: 

 
Friends & Family Prompt (~15 seconds):  

April 1st through May 31st, Visit an inmate from the comfort of your home for 
only $5.  Take advantage of this promotion now by going to 
www.securustech.net/videovisitatoin and scheduling your remote visit today! 

 

Inmate Prompt (~15 seconds): 

For a limited time, your friends & family can now visit with you from their 
house for only $5!  Tell them to visit www.securustech.net/videovisitatoin to schedule 
their visit today! 

 

4.0 INCORPORATION OF CONTRACT AND RATIFICATION. Contractor and County 

hereby incorporate this amendment into the contract as amended by Modifications One, Two, 

Three, Four, Five, Six, Seven, Eight, and Nine. Contractor and County hereby ratify all of the 

terms and conditions of the Contract as amended. 
 

 

http://www.securustech.net/videovisitatoin
http://www.securustech.net/videovisitatoin


 
 
 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to the County Judge's office, agenda@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's 
meeting. 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: April 1, 2014  
 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Korey Darling/854-4275, Juanita Jackson/854-4467 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  
Sherri E. Fleming, County Executive for Health and Human Services and Veterans 
Service 
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Consider and take appropriate action on proposed strategy for new investments in 
social services.  
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
During the 2014 budget process, the Commissioner’s Court allocated $1 million for new 
social services investments (up to $2 million for FY15), and directed HHS/VS to work 
with community stakeholders to identify priorities for this new funding. 
 
In Fall 2013, staff met with providers and partner agencies to collect input. Staff also 
reviewed existing materials documenting community need and explored successful 
service delivery methodologies. Using the information gathered, staff developed options 
and a recommendation to implement a Family System of Care model to address 
multiple complex needs of whole families in an effort to create lasting, positive change 
for children in these families. The proposed model will focus on families with children in 
the outlying areas of Travis County and will adapt system of care principles to address 
at least five social service issue areas (Child and Youth Development, Housing 
Continuum, Workforce Development, Behavioral Health, and Food and Transportation).   
 
Attachment A:  Summary of community engagement 
Attachment B:  Summary of trends and needs in the outlying areas of Travis County 
Attachment C:  Proposed service delivery model: Family of System of Care  
Attachment D:  Options for social service investment expansion 
 
Proposed timeline for FY15 new social service investment competition: 

 April 2014: Complete required documentation  
 May 2014: Release RFS 
 July 2014: Proposals due 
 July-September 2014: Review and score proposals, negotiate and approve new 

contracts  
 October 1, 2014: New contracts begin 

 
 

Item 24



 
 
 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to the County Judge's office, agenda@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's 
meeting. 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
The HHS/VS Department recommends implementing a Family System of Care model to 
serve families living in impacted block groups and low opportunity areas in the outlying 
areas of the county. The Department requests permission to offer a competitive bidding 
process to select vendors to implement this model using the allocated funding for new 
social service investments.  
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
The proposed Family System of Care model creates an opportunity to implement a 
promising practice, versions of which have been utilized by the Travis County 
community to serve children and youth with complex mental health needs and their 
families, successfully house chronically-homeless individuals, and to take a two-
generation approach to move parents and children beyond poverty. The proposed 
model also offers an opportunity to build on work completed through the CDBG process 
to serve residents in the outlying areas of the county—residents who are currently 
underserved through the county’s investment in social services. The Family System of 
Care model has the potential to fully address family needs and create significant, lasting 
impact on families served.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
The proposed model utilizes ongoing funding already allocated by the Commissioner’s 
Court during the FY14 budget process. 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS:  
Mary Etta Gerhardt, Assistant County Attorney’ 
Leslie Browder, County Executive, Planning and Budget Office 
Cyd Grimes, CPM, Travis County Purchasing Agent 
Nicki Riley, CAP, CMA, Travis County Auditor 
Patty Lennon, Financial Analyst, Travis County Auditor’s Office 
Aerin Toussaint, Analyst, Planning and Budget Office 
Sherri Fleming, County Executive, HHS/VS 

2



ATTACHMENT A 

 
Summary of Community Engagement 

  Provider and Partner Input Summary 

  CDBG Public Engagement Summary for PY06‐14 

3



Travis County New Investments in Social Services FY14-15 

Provider and Partner Input Summary 

 

The Travis County Commissioner’s Court has approved funding for up to $2 million in new social services investments by FY15.  To inform recommendations for 

one or more areas of focus for this new funding, the Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service Department collected input from providers 

and system level partners.  This document provides an overview of the input process and a summary of the input received.   

Part I: Process 

 Provider Forums Provider Written Input System Level Partner Meetings 

Process and Timeline Meeting notice to: One Voice Central 
Texas, issue area Listserves, current 
contractors, and agencies that applied for 
FY14 funding.  
Forums held on 10/9/2013 and 
10/14/2013. 

Forms distributed to meeting participants 
and to those who were unable to attend. 
Forms collected through 10/15/2013 with a 
grace period until the morning of 
10/16/2013.   

Between 10/7 and 10/15/2013, county 
staff met with staff at system level partner 
organizations.1   
 

Content Participants responded to the following 
points:  

 The issue/service they recommend for 
consideration 

 The outcomes the proposed 
investment would create 

 Some rationale as to why this should 
be a priority for new investment 

Information collected through the form 
corresponds to proposed investment 
criteria including:   

 The proposed investment meets a 
need that is evidenced in data and 
existing community planning efforts   

 Sound strategies for serving residents 
in outlying areas of the County are 
proposed. 

Discussions included the following topics:  

 Leverage opportunities that may be 
present 

 Gaps in the current service delivery 
system 

 Changes in policy or funding that may 
impact services  

Participation 72 total attendees 48 forms received on time; 5 forms 
received late. 

Partner organizations included:  

 Austin, Manor, and Del Valle 
Independent School Districts (ISDs) 

 Austin Travis County Integral Care 
(ATCIC)  

 Austin Travis County  Health and 
Human Services Department 
(ATCHHSD) 

 Central Health (CH) 

 St. David’s Foundation (SDF) 

 Workforce Solutions (WFS) 

  

                                                           
1
 For the purpose of this process, HHS/VS defines “system-level partners” as those organizations who serve as local authorities over certain issues/services and whose role may 

include service provision, but also reaches broadly into assessment, planning and funding within their areas of authority. 

4



Travis County New Investments in Social Services FY14-15 

Provider and Partner Input Summary 

 

Part II: Summary of Input 

 Provider Input  System Level Partners Input 

The following issue and service area themes emerged through written or verbal 
provider input.  This input is categorized into three tiers according to volume. 

Top Tier— Early childhood/child and youth services including: access to quality early 
education and care, early child intervention, mental health services for children, 
parenting supports, early literacy, out of school time activities, youth prevention 
(teen pregnancy, substance abuse, violence, etc.), and opportunity youth. 
 
Second Tier— housing and workforce development.   

Housing with specific mention of: housing stability and homeless prevention, 
particularly for veterans, youth aging out of foster care, and re-entry populations.  

Workforce development with specific mention of:  child care funds needed, 
particularly in order to preserve care slots terminated by non-compliance with 
federal requirements, GED and job readiness services, services for veterans, 
homeless persons, and persons with disabilities, and services to connect young 
adults to career pathways. 
 
Third tier— needs of special populations, including: immigrants and refugees, 
victims of family violence, re-entry, aging, and individuals with developmental 
disabilities. 
  
Other issue areas or services needs noted: Providers described a number of other 
unmet service needs, including: nutrition, mental health, public health, literacy, 
supportive services (medical needs), and substance abuse. 
 
Providers also had the following input that cuts across issue or service areas:  

 Need for culturally competent and linguistically appropriate services 

 Propose Victims Services as an issue area 

 Support existing contractors with an increase 

 Services in outlying areas (through shared space in Travis County facilities?) 

 Whole family- wraparound approach 

 County should invest according to recommendations of vetted community plans 

 Cohesive collaboration of coordinated services 

 Transportation and other access issues 

 Prioritize most vulnerable 

The following theme emerged through conversations with system level 
partners: 
 

 Gaps exist between the market rate and the reimbursement rates 
for mental health and early education and care services  (WFS, 
ATCIC) 

 Federal regulations create gaps in childcare for families - for 
example, no care is available during the time when a parent has 
completed training and is working to secure a job (WFS) 

 There is a pending loss of 21st Century Grant funding for afterschool 
programs after 2014 (ISDs) 

 Need for teen pregnancy prevention programs (SDF, CH, ISDs) 

 Need for supportive services component for permanent supportive 
housing and other wrap around supports/case management to 
complement housing services (SDF, ATCHHSD, CH) 

 Need to address the food desert issue (CH, SDF) 

 There is a gap in services for people with substance use as a single 
diagnosis (ATCIC, CH) 

 State level change in early childhood intervention program eligibility 
has led to applicants who would have been eligible for services 
through state funding to be screened out under the new guidelines.  
Working on developing local solutions to meet this need. (ATCIC) 

 Need additional services to prevent child abuse and neglect (CH, 
SDF) 

 
 
 
 

 

 

5



Travis County New Investments in Social Services FY14-15 

CDBG Public Engagement Summary for PY06-14 

 

Since 2006, the Community Development Block Grant has conducted annual community engagement for residents in the unincorporated areas of Travis County 

(2006-2014) and the Village of Webberville (2012-2014) to identify their needs and propose projects.  This document provides an overview of the public 

participation themes over the last 8 years.   

Part I: Process 

 Public Hearings Proposals & Surveys Social Service Provider  

Process and Timeline Every February and March, CDBG has 5-6 
public hearings to gather information 
about needs and funding priorities for the 
upcoming year.  In 2006, 2011 and 2014, 
additional information has been gathered 
to inform the strategic priorities for 3(for 
2011-2013), and 5 year (for 2006-2010 and 
2014-2019) timelines. 

In February and March of each year a 
survey is available for those who cannot 
attend a public hearing.  Additionally, 
project proposals are available year round 
for neighborhoods that may have a project 
idea.   

In Strategic Planning years (2009, 2011 and 
2014), targeted outreach is conducted with 
social service providers through surveys, 
forums and/or one-on-one interviews.  
Project proposals are available year round 
for agencies that may have a project idea.   
 

Content Participants responded to the following 
points:  

 Prioritization of category of need 

 Projects ideas or needs 
 

Participants responded to the following 
points:  

 Prioritization of category of need 

 Projects ideas or needs 

 Project proposals require identified 
need and impact of assistance. 

Participants responded to the following 
points:  

 Prioritization of category of need 

 Projects ideas or needs 

 Project proposals require identified 
need, program design, budget and 
impact of assistance. 

Participation 265 attendees at public hearings from 
2006-2013.  
 

150 surveys and 13 project proposals from 
2006-2013. 
 
5 resident surveys have been collected so 
far, however, 2014 surveys and proposals 
continue to be collected until March 31, 
2014 
  

2006 

 27 attended forum 

 48 surveys received 
2011 

 46 surveys received 

 No forum conducted 
2014 

 51 surveys received as of 3/17/14 

 17 RSVPs for March 21st forum 
 

2006-2013  

 15 project proposals 
 

 

6



Travis County New Investments in Social Services FY14-15 

CDBG Public Engagement Summary for PY06-14 

 

 

Part II: Summary of Input 

 Resident Input  Social Services Provider Input 

The following issue and service area themes have emerged through written or verbal 
provider input consistently over the last 8 years and appears to remain true for 2014-
2019.   

Top Tier— Infrastructure  

Includes street repairs to substandard roads, access to a permanent (or consistent) 
water and wastewater source, stop lights, signage, street lighting, sidewalks and 
drainage improvements. 
 
Second Tier— Community Services  
 
Ranked highest need in 2011 strategic planning process.  For all years, residents 
identify youth services and supports as the most important community service 
needs.  Includes supportive services for people with specialized needs, 
transportation, services for elderly and disabled, afterschool and youth 
programming, literacy/Adult basic education, foreclosure prevention counseling, 
mental health services, and workforce development. 
 
Please note:  Often when the discussion of improved community services occurs, it is 
paired with the need for public facilities such as community centers, recreations 
centers, health clinics, libraries, etc.  Residents clearly communicate a need for space 
and geographic access to facilities.   
 
Third Tier— Housing   
 
Includes home repair, homebuyer assistance, housing for at-risk youth, affordable 
housing linked with economic opportunities, and affordable rental and owner 
housing.  
 
Additional Needs: 
Includes access to fresh food and community gardens, neighborhood security, and 
illegal dumping. 

2006   

 Many providers were unclear of the needs specific to those 
living outside the Urban Core, but identified affordable housing 
as a very important need.   

 Workforce Development, childcare and early education and 
mental health services were identified as high need community 
services. 
 

2011 

 Housing ranked highest of needs identified followed by 
community services.  Top identified needs were affordable 
housing, mental health services and transportation.   
 

2014 

 Early results of the survey indicate a stronger interest in 
collaborating around services outside of the Urban Core. 

 At the time of publication, this process is still ongoing and will 
complete by March 31, 2014.   

 
 
 

 

 

7



ATTACHMENT B 

 
Summary of Geographic Trends and 

Needs in the Outlying Areas of Travis 

County  

8



Summary of Geographic Trends and  

Need for Services in the Outlying Areas of Travis County  

1. The population living outside of the City of Austin has been growing faster than the County 

population overall and the share of the County population living in a municipality other than 

Austin or in an unincorporated area has also increased. 

According to the most recent U.S. Census Bureau population estimates available, 1,095,584 people 

lived in Travis County in 2012—73% of residents lived in the City of Austin, 9% lived in another city 

or village, and 17.2% lived in an unincorporated area.  The population living outside of the City of 

Austin has grown by 73% or 122,765 residents since 2000, and made up 27% percent of the Travis 

County population in 2012 compared with 21% in 2000.  

 

This map analysis by the City of 

Austin indicates that between 

2000 and 2010, greater 

population growth occurred in 

census tracts outside of Austin.  

Conversely, between 2000 and 

2010 the population within 

many census tracts within 

Austin declined or remained at 

the same level.  

 

 

 

 

Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent

2000 820,927               652,300           79.5% 53,249             6.5% 115,378           14.1%

2001 847,941               664,731           78.4% 58,416             6.9% 124,794           14.7%

2002 852,965               663,534           77.8% 60,187             7.1% 129,244           15.2%

2003 862,463               665,655           77.2% 62,011             7.2% 134,797           15.6%

2004 878,877               674,392           76.7% 64,743             7.4% 139,742           15.9%

2005 901,185               685,579           76.1% 68,569             7.6% 147,037           16.3%

2006 937,423               707,097           75.4% 73,582             7.8% 156,744           16.7%

2007 970,477               724,616           74.7% 79,617             8.2% 166,244           17.1%

2008 998,561               741,511           74.3% 82,948             8.3% 174,102           17.4%

2009 1,026,158           759,674           74.0% 85,602             8.3% 180,882           17.6%

2010 1,030,219           758,834           73.7% 95,423             9.3% 175,962           17.1%

2011 1,061,203           779,933           73.5% 98,815             9.3% 182,455           17.2%

2012 1,095,584           804,192           73.4% 102,727           9.4% 188,665           17.2%
Created by: Travis County HHS/VS, Research & Planning Division, 2014

Source data: U.S. Census Bureau, Population Estimates Program, http://www.census.gov/popest/index.html

Living in the City of Austin Living in another city Living in an unincorporated area

Travis County Population by Municipality Affiliation

Total Population

Source: Ryan Robinson, City of Austin Demographer 

9



 

2. Services have not followed this shift in population to the outlying areas. 

Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service Department (HHS/VS) annually invests 

in social services for residents of Travis County, both through direct service provision and through 

contracts with community based organizations. According to 2011 analysis by the Travis County 

CDBG Office, less than 9% of the total funded purchased services are being provided to the 

unincorporated areas of the county – a significant underrepresentation since the unincorporated 

areas of the county make up about 17% of the total population.1 

3. While the aforementioned points indicate a general need for increased service levels outside of 

the urban core, further analysis indicates specific areas of high need that can be strategically 

targeted for services.  

These areas of high need (Census block groups) can be identified through the following series of 

maps (excerpted from the Travis County CDBG Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice).   

 Map 3-4 displays the distribution of racially and/or ethnically concentrated block groups in 

the Urban County. A concentrated area is any in which the percentage of a single ethnic or minority 

group is at least 10 percentage points higher than across the County overall.  

 Map 3-5 shows block groups where at least 45.14% of persons are considered low- or 

moderate-income (LMI) by HUD standards. 

 Map 3-6 compares the block groups meeting those criteria with LMI block groups and racial 

or ethnic concentrations, demonstrating the large extent to which they overlap.  

 Map 3-7 isolates block groups meeting both criteria, which are referred to as impacted 

areas.  

 Map 3-8 overlays the impacted areas with the 2012 composite opportunity index.  The composite 

opportunity index is based on a methodology that utilizes education, economics and mobility, and 

housing and environment related variables to identify opportunity-rich and opportunity-poor areas. 

                                                           
1
 These figures were calculated by Travis County HHS/VS, Community Development Block Grant Office, and 

published in the Travis County Consolidated Plan and Action Plan 2011-2013.  The original source data was from 
the 2010 Community Impact Report, produced by Travis County HHS/VS, Research & Planning Division. Original 
documents can be found here: 
www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/cDBG/pdfs/consolidated_plans/consolidated_plan_2011-13_final.pdf 
and www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/research_planning/publications/cir/cir_2010_pt_2/default.asp. 

10

http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/cDBG/pdfs/consolidated_plans/consolidated_plan_2011-13_final.pdf
http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/research_planning/publications/cir/cir_2010_pt_2/default.asp


map 3-4
Areas of Racial and/or Ethnic Concentration, 2010

1

20

8

13

14

2

10

25

15

31

18

3

12

6

16

4

9

19

30

29

7

28

17

21

5

26

27

23

22

32

24

5
11

23

Urban County Exceptions

Black AND Hispanic Concentration

Black Concentration

Hispanic Concentration

Asian Concentration

1 - Austin
2 - Barton Creek
3 - Bee Cave
4 - Briarcliff
5 - Cedar Park
6 - Creedmoor
7 - Elgin
8 - Garfield
9 - Hornsby Bend
10 - Hudson Bend
11 - Jollyville
12 - Jonestown
13 - Lago Vista
14 - Lakeway
15 - Leander
16 - Lost Creek
17 - Manchaca
18 - Manor

19 - Mustang Ridge
20 - Pflugerville
21 - Point Venture
22 - Rollingwood
23 - Round Rock
24 - San Leanna
25 - Shady Hollow
26 - Sunset Valley
27 - The Hills
28 - Volente
29 - Webberville
30 - Wells Branch
31 - West Lake Hills
32 - Windemere

Incorporated Places

Source:  2010 Census SF-1

11



1

20

8

13

14

2

10

25

15

31

18

3

12

6

16

4

9

19

30

29

7

28

17

21

5

26

27

23

22

32

24

5
11

23

Urban County Exceptions

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

Block Groups > 45.14% LMI

1 - Austin
2 - Barton Creek
3 - Bee Cave
4 - Briarcliff
5 - Cedar Park
6 - Creedmoor
7 - Elgin
8 - Garfield
9 - Hornsby Bend
10 - Hudson Bend
11 - Jollyville
12 - Jonestown
13 - Lago Vista
14 - Lakeway
15 - Leander
16 - Lost Creek
17 - Manchaca
18 - Manor

19 - Mustang Ridge
20 - Pflugerville
21 - Point Venture
22 - Rollingwood
23 - Round Rock
24 - San Leanna
25 - Shady Hollow
26 - Sunset Valley
27 - The Hills
28 - Volente
29 - Webberville
30 - Wells Branch
31 - West Lake Hills
32 - Windemere 27

map 3-5
Block Groups of at Least 45.14% LMI, 2010

Incorporated Places

Source:  2012 HUD LMI Estimates

12



map 3-6
Comparison of LMI and Racially/Ethnically
Concentrated Block Groups, 2010

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

1

20

8

13

14

2

10

25

15

31

18

3

12

6

16

4

9

19

30

29

7

28

17

21

5

26

27

23

22

32

24

5
11

23

Urban County Exceptions

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

Block Groups > 45.14% LMI

Black AND Hispanic Concentration

Asian AND Black Concentration

Black Concentration

Hispanic Concentration

Asian Concentration

1 - Austin
2 - Barton Creek
3 - Bee Cave
4 - Briarcliff
5 - Cedar Park
6 - Creedmoor
7 - Elgin
8 - Garfield
9 - Hornsby Bend
10 - Hudson Bend
11 - Jollyville
12 - Jonestown
13 - Lago Vista
14 - Lakeway
15 - Leander
16 - Lost Creek
17 - Manchaca
18 - Manor

19 - Mustang Ridge
20 - Pflugerville
21 - Point Venture
22 - Rollingwood
23 - Round Rock
24 - San Leanna
25 - Shady Hollow
26 - Sunset Valley
27 - The Hills
28 - Volente
29 - Webberville
30 - Wells Branch
31 - West Lake Hills
32 - Windemere

Incorporated Places

Sources:  2010 Census SF-1,
2012 HUD LMI Estimates

13



map 3-7
Impacted Block Groups, 2010

1

20

8

13

14

2

10

25

15

31

18

3

12

6

16

4

9

19

30

29

7

28

17

21

5

26

27

23

22

32

24

5
11

23

Urban County Exceptions

Impacted Block Groups

1 - Austin
2 - Barton Creek
3 - Bee Cave
4 - Briarcliff
5 - Cedar Park
6 - Creedmoor
7 - Elgin
8 - Garfield
9 - Hornsby Bend
10 - Hudson Bend
11 - Jollyville
12 - Jonestown
13 - Lago Vista
14 - Lakeway
15 - Leander
16 - Lost Creek
17 - Manchaca
18 - Manor

19 - Mustang Ridge
20 - Pflugerville
21 - Point Venture
22 - Rollingwood
23 - Round Rock
24 - San Leanna
25 - Shady Hollow
26 - Sunset Valley
27 - The Hills
28 - Volente
29 - Webberville
30 - Wells Branch
31 - West Lake Hills
32 - Windemere

Incorporated Places

29

Sources:  2010 Census SF-1,
2012 HUD LMI Estimates

14



43

map 3-8
Regional Composite Opportunity Index, August 2012

Source: Kirwan Institute for the Study of Race and Ethnicity,
The Ohio State Universtiy

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!

!

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

I- 
35

W
 H

w
y 71

State Hwy 71

State H
w

y 130

S H
w

y 183

US Hwy 290St
at

e 
Lo

op
 1

US Hwy 183

S 
M

o-
P

ac
 E

xp
y

St
at

e 
Lo

op
 3

60

N 
La

m
ar

 B
lvd

St
at

e 
Sp

ur
 2

75

FM
 1

32
5

Lo
ck

ha
rt 

H
w

y

S Lamar B
lvd

Airport Blvd

State Hwy 45

FM 973

Hwy 71 E

W US Hwy 290

I-35

W Hwy 2
90

US Hwy 183

State Hwy 45

US
 H

wy
 2

90

I- 
35

US
 H

wy
 2

90

I- 
35

1

20

8

13

14

2

10

25

15

31

18

3

12

6

16

4

9

19

30

29

7

28

17

21

5

26

27

23

22

32

24

5
11

Major Roads

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! Impacted Block Groups

Composite Opportunity Score
Very Low

Low

Moderate

High

Very High

Urban County Exceptions

1 - Austin
2 - Barton Creek
3 - Bee Cave
4 - Briarcliff
5 - Cedar Park
6 - Creedmoor
7 - Elgin
8 - Garfield
9 - Hornsby Bend
10 - Hudson Bend
11 - Jollyville
12 - Jonestown
13 - Lago Vista
14 - Lakeway
15 - Leander
16 - Lost Creek
17 - Manchaca
18 - Manor

19 - Mustang Ridge
20 - Pflugerville
21 - Point Venture
22 - Rollingwood
23 - Round Rock
24 - San Leanna
25 - Shady Hollow
26 - Sunset Valley
27 - The Hills
28 - Volente
29 - Webberville
30 - Wells Branch
31 - West Lake Hills
32 - Windemere

15



ATTACHMENT C 

 
Proposed Service Delivery Model: 

Family System of Care  

 Family System of Care Proposal Summary 

 Family System of Care Model: Overview and 

Rationale 

16



Family System of Care 

Proposal Summary  

 

Overview: Family system of care model to address multiple, complex needs of whole families in an 

effort to create lasting, positive change for children in these families. Services will focus on families with 

children in the outlying areas of Travis County, specifically impacted block groups identified by CDBG. 

This model will adapt “system of care” principles to address at least five of our social service issue areas: 

 
 

Like the system of care model in the Office of Children’s Services, care coordination will be central to 

this effort.  The primary vendor(s) selected for this pilot will be responsible for this function; ensuring 

that an appropriate array of services is available for each client family. 

 

Target population 

 Low-opportunity area (use CDBG map 3.8) 

 Families with children 

 Accommodate families referred from Travis County HHS programs 

 

 

 

17



Goals 

Service system to be purchased will be able to address all of the following goals. While all families to be 

served will not necessarily need help in all areas, it is expected that each will be an issue for some 

families.  In each case, follow up will track outcomes at 6 and 12 months post-service. 

 

Housing  

 Stable housing while in the program, stay where they are or move to improved housing 

situation.   

 Follow up at 6 months and 12 months to determine that their housing situation stays stable. 

 Increased family financial resources (earned, unearned) 

 

WFD/Adult Education 

 Enter or advance in the workforce (gain employment, increase earnings) 

 Increase earned income to support greater stability (increased family financial resources- 

earned) 

 Retain employment (at 6 and 12 months) 

 Earn recognized credentials both academic (diploma, GED, degree) or vocational (employer 

recognized certification) 

 

Child and Youth 

 Appropriate developmental functioning 

 School ready/ school performance  

 Social engagement 

 Social/emotional function 

 Avoid or resolve CPS, juvenile justice issues   

 6 and 12 month follow-up 

 

Behavioral Health 

 Obtaining clinical assessment of need (as indicated, appropriate) 

 Connected to mental health services based on needs 

 Self-report of status (post-test, 6 and 12 month follow-up) 

 Decrease debilitating symptoms 

 

Food and Transportation 

 Regular access to fresh and healthy food (see CHIP) 

 Reasonable plan for transportation to work and education activities during service and at exit 

 

Service model 

The desired service model builds upon the system-of-care approach that HHS has promoted for 

children’s services. Our intent is to broaden the focus to intentionally address the whole family and 

measure success in achievement of goals across multiple dimensions: child and youth development, 

18



housing stability, employment and earnings, education, behavioral health, and basic needs – specifically 

access to food and transportation. 

 Home-centered services, starting with assessments of the family  

 Centralized coordination of services to do assessments, develop service plan, and coordinate 

and monitor services 

 Access to a network of services that can address each of the issue areas listed above 

 Step down planning, community integration and aftercare support -- ideas include 6 and 12 

month engagement following the exit of program, consider phases of service (intensive, 

supportive services, check in)  

 

Beyond these core components, it is up to proposers to describe how they will build and maintain the 

desired system of service to families. 

 

Service component notes 

 Housing:  may include financial assistance, home repair, TBRA, permanent supportive housing 

 Employment: meet goals as described below or demonstrate that they are on a pathway (i.e. 

enrolled to receive services from other public entities, ex. DARS, that provide assistance to 

eligible residents) 

 Behavioral Health: provide clinical assessment (as indicated, appropriate), connect to 

appropriate services 

 One objective of this pilot is to test service delivery approaches that will better serve families in 

the outlying areas of Travis County. As such, strategies that move families into housing within 

the City of Austin may be part of the program, strategies that enable families to remain in their 

home (or home neighborhood) must also be included. 

 

19



Family System of Care Model: Overview and Rationale 

 

About System of Care and Wraparound 

The design of the proposed Family System of Care Model is adapted from the wraparound approach and 

System of Care framework. Wraparound is a holistic method of serving individuals with complex needs 

(most typically children, youth, and their families) through an intensive, individualized care planning and 

management process.1 The wraparound method of service delivery reflects the values of the System of 

Care Framework which emphasizes services that are community-based, family-driven, youth-guided, 

individualized, coordinated, and culturally and linguistically competent.2 

 

Benefits of a System of Care Approach 

Human service systems have often used siloed approaches to separately address social service needs of 

the populations they serve. Research shows a more integrative approach creates more effective and 

efficient service delivery systems, which better address the complex and multiple client needs within 

coordinated systems.3 In addition to better meeting the needs of families, coordinated systems are 

more cost efficient because they ensure similar services are not duplicated through different systems.  

 

A national, multi-state evaluation of children served through the system of care framework indicated an 

increase in child and youth functioning, school attendance, and behavioral and emotional strengths, as 

well as a reduction in behavioral and emotional problems, anxiety and depression, and strain and stress 

in caregivers. Implementing a system of care approach can also lead to lower costs by reducing inpatient 

services, residential treatment and out of home placements.4 

Implementation in Travis County and Texas   

The System of Care framework has already been adopted by a number of partners in the local Travis 
County community, including the local mental health authority, juvenile justice system, and many local 
school districts. Several other communities in Texas have also adopted this model, and through a grant 
from SAMHSA, the Texas Health and Human Services Commission is currently working to expand this 
promising practice across the state.5 
 

The following are some local examples where services are provided through a wraparound approach 

and/or are influenced by a System of Care philosophy. 

 

Children’s Partnership (TCHHS/VS): The Children’s Partnership (TCP) provides services and supports to 

children and youth with complex mental health needs and their families. The goal of The Children’s 

                                                           
1
 “Wraparound Basics,” National Wraparound Initiative, accessed March 18, 2014, 

http://www.nwi.pdx.edu/wraparoundbasics.shtml 
2
 “Texas System of Care, A Better Future for Texas Children: Impact of System of Care,” Texas System of Care, accessed March 

18, 2014, http://www.txsystemofcare.org/wp-content/uploads/2013/02/TXSOC_outcomes.pdf. 
3
 Michael Smith, “Building an Interoperable Human Services System: How Allegheny County Transformed Systems, Services and 

Outcomes for Vulnerable Children and Families,” 2008, 
http://www.alleghenycounty.us/uploadedFiles/DHS/SOC_Building_Interoperable_Human_Services_System-10-30-08.pdf 
4
 “Texas System of Care, A Better Future for Texas Children: Impact of System of Care,” Texas System of Care, accessed March 

18, 2014, http://www.txsystemofcare.org/wp-content/uploads/2013/02/TXSOC_outcomes.pdf. 
5
 Ibid. 

20



Partnership is to help families increase their capacity to live, work, learn and participate fully in their 

community. Many of the children and youth have been in psychiatric hospitals, residential treatment 

centers, and are at risk of removal due to their psychiatric needs.  TCP partners with families to develop 

an individualized plan of care that builds on the strengths of the child, the family, and the team. The 

child and family take the lead in determining their needs and sharing their interests. Services are 

provided in the families’ home or at community locations, using the wraparound process. The child and 

family take the lead in setting goals and deciding how to meet them. Staff members, families, and 

providers create a unique plan of care for each child and youth.6 

 

CPS Reintegration (TCHHS/VS): The CPS Reintegration Project (CRP) provides home- and community-

based services to a small number of youth who are involved in the CPS system and have mental health 

challenges. The goal of the Project is to reduce the number of youth involved in the Child Welfare 

System by helping families safely manage the mental health issues of the youth after discharge from a 

residential treatment center (RTC). CRP utilizes the Wraparound Process, which means that the youth 

and family take the lead in setting goals and deciding how to meet them. Each youth/family is assigned 

to the Care Coordinator (CC), who helps the family communicate their strengths and needs and build up 

and access community resources.7 

 

Permanent Supportive Housing: In 2010 the ECHO Continuum of Care Committee and the City of Austin 

adopted a permanent supporting housing strategy and began working toward the development of new 

permanent supportive housing units. The local community chose this approach due to its proven success 

as a model to house chronically homeless individuals. Supportive housing combines affordable housing 

with services that help people who face the most complex challenges to live with stability, autonomy 

and dignity. Supportive housing improves housing stability, employment, mental and physical health, 

and school attendance; and reduces active substance use. People in supportive housing live more stable 

and productive lives. Supportive housing costs essentially the same amount as keeping people homeless 

and stuck in the revolving door of high-cost crisis care and emergency housing. Supportive housing has 

also been shown to improve the safety of neighborhoods, beautify city blocks with new or rehabilitated 

properties, and increase or stabilize property values over time.8 

  

Two Generation Models:  Two-generation, or multi-generational, approaches focus on creating 

opportunities for and addressing the needs of both vulnerable household adults and children – 

together. Two generation approaches can be applied to programs, policies, systems, and research, with 

a primary goal to blend services and target long-term, whole-family outcomes. The Two Generation 

Strategy Theory of Change posits that the combination of high-quality services for children (especially 

young children) combined with high quality employment and education services for adults (leading to 

                                                           
6
 “The Children’s Partnership,” Travis County Health and Human Service and Veterans Service, last modified May 29, 2013, 

http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/children_services/mental_health/children_partnership.asp. 
7
 “Child Protective Services Reintegration Project (CRP),” Travis County Health and Human Services and Veterans Service, last 

modified January 29, 2013, http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/children_services/welfare/reintegration.asp. 
8
 “What is Supportive Housing,” CSH, accessed March 19, 2014, http://www.csh.org/supportive-housing-facts/introduction-to-

supportive-housing/. 

21



high-skill/high-wage employment), supplemented by wrap-around family and peer support services, will 

lead to long-term academic and economic success for low-income families.9 There is growing local 

momentum for Two Generation service models. Workforces Solutions, the local workforce board, has 

expressed an internal commitment to strive for whole-family outcomes and coordinate agency services 

across the family spectrum—early childhood, youth, and adult family stability. Since the spring of 2013, 

the Ray Marshall Center has convened a local Two Generation Advisory Committee of planners and 

experts, with a goal to influence community plans and local service strategies. The School Readiness 

Action Plan for Austin and Travis County includes among its strategies to “Expand availability of two-

generation education programs for vulnerable families.”10 

                                                           
9
 Tara Smith, “Dual Generation Strategy Initiative Research Brief,” Ray Marshall Center for the Study of Human 

Resources, February 2012. 
10

 “2012-2015 School Readiness Action Plan for Austin Travis County,” accessed March 21, 2014, 
http://www.unitedwayaustin.org/wp-
content/uploads/2012/07/UWATX_SchoolReadinessActionPlan_full_May2012.pdf 

22



ATTACHMENT D 

 
Options for Social Service Investment 

Expansion   

23



Options for Social Service Investment Expansion 

For FY14, Commissioners Court allocated an additional $1 million in ongoing funds to expand our investments in purchased social services. In addition, the 

Court expressed an interest in increasing this amount to $2 million in ongoing funds starting in FY15. Based upon input from the community, interests 

expressed by the Court, and Department understanding of both community needs and best practices in service delivery, the following investment options 

were considered: 

 Pro Con Recommendation 

Across the board 
increase to existing 
contracts 

 Quick execution 

 Simple approach to increase investment in 
community 

 Unlikely to demonstrate significant impact. 

 Maintains closed system 

 Significant administrative burden 

Not recommended 

Apply to maintain 
current “single-term” 
funded services 

 Requires no action outside of regular renewal 
process 

 Maintains closed system 

 Does not allow for review and 
prioritization based upon County priorities 

 Maintains existing services, does not 
expand  

Not recommended 

Focus investment on 
one or two issue areas, 
with optional 
geographic targeting 

 Offers open process to potential providers 

 Allows focus on child and youth development and 
workforce development 

 Potential to create some significant impact within 2 
priority areas 

 May target services to areas with very low/low 
opportunity 

 Acts as CDBG Fair Housing Activity if it addresses 
inequity in the CDBG service area 

 Impacts only within limited issue area(s) 

 Requires a procurement process. 

 Takes about 5 months to put into place 

 Does not require a holistic approach for 
long term change 

 Limiting service area, if geographic 
targeting used 

Not recommended. 

Pilot investment in 
Family system of care 

 Offers open process to potential providers 

 Supports geographic targeting to services with very 
low/low opportunity 

 Fully address family needs 

 Potential to create significant, lasting impact for 
families served 

 Build upon and integrates successes from multiple 
issue areas 

 Acts as CDBG Fair Housing Activity due to 
addressing inequity in the CDBG service area 

 Requires respondents to be creative, use significant 
collaboration and effectively use community 
resources to address a variety of needs. 

 Requires a procurement process 

 Takes about 5 months to put into place 

 Challenging model to put into place 

 Limiting service area 

Recommended for 
action 

 

24



Health and Human Services
& Veterans Service

Proposed Strategy for New Investments:
Family System of Care

April 1, 2014

25



• Court Action: During the FY2014 Budget process the Commissioner’s Court 
allocated $1million for new social services investments (up to $2million for 
FY15), and directed the Department to work with community stakeholders to 
identify priorities for this new funding.

• HHS/VS Response: 

o Met with providers and partner agencies to collect input 

o Reviewed results of CDBG Public Engagement processes

o Reviewed data detailing geographic trends and areas of need in outlying 
areas of Travis County

o Explored promising service delivery models

o Developed options and recommendation

Background

26



Community Input: Providers and Partners
Process  
• Collected service/issue area recommendations from providers through 

two forums (72 participants) and written forms (48 received by deadline) 

• Met with system level partners to learn about leverage opportunities and 
gaps in current service delivery system (6 meetings)

Results
• Top tier (most volume): need for early childhood and child/youth services

• Second tier: housing and workforce development

• Third tier: needs of special populations

• Cross cutting: culturally competent services, services in outlying areas, 
whole family/wraparound approach, coordinated services, transportation 
and other access issues, gaps due to changes/policies at the state and 
federal level.

27



Community Input: CDBG Public Engagement
Process 
• Public hearings every February and March (265 attendees from 2006‐13) 

• Surveys available for those unable to attend hearing (150 surveys from 2006‐13) 

• Targeted outreach with social service providers in strategic planning years

• Project proposals available year round for neighborhoods or agencies

• Input helps prioritize category of need and identify project ideas or needs

Results (Resident input) 
• Top tier: Infrastructure

• Second tier: Community services. (Community services ranked highest need in 
2011 process. Youth services and supports most important community services 
need in all years.)

• Third tier: Housing

28



Need for Services in the Outlying Areas
• The population living outside of the City of Austin has grown

– Increased by 73% since 2000

– Made up 27% of the Travis County population in 2012 compared with 
21% in 2000

– 17 % of County residents lived in an unincorporated area in 2012 
compared with 14% in 2000 

• Services have not followed the shift in population
– Less than 9% of purchased services are being provided to the 

unincorporated areas of the county while these areas make up about 
17% of the total population

• Specific areas of high need can be strategically targeted for 
services (see map on next page)

29



Services can be 
targeted to 
impacted block 
groups and areas 
of very low or 
low opportunity.  

30



Recommended Model: Family System of Care
• Implement a Family System of Care Model to address multiple 

complex needs of whole families in an effort to create lasting, 
positive change for children in these families.

• Focus on families with children in the outlying areas of Travis 
County, targeting areas with very low/low opportunity. 

• Goals address five existing HHS/VS social service issue areas:
– Child and Youth Development

– Workforce Development

– Housing Continuum

– Behavioral Health

– Food and Transportation

31



Families 
with 

Children

Families 
with 

Children

Child and Youth 
Development:

• School ready/ school 
success

• Social/emotional 
engagement

•Avoid CPS/Juvenile 
Issues

Child and Youth 
Development:

• School ready/ school 
success

• Social/emotional 
engagement

•Avoid CPS/Juvenile 
Issues

Housing Continuum

•Stable housing during 
program

•6 & 12 month follow‐up 
after services

• Increase family financial 
resources

Housing Continuum

•Stable housing during 
program

•6 & 12 month follow‐up 
after services

• Increase family financial 
resources

Behavioral Health:

•Appropriate clinical 
assessment

•Connection to 
appropriate services

• Self‐reported status

•Decrease debilitating 
symptoms

Behavioral Health:

•Appropriate clinical 
assessment

•Connection to 
appropriate services

• Self‐reported status

•Decrease debilitating 
symptoms

Food and 
Transportation:

•Regular access to 
healthy food

•Reasonable plan for 
transportation

Food and 
Transportation:

•Regular access to 
healthy food

•Reasonable plan for 
transportation

Workforce 
Development:

•Gain employment, 
increase earnings

•Retain employment, 6 & 
12 months after services

• Earn recognized 
credentials

Workforce 
Development:

•Gain employment, 
increase earnings

•Retain employment, 6 & 
12 months after services

• Earn recognized 
credentials

32



Benefits of Recommended Model
• Builds on promising practices of System of Care and wraparound

• Is holistic and flexible to address any type of need

• Intentional dual generation strategy to addresses the needs of 
both parents and children

• Efficient and effective service delivery with coordination across 
services and among agencies

• Creates access to services in high need outlying areas of the 
County 

• Potential to create significant, lasting impact for the families that 
are served

33



Other Options
Option Pro Con

Across the board increase 
to existing contracts

• Quick execution

• Simple approach to increase investment in 
community

• Unlikely to demonstrate significant 
impact.

• Maintains closed system

• Significant administrative burden

Apply to maintain current 
“single‐term” funded 
services

• Requires no action outside of regular 
renewal process

• Maintains closed system

• Does not allow for review and 
prioritization based upon County priorities

• Maintains existing services, does not 
expand 

Focus investment on one 
or two issue areas, with 
optional geographic 
targeting

• Offers open process to potential providers

• Allows focus on child and youth 
development and workforce development

• Potential to create some significant impact 
within 2 priority areas

• May target services to areas with very 
low/low opportunity

• Acts as CDBG Fair Housing Activity if it 
addresses inequity in the CDBG service area

• Impacts only within limited issue area(s)

• Requires a procurement process.

• Takes about 5 months to put into place

• Does not require a holistic approach for 
long term change

• Limiting service area, if geographic 
targeting used

34



Summary
Staff Recommendations: 

• The HHS/VS Department recommends implementing a Family 
System of Care model to serve families living in impacted block 
groups and low opportunity areas in the outlying areas of the 
county. 

• The Department requests permission to offer a competitive 
bidding process to select vendors to implement this model using 
the allocated funding for new social service investments.

Next Steps:

• Work with Purchasing to execute procurement process with a 
goal to implement new services starting October 1.

35



Questions or Comments

36



 
 
 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to the County Judge's office, agenda@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's 
meeting. 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Meeting Date:  April 1, 2014 
 
Prepared By/Phone Number:  Juanita Jackson/854-4467 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  Sherri E. Fleming,  
County Executive for Health and Human Services and Veterans Service 
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:  Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Consider and Take Appropriate Action on Briefing from the Sustainable Food Policy 
Board On The Board’s Annual Internal Review For The Period January 1, 2013 – 
December 2013. 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
The Sustainable Food Policy Board serves as an advisory body to the City Council and 
Travis County Commissioner's Court concerning the need to improve the availability of 
safe, nutritious, locally, and sustainably-grown food at reasonable prices for all 
residents, particularly those in need, by coordinating the relevant activities of city 
government, as well as nonprofit organizations, and food and farming businesses. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Staff recommends this item. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
See attached report. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
See attached report. 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS:  
Mary Etta Gerhardt, Assistant County Attorney’ 
Leslie Browder, County Executive, Planning and Budget Office 
Cyd Grimes, CPM, Travis County Purchasing Agent 
Nicki Riley, CAP, CMA, Travis County Auditor 
Patty Lennon, Financial Analyst, Travis County Auditor’s Office 
Aerin Toussaint, Analyst, Planning and Budget Office 
Sherri Fleming, County Executive, HHSVS 

Item 25



  
 
 
 

Annual Internal Review 
 

 
This report covers the time period of 1/1/2013 to 12/31/2013 

 

  
City of Austin/Travis County Sustainable Food Policy Board 

 
 
 
 
The Board/Commission mission statement (per the City Code) is: 
The Board shall serve as an advisory body to the City Council and Travis County 
Commissioner's Court concerning the need to improve the availability of safe, nutritious, 
locally, and sustainably-grown food at reasonable prices for all residents, particularly 
those in need, by coordinating the relevant activities of city government, as well as non- 
profit organizations, and food and farming businesses. 

 
 
 

1.   Describe the board’s actions supporting their mission during the previous 
calendar year. Address all elements of the board’s mission statement as 
provided in the relevant sections of the City Code. 

 
The Sustainable Food Policy Board (SFPB) underwent an annual work planning process 
during the first quarter of 2013. The following are outcomes of that work plan, as well as 
a continuation of the activities from the previous year's work. Priority objectives and 
working groups were established as outlined in #2 below to work toward the board's far- 
reaching mission. 

 
The 13-member volunteer board concentrated on strengthening economic vitality, social 
equity and natural resource protection in our local food system by engaging community 
stakeholders and expertise through working groups. This informed board 
recommendations to policy makers summarized below. Major accomplishments include: 
updating sustainable urban agriculture in the City’s land use development code, detailing 
priorities based on recommendations from the Economic Impact of Austin’s Food Sector 
report, facilitating the creation of an annual farmers market health permit and fee 
structure, and supporting budget allocations for a Food Policy Manager City staff 
position and efforts to increase local participation in, and economic impacts of, nutrition 
assistance programs such as Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP). 

 
The SFPB continues to keep abreast of legislative developments at both the federal and 
state levels. Cuts or limitations to federal nutrition programs will have a direct effect on 



Sustainable Food Policy Board | Annual Review and Work Plan
2013 
Page 2 

 

 
the ability of Travis County citizens to remain food secure, and will affect both county 
and city budgets. Members of the board regularly meet with members of the state 
legislature and federal congressional delegation, as well as testify in committees on 
agriculture and nutrition issues. A summary of food-related legislation passed during the 
Texas 83rd Session was given at the Board’s June 24, 2013 meeting. 
http://www.austintexas.gov/edims/document.cfm?id=193688 

 
In addition, the Board’s food system-related input into the CDC Community 
Transformation Grant that was awarded to, and is administered by, HHSD, led to 10 
mini-grants of $2000 to support community work toward a more sustainable and just 
food system. 

 
 Working Group Highlights 

Food Security Working Group: 
The Food Security working group in 2013 included representation from the Austin-Travis 
County Health and Human Services Department, the Sustainable Food Center, Meals on 
Wheels and More, the Texas Hunger Initiative, Austin ISD, the Center for Public Policy 
Priorities, St. David's Foundation, and the Capital Area Food Bank of Texas. The group 
addressed issues related to nutrition programs outreach and access, food insecurity, and 
food deserts. Many of these issues were considered in the context of the Community 
Health Improvement Plan (CHIP) coordinated by the Austin-Travis County Health and 
Human Services Department. The Food Security working group will continue to be the 
primary body working on food access policies for the CHIP over the next two years. 
Related to the CHIP, a healthy food zone advisory group was formed to review best 
practices and make recommendations on creating healthy food zones around schools and 
other locations where children congregate. The Food Security working group also 
continued to advocate for increased funding for SNAP and WIC outreach as well as 
benefit incentive programs at area farmers markets. Although the city council did not 
adopt these recommendations wholly, members of the working group continue to work 
with members of the Public Health and Human Services Committee to address future 
budget recommendations. 

 
Community Engagement Working Group: 
The working group included members from the Texas Department of State Health 
Services, UT-Austin, and Sustainable Food Center. This year, the working group added a 
co-chair to help the group devise ways to facilitate community inputs and increase 
awareness of the board’s work in the general public and help advertise ways to get 
involved. This included revising the draft of an Engagement Process Map for Community 
Stakeholders (and SFPB working group members), which outlines ways to connect SFPB 
members with communities of expertise and helps enables civic participation in the SFPB 
process. The group also updated/improved the SFPB web presence by adding a link on 
B&C site to Travis Co HHS site to promote cross traffic and created a “ Get Involved” 
page. The working group solidified liaison/connections with City of Austin Office of 
Sustainability in order to make better use of existing social media channels and contacts 
to promote SFPB work. The group also created a “Community Partner Distribution List” 
and solicited community inputs to better reach potential workgroup members and alert 
them to items/events of interest. Finally, the CEOR workgroup hosted the Community 



Sustainable Food Policy Board | Annual Review and Work Plan
2013 
Page 3 

 

 
Engagement & Outreach event for Food Day 2013, which solidified the SFPB’s first use 
of partner social media channels to promote the event though coordination with the 
Office of Sustainability. Co-chairs engaged and collated the feedback to help inform the 
2014 work plan. 

 
 
 
Codes and Metrics Working Group: 
The working group, (formed in March of 2013) with Board Member Katherine Nicely as 
the chair and Heather Frambach (SUACG) and Kate Vickery (SUACG) as co-chairs, 
decided this year to take on the task to update the existing Urban Farm Ordinance. The 
first urban farm ordinance went into effect in the land development code in April 2000, 
making urban farms a permitted use in most zoning districts, including residential. The 
city's Planning Commission voted to initiate a process to update that ordinance on 
February 26, 2013. The 2013 draft Urban Farm Ordinance was created with extensive 
stakeholder input; drafts were reviewed by staff from the Office of Sustainability, 
Planning & Development Review, Code Compliance, Environmental Health, and 
Watershed Protection Department in July-August, 2013. The working group coordinated 
with City Staff as Watershed and PDRD and included them in as stakeholders throughout 
the process. Structure of working group: Advisory board and Stakeholder group. List is 
available per request. 

 
The Working Group used a Context Sensitive Solutions and Public Involvement 
Approach. A series of four public engagement sessions in East Austin were organized. 
Session #1 (Animal Raising & Aquaponics-April 22); Session #2 (Site Requirements, 
Wholesaling & Labor-May 1); Session #3 (Byproducts, Environmental Health & 
Sustainability-May 15).  A good sample of community members with an average of 70 
people attending each meeting. Members of the working group also met with 
neighborhood groups, environmental justice activists, boards, commissions, city and 
county staff, and members of the region’s varied urban food producers. A “process 
document” can be found here:  http://bit.ly/19hDDg9. It served as backup throughout the 
process at: the Sustainable Food Policy Board (August 26-included public hearing), PC 
Codes & Ordinances subcommittee (September 17-included public hearing), Planning 
Commission (September 24-included public hearing), City Council Meeting (November 
21-included public hearing). In addition, letters from stakeholders were received 
(http://bit.ly/16YWRjV). 

 
The Urban Farm Ordinance went up for City Council on November 21, 2013 and passed 
with some changes. The ordinance honors and maintains the ability for the urban farm 
use to be allowed "in every zoning district". The ordinance creates market gardens, 
allows third-party sales of up to 20% of the farm stand's sales area and be produced in the 
state of Texas, urban farms can have up to two dwellings on the property, animal raising 
and processing: raising fowl, rabbits and fish (aquaponics only) allowed, but no 
processing or composting in single family use but can be allowed in commercial uses and 
other zoning categories, and urban farms (in SF) will be able to apply for up to six 
Temporary Use Permits per year to host non-educational outdoor events. Non-code 
recommendations were also made by the working group. These can be found here: 
http://www.austintexas.gov/edims/document.cfm?id=193493. 



Sustainable Food Policy Board | Annual Review and Work Plan
2013 
Page 4 

 

 
Meat Processing Working Group: 
Farmers and others have been meeting to identify the roadblocks to raising and selling 
more local meat grown using sustainable methods. Recent meetings include a statewide 
gathering of farmers at the annual Texas Organic Farmers and Gardeners Conference 
held in Houston in January as well as a Poultry Processing Summit held in Elgin in 
February. Concerns tend to vary according to the size of the farm and its location. 
However, there was repeated concern over what is perceived as lack of support for 1) 
farmer-driven efforts to create mobile processing units and innovative, sustainable on-
farm processing systems (e.g., zero-waste, humane, composting, etc.) and 2) existing 
small processing facilities. 

 

Lack of support, includes: 
 

● regulators who give conflicting and unclear information (e.g., “You ask three 
inspectors, you get three different answers.”); 

● inappropriate regulations intended for massive factory processing systems 
enforced on small, family operations; 

● perceived hostile county inspectors. (For instance, while the state controls meat 
manufacturing, counties and cities control retail distribution. Several participants 
identified Travis County as a particularly difficult county to work in because 
inspectors choose a strict interpretation of rules. Many initial participants in the 
working group requested anonymity fearing retribution from regulatory officials.) 

 
Given concerns about confusing and punishing regulations, several growers from the 
working group lobbied the state’s Public Health Committee during the 2013 legislative 
session. The result was that HB 1392, called the DSHS Better Communications Act, 
passed and now requires the Department of State Health Services to respond to requests 
about how the food safety regulations apply to specific situations. HB 1392 also requires 
the agency to state its interpretation of the law, and to protect farmers who comply in 
good faith from being fined. 

 

Going forward, the working group will prioritize farmers concerns and produce 
recommendations on what steps can be taken to help local meat farmers succeed, 
particularly in Travis County. 

 

Healthy and Local Food in City/County Venues: 
This group informed the board’s January 28, 2013 recommendation to Council and the 
Commissioner’s Court, which led to Austin City Council Resolution 20130228-038, The 
SFPB working group was then dissolved. An interdepartmental team charged with 
developing healthy and local food procurement policy recommendations began 
convening in March of 2013.  Team included staff from: COA Purchasing, Building 
Services, Health and Human Services, Parks and Recreation, Economic Development, 
Convention Center, Human Resources, Aviation, Libraries, Office of Sustainability and 
Travis County. The Deputy Purchasing Officer, Yolanda Miller and HHSD Chronic 
Disease Prevention and Control Manager, Cassie DeLeon presented initial 
recommendations to PHHS on June 18, 2013 and to the City Manager on September 11, 
2013.  The recommendations were scheduled to be presented as a Council Briefing on 



Sustainable Food Policy Board | Annual Review and Work Plan
2013 
Page 5 

 

 
September 26, but were rescheduled to November 7.  On November 4, the workgroup 
was notified that the Council Briefing was pulled from the agenda and is on hold until 
further notice. 
http://www.austintexas.gov/edims/document.cfm?id=191575. 

 
 
 

Retail Capacity Building Working Group: 
This working group never got off the ground as intended. However, a related group 
(initiated in 2012) met throughout the year to developing a new annual farmers market 
permitting system and fee schedule. The group included SFPB representation, City staff 
from HHSD Environmental Health Services and stakeholders representing nine area 
farmers market. The group presented to PHHS on several occasions to ensure a fair 
farmers market ordinance that went into effect on November 4, 2013. 

 
  Board Recommendations and Letters  

Available on the SFPB’s web page: http://www.austintexas.gov/page/sfpb-resources 
 

Follow-up Letter: SNAP Outreach/Enrollment Efforts and Incentives Funding (January 
28, 2013) 
Letter restates the SFPB’s initial recommendation made in April 2012 to increase 
outreach/enrollment and funding of efforts to make more fresh food available for those 
eligible for nutrition assistance programs like SNAP and WIC. 
http://www.austintexas.gov/sites/default/files/files/Health/SustainableFood/SNAP%20Fol 
low-up%20Letter%20to%20Mayor%20and%20Council.pdf 
Food Security Chair, Kathy Green, summarized letter at February Council Public Health 
and Human Services (PHHS) Committee when HHSD related recommendations were 
presented. 

 
Healthy and Local Food Service Procurement Resolution (January 28, 2013) 
Recommendation for City and County to adopt 100% health standards for all food and 
beverage served on city and county property to employees and/or the public, including 
vending and food service. and to work with the Office of Sustainability to develop 
practices and policies which encourage the City’s purchase of food from local vendors 
and producers. 
http://www.austintexas.gov/sites/default/files/files/Health/SustainableFood/Healthy%20 
%20Local%20Food%20Resolution%20to%20Mayor%20and%20Council.pdf 

 
Land Use Development Code Urban Farm Update Resolution (January 28, 2013) 
Recommendation that the Planning Commission initiate an amendment to clarify, update 
and revise language in Austin City Code 25-2-863 and 25-2-7 related to urban farms, 
especially concerning: livestock, size of farm, employees and dwelling. That the SFPB 
will work with the Planning Commission and City staff to review zoning for additional 
opportunities to increase local food production. 
http://www.austintexas.gov/sites/default/files/files/Health/SustainableFood/Urban%20Far 
m%20Definition%20Update.pdf 

 
 
 



Sustainable Food Policy Board | Annual Review and Work Plan
2013 
Page 6 

 

 
Clarification of Economic Impact Analysis Recommendations (May 28, 2013) 
Recommends that the City and County allocate the resources and staff direction 
necessary in the 2013-2014 fiscal year to accomplish these summarized priorities: Create 
infrastructure and facilities, support local farmers to help increase markets, and 
implement innovative and proven practices that improve access to healthy and local foods 
and reduce hunger. 
http://www.austintexas.gov/sites/default/files/files/Health/SustainableFood/Rec._201305 
28-5Ar_Clarification.pdf 

 

 
 

Memo and Support Document: Economic Impact of Austin’s Food Sector (June 19, 
2013). Additional guidance and resources to reach SFPB Recommendations of May 28, 
2013. 

 
Non-code recommendations - Urban Farm Land Use Update (July 22, 2013) 
http://www.austintexas.gov/edims/document.cfm?id=193493 

 
Farmers Market Permits Ordinance Fee and Sampling Recommendation (August 26, 
2013) 
Encourages the Austin City Council to ensure that when a farmer or vendor procures 
multiple permits to operate at multiple sites on the same day, that the fees be reduced on 
those subsequent permits; and that sampling of “farm produce” can be done without a 
permit in accordance with HB 1382. 
http://www.austintexas.gov/edims/document.cfm?id=195711 

 
SNAP Outreach/Incentives Budget Reconsideration Request (August 26, 2013) 
Reiteration of recommendation that in its 2013/2014 fiscal budget the City allocate 
$50,000 to expand the Double Dollar Incentive Program at farmers markets and provide 
funding and staff support to increase outreach and assistance efforts toward SNAP 
enrollment and redemption. 
http://www.austintexas.gov/edims/document.cfm?id=195710 

 
Reiteration of Non-code Recommendations to Fund SNAP Technology at Farm Stands 
and Assist Urban Farms with Certificates of Occupancy (November 25, 2013) 
Recommendation that the City immediately allocate $5,000 to fund the technology to 
accept SNAP and WIC benefits at existing farm stands and contribute with local 
organizations and funders to double those benefits so that $1 of benefits buys $2 of farm 
produce. Reiteration of recommendation that a City staff person assist current urban 
farmers in expeditiously obtaining necessary Certificates of Occupancy. 
http://www.austintexas.gov/edims/document.cfm?id=202236 



Sustainable Food Policy Board | Annual Review and Work Plan
2013 
Page 7 

 

 

 
 
   Board-Related Council Resolutions and Ordinances   

Healthy and Local Food Service Procurement Resolution 20130228-038 (February 28, 
2013) 
The City Manager is directed to develop recommendations for a local and healthy food 
purchasing policy for the City of Austin and a healthy vending machine policy for City 
facilities. Included in the recommendations should be one option that ensures 100% 
healthy standards for all food and beverages served on city property, including vending 
and food service. The policy recommendations should be presented to the City Council 
Public Health and Human Services Committee before reporting to Council by May 
30,2013. 
http://www.austintexas.gov/sites/default/files/files/Health/SustainableFood/Local%20and 
%20Healthy%20Food%20Procurement%20Resolution%2020130228-038.pdf 

 
Food Sector Economic Impact Analysis Prioritization Resolution 20130411-038 (April 
11, 2013) 
The City Manager is directed to work with the SFPB to identify and prioritize 
recommendations from the Economic Impact of Austin's Food Sector Report; and to 
implement those recommendations that do not require budget amendments and work with 
the SFPB to identify short and long-term priorities and budget implications and report 
back to Council prior to the May 2, 2013 budget work session. 
http://www.austintexas.gov/edims/document.cfm?id=187319 

 
Implementation of SFPB and Staff EIA Priorities and Funding of FTE Resolution 
20130627-080 (June 27, 2013) 

 
The City Manager is directed to present options for funding in the FY2014 budget the 
creation of a city wide staff coordinator and implementation of the recommendations as 
prioritized by the Sustainable Food Policy Board and the city staff memo. The City 
Manager should consider FY2013 vacancy savings and reallocating unfilled part-time 
positions from other City food-related programs in order to limit the amount of new 
funding required for implementing these recommendations in FY2014. 
http://www.austintexas.gov/edims/document.cfm?id=193381 

 
Farmers Market Ordinance 20131024-016 (October 24, 2013) 
Amends City Code Chapter 10-3 (FOOD AND FOOD HANDLERS) Regarding 
Regulation of Individual Vendors at Farmers’ Markets. 
http://www.austintexas.gov/edims/document.cfm?id=199817 

 
Farmers Market Fees Amendment Ordinance 20131024-017 (October 24, 2013) 
Adds New Health and Human Services Farmers Market Vendor Permit Fees 
http://www.austintexas.gov/edims/document.cfm?id=199818 

 
Amendments to City Code Chapters 3-2,10-3, AND 14-7 Relating to Urban Farms. 
Ordinance 20131121-020 (November 21, 2013) 
http://www.austintexas.gov/sites/default/files/files/Health/SustainableFood/Ordinance_N 
o._20131121-020.pdf 



Sustainable Food Policy Board | Annual Review and Work Plan
2013 
Page 8 

 

 

 
 

2.   Determine if the board’s actions throughout the year comply with the 
mission statement. 

 
The Sustainable Food Policy Board’s actions this year comply with the mission 
statement. 

 
 
 

3.   List the board’s goals and objectives for the new calendar year. 
 
The Sustainable Food Policy Board will recommend policies that -    

1)   Increase farm land availability and preservation for sustainable food production --‐ 
especially for potential farmers with limited resources and from diverse 
communities.  

2)   Improve food access via improved transportation, affordability, and distribution  
addressed at different scales through participation in CodeNEXT process.  

3)   Continue retail capacity work that educates and promotes traditional and non--‐ 
traditional venues for healthy foods  

4)   Continue to promote enrollment and access to nutrition programs (including  
improving farmer access to/training on EBT technology)  

 
The working groups created to help the board meet its goals and objectives for 2014 are 
as follows (including working group chairperson): 
 
 Food Security/Kathy Green 
 Distribution & Processing of Local Meats/Erin Flynn 
 Community Outreach & Engagement/Brandon Reed 
 Codes & Ordinances/Selena Booth 
 Farmland Preservation and Access /Paula McDermott 
 Retail Capacity/Dominique Bowman 



Item 26







Page 1 of 5 

Chapter 38. Law Library1 

Contents: 
38.001 General Information 1 
38.002 Services 1 
38.003 Environment 3 
38.004 Compliance with Laws, Violations 5 
38.005 Application and Enforcement of Policy 5 
38.006 Posting of Law Library Policy 5 

38.001 General Information 
The Law Library is intended for use by persons engaged in law-related research. The 
purpose of this policy is to ensure that Law Library patrons are provided a pleasant 
atmosphere which that facilitates the performance of legal research. 

38.002 Services 
(a) Intent to utilize resources.  Patrons shall be engaged in activities associated 

with the use of a public law library while in the Law Library.  Patrons not 
engaged in reading, studying, or using Law Library materials may be required 
to leave the Law Library.  

(b) Library Hours.  The Law Library is open and staffed during County business 
hours of 8 a.m. to 5 p.m., Monday through Friday. Patrons who repeatedly 
delay exiting the Law Library until past 5 p.m. may have their library privileges 
restricted or suspended. 

(cb) Computer Uuse. There are two use categories of computers: General Use 
and Legal Research. 
(1) Use of Legal Research Computers.  
(1A) General Use Computers.  Computers labeled “General Use” may be 

used for non-legal research purposes. No time limit applies to use of 
General Use computers during the County business day with the 
following exceptions: 
(A) If another patron needs to use the computers for legal research 

and no other legal research computer is available; or 
(B) If, due to computer malfunctions or similar issues, two or fewer 

research computers are available for legal research. The 
Law Library provides computers to aide patrons in their legal 
research.  Use of the computers to play games, view 
pornography, or for other non-law related uses is not allowed 
and may lead to the patron being asked to leave or restricted 
from using the computers.  

                                                        

1 Chapter 38 was replaced on 4/7/2009, (Item 11). 



Page 2 of 5 

(2B) Legal Research Computers 
(A) All computers not labeled General Use are Legal Research 

computers.  
(B) Legal Research computers may be used for up to two (2) hours 

per County business day.   
(C) Patrons who are not attorneys, legal professionals, or law 

students may be required to have a Law Library staff member 
assist them in accessing and using online databases and/or 
conducting legal research. 

(D) Designated Legal Research computers. Computers designated 
as “Lexis-dedicated” or “Westlaw-dedicated”for specific 
databases, sites, and uses may must be used solely for the 
purpose of conducting legal research using those proprietary 
tools or for the use specified. Examples of specific 
sites/databases include Westlaw, Lexis, Texas.gov, and 
TexasLawHelp.org. Examples of specific uses include e-Filing 
and completing electronic forms.  Research-designated 
computers may be used for up to two (2) hours per County 
business day.  Patrons who are not attorneys, legal 
professionals or law students may be required to have a Law 
Library staff assist them in accessing and using online 
databases and/or conducting legal research.  

(2) Use of General Use Computers:  Computers labeled “General 
Use” may be used for non-legal research purposes. No time 
limit applies to use of General Use computers during the County 
business day.   

(3) Use of of theany computers to view pornography or play games may 
will result in the patronlead the patron to being asked to leave and/or 
being restricted from using the computers.  

(34) Patrons who use the Law Library printers/copiers/scanners will be 
charged $ .20 per printed page/image.  If a patron has accumulated 
unpaid printing/scanning charges amounting to $5.00 or more, the 
patron shall be restricted from printing/scanning until such time as the 
overdue sum is paid in full.  

(45) Computer use log.:  Law Library staff may maintain an electronic log of 
patron use of computers and internet access when required to 
document infractions of the policy. 

(dc) Circulation of Materials 
(1) The Law Library circulates materials to patrons who are current 

members of the State Bar of Texas and who present a valid 
membership card. 

(2) The Law Library shall discontinue circulating materials to patrons who 
fail to return materials.  



Page 3 of 5 

(3) Materials may be checked out for three business days. Materials 
marked “Reference” or “Library Use Only” may not be circulated.  

(4) Patrons who remove materials from the library without checking the 
materials out shall be asked to leave and restricted from returning. 

(ed) Fax Services.  The Law Library takes reasonable steps to protect the 
confidentially and privacy of faxes sent from the Law Library. However, if it 
comes to the attention of Law Library staff that a patron is sending faxes that, 
in the reasonable opinion of Law Library staff, are threatening in nature, the 
Law Library may discontinue providing the fax service to that patron 
permanently. All patron faxes will contain a cover sheet with this disclaimer: 

 “The information contained on the attached pages, which are being transmitted by a fax 
machine located in a Travis County Law Library, has been prepared, assembled, and 
compiled by a private citizen acting in his/her own capacity, without the control, direction, 
endorsement, sponsorship or control of Travis County. Travis County and the Law Library 
staff make no representation or warranty, express or implied, or assume any legal liability or 
responsibility for the contents of the information contained on these pages, nor for the 
accuracy, completeness, usefulness, timeliness, or fitness for any particular purpose of any 
such information.  Travis County, and its officials, agents and employees shall not be liable 
for any loss or injury, however arising, resulting in whole or in part from the use of any 
information contained in the information being transmitted or from any reliance placed 
thereon.” 

(fe) Equipment.  Patrons shall not attempt to make repairs or alterations to Law 
Library computers, software, or equipment. Patrons should instead ask staff 
for assistance.All software must be loaded by staff. 

(gf) Telephones. The Law Library provides a public access telephone for use by 
patrons.  Calls shall be limited to a maximum of 10 5 minutes. 

(hg) Restricted Areas.  Only public areas of the Law Library may be accessed by 
patrons. Patrons are restricted from entering: the Book Processing Room, 
Law Librarian offices, the corridor connecting the Law Library to RMCR 
offices, the area behind the Front Desk, and Copy Rooms. 

38.003 Environment 
(a) Disruptive behavior.  Patrons shall respect the rights of other patrons.  

Patrons shall not harass or annoy other patrons, or otherwise behave in a 
manner which may be reasonably expected to disturb others. 

(b) Theft and vandalism.  Patrons shall not write in, damage, remove pages, or 
mark on Law Library books or other Law Library property.  

(c) Noise.  To avoid disturbing other Law Library patrons, patrons shall observe 
silence except when requesting assistance from the reference desk staff.  
Noise and loud or profane language will not be tolerated. Patrons who need 
to converse must do so quietly so as not to disturb others.  



Page 4 of 5 

(d) Solicitation.  Selling and solicitation are prohibited in the Law Library.  
(e) Sleeping.  Sleeping is prohibited in the Law Library. 
(f) Eating.  Eating is prohibited in the Law Library.  Beverages are permitted 

except in the computer area.  
(g) Children.  Unattended children are not allowed in the Law Library. In the 

event that a child is left unattended for more than 15 minutes, Law Library 
staff shall notify the Travis County Sheriff’s Office.  Any adult who brings a 
child into the Law Library must supervise and monitor the child’s behavior at 
all times.  

(h) Cell phones.  Because ring tones can be loud, patrons’ cell phones should 
must be set to “vibrate” or turned off.  Any cell phone calls should must be 
made outside the Law Library as telephone conversations may disrupt disturb 
the concentration of other patrons. Patrons who receive a cell phone call 
should must step into the halloutside of the Law Library to hold the 
conversation. 

(i) Laptop computers.  Laptops may be plugged in to draw AC power.  The 
volume on all laptops must be set to “mute.”  

(j) Commercial Activities.  The Law Library shall not be used for commercial 
activities, which activities include using the library as a law or business office. 

(kj) Baggage Personal Belongings 
(1) Patrons’ personal belongings should must fit neatly under the table and 

may not take up so much space as to deny other patrons a seating 
opportunity at the same table.  

(2) Walkways and aisles shall be kept clear and unobstructed by personal 
items.  

(3) SuitcasesSleeping bags, bedrolls, and blankets are not permitted in 
the Law Library.  

(4) Bags larger than 18”x18”x10” (eighteen inches x eighteen inches x ten 
inches) are not permitted in the Law Library.Patrons must limit their 
carry-in items to those materials necessary to accomplish their legal 
research. For safety and security, carry-in items larger than 24 inches 
x 16 inches x10 inches or having a combined volume of over 3840 
cubic inches are not permitted in the Law Library.  

(53) Patrons may not leave belongings unattended for more than 30 
minutes or after 5:00 p.m. Law Library staff may remove the 
belongings left unattended more than 30 minutes and place them in 
the custody of County security personnel. Items that are left 
unattended shall be handed over to County security personnel.  The 
County will not be responsible for any belongings that are lost or 
stolen. Arranging for the retrieval of such belongings shall be the sole 
responsibility of the patron.  



Page 5 of 5 

(lk) Hygiene/Offensive Behavior.  Any patron, as well as the personal belongings 
of any patron, emanating an odor (including perfume) constituting a nuisance 
to other patrons and is detectable from more than eight (8) feet away may be 
asked to leave the library until the situation can be corrected. No spitting, 
cursing or other acts or behavior considered offensive in the reasonable 
opinion of Law Library staff will be permitted. 

(l) Smoking.  No smoking or use of tobacco products is permitted in the Law Library at 
any time. 

38.004 Compliance with Laws, Violations 
(a) Patrons shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations 

and ordinances while in the Law Library, including without limitation: 
(1) copyright, trademark and other intellectual property laws governing 

access, use, duplication, manipulation, distribution or other handling of 
materials located in the Law Library or materials accessed through 
Law Library resources;  

(2) privacy and/or confidentiality laws applicable to electronic 
communications, cable and video technology and the internet; and  

(3) laws prohibiting cybersquatting, dilution, deceptive trade practices, 
unfair competition, and unlawful electronic or computer information 
transactions.  

(b) Patrons who violate any such laws shall be asked to leave the Law Library 
and may be restricted from returning. 

38.005 Application and Enforcement of Policy 
A patron who violates the policy will be asked to Any violation of this policy shall result 
in the responsible patron being asked to leave the Law Library until such time as the 
patron, in the reasonable opinion of Law Library staff, is able to demonstrate an ability 
and willingness to comply with this policy.  Law Library staff members maintains an 
“incident log” in which all violations of this policy are recorded. Patrons who repeatedly 
violate this County policy may will be subject to additional Law Library access 
restrictions and/or restrictions on use of Law Library resources. 

Patrons with questions about the amendment, application, or enforcement of the Law 
Library policies are encouraged to contact the director of Records Management and 
Communication Resources.  

38.006 Posting of Law Library Policy 
For patrons’ information and convenience, a copy of this policy shall be posted in the 
Law Library, on the Travis County Law Library webpage, and on the entry screens of all 
Law Library computers. 



 
Order of the Travis County Commissioners Court 

Amending the Travis County Code, Chapter 38 

 

 

Pursuant to Chapter 2 of the Travis County Code, it is ordered that the Travis County 

Code is amended by repealing Chapter 38. Law Library policies and replacing it with the 

attached Chapter 38. Law Library  policies. 

 

The changes ordered shall become effective on April 1, 2014. 

 
ORDERED on: (date) _______________________.  

 
Travis County Commissioners Court 

 
 

  Samuel T. Biscoe 
Travis County Judge 

  

    

Ron Davis 
Commissioner, Precinct 1 

  Bruce Todd 
Commissioner, Precinct 2 

    

Gerald Daugherty 
Commissioner, Precinct 3 

  Margaret Gómez 
Commissioner, Precinct 4 

 



Page 1 of 5 

Chapter 38. Law Library1 

Contents: 
38.001 General Information 1 
38.002 Services 1 
38.003 Environment 3 
38.004 Compliance with Laws, Violations 4 
38.005 Application and Enforcement of Policy 5 
38.006 Posting of Law Library Policy 5 

38.001 General Information 
The Law Library is intended for use by persons engaged in law-related research. The 
purpose of this policy is to ensure that Law Library patrons are provided a pleasant 
atmosphere that facilitates legal research. 

38.002 Services 
(a) Intent to utilize resources.  Patrons shall be engaged in activities associated 

with the use of a public law library while in the Law Library.  Patrons not 
engaged in reading, studying, or using Law Library materials may be required 
to leave the Law Library.  

(b) Library Hours.  The Law Library is open and staffed during County business 
hours of 8 a.m. to 5 p.m., Monday through Friday. Patrons who repeatedly 
delay exiting the Law Library until past 5 p.m. may have their library privileges 
restricted or suspended. 

(c) Computer Use. There are two use categories of computers: General Use and 
Legal Research. 
(1) General Use Computers.  Computers labeled “General Use” may be 

used for non-legal research purposes. No time limit applies to use of 
General Use computers during the County business day with the 
following exceptions: 
(A) If another patron needs to use the computers for legal research 

and no other legal research computer is available; or 
(B) If, due to computer malfunctions or similar issues, two or fewer 

research computers are available for legal research.  
(2) Legal Research Computers 

(A) All computers not labeled General Use are Legal Research 
computers.  

(B) Legal Research computers may be used for up to two (2) hours 
per County business day.   

                                                        

1 Chapter 38 was replaced on 4/7/2009, (Item 11). 



Page 2 of 5 

(C) Patrons who are not attorneys, legal professionals, or law 
students may be required to have a Law Library staff member 
assist them in accessing and using online databases and/or 
conducting legal research. 

(D) Designated Legal Research computers. Computers designated 
for specific databases, sites, and uses must be used solely for 
the purpose of conducting legal research using those 
proprietary tools or for the use specified. Examples of specific 
sites/databases include Westlaw, Lexis, Texas.gov, and 
TexasLawHelp.org. Examples of specific uses include e-Filing 
and completing electronic forms.     

(3) Use of any computer to view pornography or play games will result in 
the patron being asked to leave or being restricted from using the 
computers.  

(4) Patrons who use the Law Library printers/copiers/scanners will be 
charged $ .20 per printed page/image.  If a patron has accumulated 
unpaid printing/scanning charges amounting to $5.00 or more, the 
patron shall be restricted from printing/scanning until such time as the 
overdue sum is paid in full.  

(5) Computer use log.  Law Library staff may maintain an electronic log of 
patron use of computers and internet access when required to 
document infractions of the policy. 

(d) Circulation of Materials 
(1) The Law Library circulates materials to patrons who are current 

members of the State Bar of Texas and who present a valid 
membership card. 

(2) The Law Library shall discontinue circulating materials to patrons who 
fail to return materials.  

(3) Materials may be checked out for three business days. Materials 
marked “Reference” or “Library Use Only” may not be circulated.  

(4) Patrons who remove materials from the library without checking the 
materials out shall be asked to leave and restricted from returning. 

(e) Fax Services.  The Law Library takes reasonable steps to protect the 
confidentially and privacy of faxes sent from the Law Library. However, if it 
comes to the attention of Law Library staff that a patron is sending faxes that, 
in the reasonable opinion of Law Library staff, are threatening in nature, the 
Law Library may discontinue providing the fax service to that patron 
permanently. All patron faxes will contain a cover sheet with this disclaimer: 

 “The information contained on the attached pages, which are being transmitted by a fax 
machine located in a Travis County Law Library, has been prepared, assembled, and 
compiled by a private citizen acting in his/her own capacity, without the control, direction, 
endorsement, sponsorship or control of Travis County. Travis County and the Law Library 
staff make no representation or warranty, express or implied, or assume any legal liability or 
responsibility for the contents of the information contained on these pages, nor for the 



Page 3 of 5 

accuracy, completeness, usefulness, timeliness, or fitness for any particular purpose of any 
such information.  Travis County, and its officials, agents and employees shall not be liable 
for any loss or injury, however arising, resulting in whole or in part from the use of any 
information contained in the information being transmitted or from any reliance placed 
thereon.” 

(f) Equipment.  Patrons shall not attempt to make repairs or alterations to Law 
Library computers, software, or equipment. All software must be loaded by 
staff. 

(g) Telephones. The Law Library provides a public access telephone for use by 
patrons.  Calls shall be limited to a maximum of 5 minutes. 

(h) Restricted Areas.  Only public areas of the Law Library may be accessed by 
patrons. Patrons are restricted from entering: the Book Processing Room, 
Law Librarian offices, the corridor connecting the Law Library to RMCR 
offices, the area behind the Front Desk, and Copy Rooms. 

38.003 Environment 
(a) Disruptive behavior.  Patrons shall respect the rights of other patrons.  

Patrons shall not harass or annoy other patrons, or otherwise behave in a 
manner which may be reasonably expected to disturb others. 

(b) Theft and vandalism.  Patrons shall not write in, damage, remove pages, or 
mark on Law Library books or other Law Library property.  

(c) Noise.  To avoid disturbing other Law Library patrons, patrons shall observe 
silence except when requesting assistance from the reference desk staff.  
Noise and loud or profane language will not be tolerated. Patrons who need 
to converse must do so quietly so as not to disturb others.  

(d) Solicitation.  Selling and solicitation are prohibited in the Law Library.  
(e) Sleeping.  Sleeping is prohibited in the Law Library. 
(f) Eating.  Eating is prohibited in the Law Library.  Beverages are permitted 

except in the computer area.  
(g) Children.  Unattended children are not allowed in the Law Library. In the 

event that a child is left unattended for more than 15 minutes, Law Library 
staff shall notify the Travis County Sheriff’s Office.  Any adult who brings a 
child into the Law Library must supervise and monitor the child’s behavior at 
all times.  

(h) Cell phones.  Because ring tones can be loud, patrons’ cell phones must be 
set to “vibrate” or turned off.  Any cell phone calls must be made outside the 
Law Library as telephone conversations may disturb other patrons. Patrons 
who receive a cell phone call must step outside of the Law Library to hold the 
conversation. 



Page 4 of 5 

(i) Laptop computers.  Laptops may be plugged in to draw AC power.  The 
volume on all laptops must be set to “mute.”  

(j) Commercial Activities.  The Law Library shall not be used for commercial 
activities, which activities include using the library as a law or business office. 

(k)  Personal Belongings 
(1) Patrons’ personal belongings must fit neatly under the table and may 

not take up so much space as to deny other patrons a seating 
opportunity at the same table.  

(2) Walkways and aisles shall be kept clear and unobstructed by personal 
items.  

(3) Sleeping bags, bedrolls, and blankets are not permitted in the Law 
Library.  

(4) Patrons must limit their carry-in items to those materials necessary to 
accomplish their legal research. For safety and security, carry-in items 
larger than 24 inches x 16 inches x10 inches or having a combined 
volume of over 3840 cubic inches are not permitted in the Law Library.  

(5) Patrons may not leave belongings unattended. Items that are left 
unattended shall be handed over to County security personnel.  The 
County will not be responsible for any belongings that are lost or 
stolen. Arranging for the retrieval of such belongings shall be the sole 
responsibility of the patron.  

(l) Hygiene/Offensive Behavior.  Any patron, as well as the personal belongings 
of any patron, emanating an odor (including perfume) constituting a nuisance 
to other patrons and is detectable from more than eight (8) feet away may be 
asked to leave the library until the situation can be corrected. No spitting, 
cursing or other acts or behavior considered offensive in the reasonable 
opinion of Law Library staff will be permitted. 

38.004 Compliance with Laws, Violations 
(a) Patrons shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations 

and ordinances while in the Law Library, including without limitation: 
(1) copyright, trademark and other intellectual property laws governing 

access, use, duplication, manipulation, distribution or other handling of 
materials located in the Law Library or materials accessed through 
Law Library resources;  

(2) privacy and/or confidentiality laws applicable to electronic 
communications, cable and video technology and the internet; and  

(3) laws prohibiting cybersquatting, dilution, deceptive trade practices, 
unfair competition, and unlawful electronic or computer information 
transactions.  

(b) Patrons who violate any such laws shall be asked to leave the Law Library 
and may be restricted from returning. 



Page 5 of 5 

38.005 Application and Enforcement of Policy 
A patron who violates the policy will be asked to leave the Law Library until such time as 
the patron, in the reasonable opinion of Law Library staff, is able to demonstrate an 
ability and willingness to comply with this policy.  Law Library staff members maintain an 
“incident log” in which all violations of policy are recorded. Patrons who repeatedly 
violate County policy will be subject to additional Law Library access restrictions and/or 
restrictions on use of Law Library resources. 

Patrons with questions about the amendment, application, or enforcement of the Law 
Library policies are encouraged to contact the director of Records Management and 
Communication Resources.  

38.006 Posting of Law Library Policy 
For patrons’ information and convenience, a copy of this policy shall be posted in the 
Law Library, on the Travis County Law Library webpage, and on the entry screens of all 
Law Library computers. 



Item 27











 
 
Meeting Date: April 1, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Sara Krause/512-854-9230 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Commissioner Bruce Todd  
Commissioners Court Sponsor:  Commissioner Bruce Todd  
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
Consider and take appropriate action on the appointment of Lessie Fitzpatrick  to the 
Child Protective Services Board beginning immediately through the term expiration July 
31, 2016.  
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: Ms. 
Fitzpatrick is an attorney, and has been practicing law as a litigator since 1999. She has 
served as the co-general counsel for the Arlington Independent School District in 
Tarrant county where she became familiar with some of the educational, health, and 
family issues that faced its economically disadvantaged students and how the district 
attempted to address those issues.  
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: N/A 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: N/A 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: N/A 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: N/A 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 28

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


Item 29













 
 
 
Meeting Date:  April 1, 2014 
 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Tim Labadie 854.5864 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: David Escamilla, County Attorney 
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Sam Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
Receive briefing from County Attorney and give direction whether to intervene in cause 
number 2012V-091; Jose Hernandez, individually and next friend of Aldo Xavier Cruz 
v. Alan Jameson Cooper pending in Fayette County in order to obtain payment for 
STAR Flight services provided to Aldo Xavier Cruz.  Executive Session also pursuant to 
Tex. Gov’t Code § 551.071(1)(A). 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS:  
N/A 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: N/A 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:  N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: N/A 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 
Danny Hobby 854.9367 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 30



 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials should be submitted as 
a pdf to the County Judge's office, agenda@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next 
week's meeting. 

 

 
 
Meeting Date: April 1, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Robert Resnick, Commissioners Court 
Specialist, 512-854-4722 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Dana DeBeauvoir, Travis County 
Clerk 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: Approve the Corrected Commissioners Court 
Minutes for the Voting Session of October  29, 2013, Item 3.c. 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 
 
 
 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item C3



Corrected Minutes for the  
 Travis County Commissioners Court 
 Tuesday, October 29, 2013  

 Voting Session 

Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

October 29, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 1 

Call to Order 

Meeting called to order on October 29, 2013, in the Travis County Administration Building, 
Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX. Dana DeBeauvoir, County 
Clerk, was represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present 
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Present 
Bruce Todd Precinct 2, Commissioner Present  
Gerald Daugherty Precinct 3, Commissioner Present 
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 

 

Citizens Communication 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Morris Priest, Travis County resident 
Gus Peña, Travis County resident 
Carlos León, Travis County resident 
Melissa Velasquez, Executive Assistant, County Judge's Office 
Dr. John Kim, Travis County resident 

Special Items 

 
1. Consider and take appropriate action on an order concerning outdoor burning in the 

unincorporated areas of Travis County. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Hershel Lee, Travis County Fire Marshal 

Clerk's Note: The County Judge announced that by taking no action, the prohibition against 
outdoor burning remains lifted. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Transportation and Natural Resources Dept. Items 

 
2. Consider and take appropriate action regarding a proposed disposition of unused and excess 

right-of-way comprised of a 0.135 acre (5,883 sq. ft.) parcel of land previously intended for 
Meister Lane near its intersection with Heatherwilde Blvd – requested by the City of Pflugerville 
for development of a roadway infrastructure improvement project in Precinct One. 
(Commissioner Davis) 



October 29, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 2 
 

Clerk's Note: Judge Biscoe noted that by approving this Item, the Commissioners Court 
authorizes him to sign on behalf of the Court. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
3. Revised language: Consider and take appropriate action regarding capital improvements 

program projects:   
 

a. Funding for and direction to staff to complete negotiations for the second amendment to the 
Braker Lane II Participation Agreement in Precinct One (Commissioner Davis);   

Members of the Court heard from: 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, Transportation and Natural Resources (TNR) 
Travis Gatlin, Assistant Budget Director, Planning and Budget Office (PBO) 

 
MOTION: Approve staff's recommendation regarding Item 3.a, which is contained 

on page 3 of the backup memo; to negotiate an agreement which is 
consistent with the backup. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Clerk's Note: The Court noted a funding shortfall of $3,559,709.  TNR has proposed that the 
source of funding would be surplus Precinct One bonds. 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 3.a would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

Clerk's Note: Upon returning from Executive Session, no further action was taken on Item 3.a. 
 
b. Funding for and direction to staff to complete negotiations for the first amendments to the 

Parmer Lane Participation Agreement and City of Austin Interlocal Agreement in Precinct 
One (Commissioner Davis); and   

Members of the Court heard from: 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, TNR 
Travis Gatlin, Assistant Budget Director, PBO 
Pete Dwyer, President, Dwyer Realty Companies 
Steve Sun, Assistant Public Works Director, TNR 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 3.b and direct staff to negotiate with the City of Austin 

regarding their cost share amount. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 3.a would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

Clerk's Note: Upon returning from Executive Session, no further action was taken on Item 3.b. 
 
c. Source of funding for The Wells Branch Parkway Project in Precinct Two. (Commissioner 

Todd) 

Members of the Court heard from: 



October 29, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 3 
 

Steve Manilla, County Executive, TNR 
Travis Gatlin, Assistant Budget Director, PBO 
Tom Nuckols, Assistant County Attorney 

 
MOTION: Approve staff’s recommendation regarding Item 3.c. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

 
4. Consider and take appropriate action on the following request:   
 

a. A plat for recording: Sweetwater Ranch Section Two Village F2 final plat (long form final 
plat – 25 total lots – Pedernales Summit Parkway – no ETJ); and   

 
b. A Travis County subdivision construction agreement between Travis County and WS-COS 

Development, LLC in Precinct Three. (Commissioner Daugherty) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
5. Consider and take appropriate action on a request to transplant a 30-inch diameter oak tree or 

replace it with an equivalent diameter of oaks to facilitate the completion of improvements to 
Frate Barker road in Precincts Three and Four. (Commissioners Daugherty and Gómez) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, TNR 
Marvin Brice, Assistant Purchasing Agent 
Chiddi N’Jie, Senior Engineer, TNR 
Michael Fossum, Executive Director, Austin Heritage Tree Foundation 
Zoila Vega-Marchera, Austin Heritage Tree Foundation 
Brooke Huguley, Travis County resident 
Cathy (last name unintelligible), Travis County resident 
Jessie Rainwater, Travis County resident 
Brittany Huguley, Travis County resident 
Tracy Huguley, Travis County resident 
Vikki Goodwin, Travis County resident 
Pam Baggett, Travis County resident 
Cynthia Wilcox, Travis County resident 
Peggy Maceo, Travis County resident 

Clerk's Note: The Court directed Staff to look at the two estimates for the tree removal and try to 
figure out a way to legally come in at the lower estimate. The Court also requested a breakdown 
of what is contained in the two estimates and communicate with the low-bid contractors about 
pulling the tree planting cost from the bid, communicate with TxDOT, and be prepared to update 
the Court on Tuesday, November 5, 2013. Further, the Purchasing Department is directed to 
meet with the County Attorney's Office and the Transportation and Natural Resources 
Department regarding this issue. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED Reset for: 11/5/2013 

 
6. Consider and take appropriate action regarding a license agreement with the Circuit of the 

Americas for the use of Richard Moya Park as a bicycle staging area for cyclists who will ride 
shuttle buses to the F1 races on November 15 through 17, 2013 in Precinct Four. 
(Commissioner Gómez) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 



October 29, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 4 
 

7. Consider and take appropriate action on a request for variance to County on-site sewage facility 
regulations to allow a second single family residence to be placed on less than two acres at 
16409 Jacobson Road in Precinct Four. (Commissioner Gómez) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Justice and Public Safety Items 

 
8. Consider and take appropriate action regarding the following fire record management project 

interlocal agreements between Travis County and emergency services districts and mutual 
business associate agreements between Travis County and emergency services districts:   

 
a. Emergency Services District Number 1;   
 
b. Emergency Services District Number 3;   
 
c. Emergency Services District Number 4;   
 
d. Emergency Services District Number 5;   
 
e. Emergency Services District Number 10;   
 
f. Emergency Services District Number 12; and   
 
g. Emergency Services District Number 14. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Health and Human Services Dept. Items 

 
9. Consider and take appropriate action on a request to continue the administration and planning 

project, social work project and fair housing project of the Community Development Block Grant 
for the 2013 Program Year with internal Health and Human Services and Veterans Service 
Department resources until a decision regarding the Program Year 2013 CDBG grant is 
received and a fully executed contract is obtained from HUD. 

MOTION: Approve Item 9. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

 
10. Consider and take appropriate action on items related to the Program Year 2012 Consolidated 

Annual Performance Evaluation Report for the Community Development Block Grant provided 
by HUD:     

 
a. Request to approve November 25 through December 9, 2013 as the 15-day public 

comment period for the public to review and comment on the draft;     
 
b. Request to approve a public hearing date on December 3, 2013, at 9:00 a.m. in the Travis 

County Commissioners Courtroom to receive public comment; and     
 

RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 
 



October 29, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 5 
 

c. Request to approve the advertisement announcing the public hearing date and 15 day 
public comment period in newspapers of general circulation: Austin Chronicle, Pflugerville 
Pflag, Hill Country News, Lake Travis View, Oak Hill Gazette, Westlake Picayune, The 
Villager, Ahora Si, and El Mundo. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Gus Peña, Travis County resident 
Sherri Fleming, County Executive, Travis County Health and Human Services & 

Veterans Service (TCHHS&VS) 
Christy Moffett, Planning Project Manager, TCHHS&VS 

MOTION: Approve Item 10.c 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Planning and Budget Dept. Items 

 
11. Consider and take appropriate action on budget amendments, transfers and discussion items. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
12. Approve requests regarding grant programs, applications, contracts and related special 

budgets, and permissions to continue:   
 

a. Annual contract with the Office of the Governor, Criminal Justice Division, to continue the 
Trauma Informed Assessment and Response Program in Juvenile Probation Department;   

 
b. New contract with the Office of the Governor, Criminal Justice Division, to continue the 

Eagle Soars program in Juvenile Probation Department; and   
 
c. New contract with the Office of the Governor, Criminal Justice Division, to continue the 

Enhancing Services for Victims of Crime In Juvenile Probation Department. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
13. Consider and take appropriate action on the following for the Human Resources Management 

Department:   
 

a. Proposed routine personnel amendments; and   
 
b. Non-routine salary adjustment from Constable Precinct Two office for a variance to Travis 

County Code Section 10.03002, Salary Adjustment Greater than 10% Above Midpoint. 

Clerk's Note: Judge Biscoe noted that in Item 13.a, the Human Resources Department (HRMD) 
requested that Position 30003127 be pulled from consideration. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
14. Review and approve the immediate release of reimbursement payment to United Health Care 

for claims paid for participants in the Travis County Employee Health Care Fund for payment of 
$701,263.92 for the period of October 11 to October 17, 2013. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 



October 29, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 6 
 

15. Consider and take appropriate action on the following:    
 

a. Tuition reimbursements for employees who have completed classes in accordance with the 
Tuition Refund Program, Sections 10.020 through 10.022; and   

 
b. Authorization for County Auditor and Treasurer to reimburse employees as listed. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
16. Consider and take appropriate action regarding a license agreement with the Republic of Texas 

Biker Rally, Inc., for an event at the Travis County Exposition Center. (This item may be taken 
into Executive Session under the Consultation with Attorney exception) 
 
RESULT: POSTPONED   

 
17. Consider take appropriate action on a request from Ending Community Homelessness 

Coalition, Inc. to use Travis County meeting space for its annual board meeting on Monday, 
November 18, 2013. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
18. Receive presentation regarding the LEED Gold Certification awarded by the United States 

Green Building Council for the SMART Facility in Precinct Four. (Commissioner Gómez) 
 
RESULT: POSTPONED  Reset for: 11/5/2013 

Purchasing Office Items 

 
19. Consider and take appropriate action on contract award to URS Corporation for program 

management services for development of the new civil and family courthouse. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Cyd Grimes, Travis County Purchasing Agent 
John Hille, Assistant County Attorney 
Belinda Powell, Capital Planning Coordinator, PBO 

MOTION: That Commissioner Gómez share the recommended changes with staff; that 
staff provide a response, as well as that list of changes, to the Court; that 
staff be available to meet with Court members this week; and that, based on 
input from Court members, staff will decide whether or not to contact the 
contractor, which will depend on the nature of the proposed changes and 
what impact they will have on the contract. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

 
20. Approve contract award for water treatment systems, IFB No. 1307-010-RF, to the low bidder, 

Garratt Callahan Company. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 



October 29, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 7 
 

21. Approve contract award for engineering design services for the Bee Creek Road at Bee Creek 
Bridge project, RFQ No. Q110243-LP, to the highest qualified firm, Klotz Associates, Inc. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
22. Approve Modification No. 2, an assignment of Contract No. 4400000545 (H.T.E. Contract No. 

MA120135SW) from 8x8, Inc. to the IRC Company, Inc. (dba Black Lotus Communications, 
Inc.). 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
23. Authorize Purchasing Agent to commence negotiations with the most highly qualified firm, 

Binkley-Barfield Inc., for engineering services in response to RFQ No. Q1306-018-LP, Hamilton 
Pool Road safety improvements. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, TNR 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED Reset for: 11/5/2013 

 
24. Approve modification No. 14 to Contract No. 4400000074 (H.T.E. Contract No. 10K00250LP), 

STR Constructors, for Milton Reimers Ranch Park. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
25. Approve contract award for mechanical, electrical, plumbing engineering services for domestic 

water boiler replacement at Travis County Correctional Complex Building 400 (12) to Encotech 
Engineering Consultants, Inc. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
26. Approve Modification No.10 to Interlocal Agreement No. 4400000354, Austin Independent 

School District, for afterschool care. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Other Items 

 
27. Consider and take appropriate action on reappointment Ofelia Elizondo to Place Three on the 

Strategic Housing Finance Corporation Board of Directors for a term to run from January 1, 
2014 to December 31, 2019. (Commissioner Daugherty) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
28. Consider and take appropriate action regarding a joint election agreement for the November 5, 

2013 Joint General and Special Elections with Travis County and 13 participating entities:   
 

a. City of Austin;   
 
b. City of Bee Cave;   
 
c. City of Jonestown   
 
d. City of Leander;   
 
e. City of Rollingwood;   



October 29, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 8 
 

 
f. City of Round Rock;   
 
g. City of Sunset Valley;   
 
h. Village of Point Venture;   
 
i. Village of the Hills;   
 
j. Village of Volente;   
 
k. Marble Falls Independent School District;   
 
l. Pilot Knob Municipal Utility District #4 (establishing election); and  
 
m. Travis County Emergency Services District #4. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
29. Consider and take appropriate action regarding the appointment of presiding judge, alternate 

presiding judge, manager, assistant manager and tabulation supervisor of the Central Counting 
Station and presiding judge and alternate presiding judge, and members of the Early Voting 
Ballot Board for the November 5, 2013 General and Special Elections. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
30. Consider and take appropriate action regarding the appointment of presiding judge, alternate 

presiding judges to fill vacancies for the November 5, 2013 Joint General and Special Elections. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
31. Receive Fiscal Year 2014 State Forfeited Property Account budget from the Travis County 

Sheriff’s Office in accordance with the provisions of Article 59.06(D) of the Texas Code of 
Criminal Procedure. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Executive Session Items 

The Commissioners Court will consider the following items in Executive Session. The 
Commissioners Court may also consider any other matter posted on the agenda if there are issues 
that require consideration in Executive Session and the Commissioners Court announces that the 
item will be considered during Executive Session. 
 
Note 1: Gov’t Code Ann 551.071, Consultation with Attorney 
Note 2: Gov’t Code Ann 551.072, Real Property 
Note 3: Gov’t Code Ann 551.074, Personnel Matters 
Note 4: Gov’t Code Ann 551.076, Security 
Note 5: Gov’t Code Ann 551.087, Economic Development Negotiations 
 
32. Consultation with County Attorney and take appropriate action concerning the extension of 

administrative leave with pay for Health and Human Services employee, Slot 30005370. 
1 and 3 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 32 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney and Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.074, Personnel 
Matters. 



October 29, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 9 
 

 
MOTION: Approve the request for 38 days of leave with pay, 28 of which have already 

occurred. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

 
33. Consider and take appropriate action concerning the settlement offer regarding payment for 

Star Flight services rendered to Robin Arnott. 
1
 

 
RESULT: POSTPONED  Reset for: 11/5/2013 

 
34. Consider and take appropriate action concerning the settlement offer regarding payment for 

Star Flight services rendered to Elizabeth Gray. 
1
 

 
RESULT: POSTPONED  Reset for: 11/5/2013 

 
35. Consider and take appropriate action concerning the settlement offer regarding payment for 

Star Flight services rendered to Julia Guardione. 
1
 

 
RESULT: POSTPONED  Reset for: 11/5/2013 

 
36. Consider and take appropriate action concerning the settlement offer regarding payment for 

Star Flight services rendered to Julia Courtney. 
1
 

 
RESULT: POSTPONED  Reset for: 11/5/2013 

 
37. Consider and take appropriate action regarding the use of the Exposition Center as remote 

parking lots for the Circuit of the Americas for the November 14, 15 and 16, 2013 Formula One 
events. 

2
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 37 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney and Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.072, Real 
Property. 

 
MOTION: Approve the proposed contract. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Consent Items 
 

MOTION: Approve the following Consent Items: C1–C4 and Agenda Items 2, 4.a–b, 6, 
7, 8.a–g, 10.a–b, 11, 12.a–c, 13.a–b, 14, 15.a–b, 17, 20, 21, 22, 24, 25, 26, 
27, 28.a–m, 29, 30, 31, and A1. 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

 
C1. Receive bids from County Purchasing Agent. 
 
C2. Approve payment of claims and authorize County Treasurer to invest County funds. 



October 29, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 10 
 

 
C3. Approve the Commissioners Court Minutes for the Voting Session of October 15, 2013. 
 
C4. Approve setting a public hearing on Tuesday, November 19, 2013 to receive comments 

regarding a request to authorize the filing of an instrument to vacate the five-foot wide public 
utility easements located along the rear lot lines of lots 3 through 8, block D of the re-subdivision 
of Bauldwin’s Point in Precinct Two. (Commissioner Todd) 

Added Items 

 
A1. Consider and take appropriate action on memorandum of understanding with St. Edwards 

University for the placement of social work interns in the Travis County Health and Human 
Services and Veterans Service Department. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 

Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

 



Item C4





























AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to the County Judge's office, agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's 
meeting. 
 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: March 25, 2014 
 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Andrea Shields, Manager/854-9116 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Leslie Browder, County 
Executive, Planning and Budget/854-9106 
  
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Samuel T. Biscoe, President 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE:  
 
Discuss North Campus development opportunities using the Travis County 
Development Authority, with support from staff in the Facilities 
Management and Planning and Budget departments. 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS:  (see 
attached).   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: Staff recommends approval. 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:  None. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: None. 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: Andrea Shields, Manager/854-9116; 
Leslie Browder, County Executive, Planning and Budget/854-9106 
 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 
TRAVIS COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

 

TCDA Item 1



TRAVIS COUNTY  
NORTH CAMPUS 
Proposed Development Options 





North Campus Growth 
 

• Travis County departments have been growing and some 
units are reaching capacity for staff and support space.  
 

• New construction will be required to meet future space 
needs 
 

• Space for expansion is currently available on county land 
adjacent to existing building 



 
 
Should other departments move to North 
Campus? 
 
 

 
• One prime potential tenant is the Health and Human 

Services and Veterans Services (HHSVS) currently at 
Palm Square 
 

• North Campus and Highland Mall Boulevard sites are well 
situated to serve HHSVS clients currently served at Palm 
Square 



New Building Development: 
Potential Tenant Space Needs 
Department 2014 2015 2025 

Tax Office 31,575 31,860 37,613 

HHSVS* 17,160 17,310 20,450 

Total 48,735 49,170 58,063 

 
• To meet 2025 projections, a new building would 

need 80,000 gross square feet if accommodating 
both tenants 
 
 



Airport Boulevard Vision and Plan 
• The City of Austin has been working in the corridor to 

develop a new land development code to transform the 
corridor to meet community’s vision 
 

• New code will promote pedestrian-friendly, mixed-use 
development and will implement the Vision 

 

• Optimal opportunity for Travis County to develop 
something catalytic that will serve both County and 
neighborhood interests 



Airport Boulevard Plan 

N 



Considering Mixed-Use Opportunities 
• Though we would require no more than 80,000 square 

feet, the vacant site can accommodate over 500,000 
square feet  
 

• The site provides a unique opportunity to explore mixed-
use development options 



New Offices and  
Mixed income 
housing above 

Parking: 
structured 
on site 

Possible row homes 
in back 

Community 
Space for 
Neighborhood 
on campus 



Project financing 
• The Travis County Development Authority can issue 

private activity bonds for financing projects that promote 
the common good and general welfare, including 
commerce and economic development 
 

• The mission of the Development Authority, as defined by 
the state, is aligned with the goal of revitalizing the Airport 
Boulevard Corridor 
 

• The Development Authority can be a source of alternative 
financing for the re-development  of the North Campus 
site 



How would it work? 
• The Board of Directors (Commissioners Court) would 

control the structure of the deal, including the affordability 
levels of the housing and in effect overall cash flow to the 
project 
 

• The Development Authority would issue bonds for a 
developer, selected by competitive process  

  



How would it work? 
• The County would allow the developer to lease the land 

but own the improvements for term of bonds 
 

• The County would require terms that accommodate the 
office space needed through 2025 at a reduced cost. 
 

• The current property tax exemption on the land would be 
attractive to developers and a key component in the 
financing 
 



How would it work? 
• By crafting the development RFP to allow the developer to 

propose the layering of the finances (including bonds from 
the Development Authority), the developer will have the 
broadest leeway to structure the financing in the most 
economical manner 
 

• The overall financial structure would be vetted by staff, 
consultants, and the Board of Directors (Commissioners 
Court) for approval 
 



Neighborhood Support for Proposal 
• In December 2012, Travis County Staff attended monthly 

neighborhood association meetings in Ridgetop and 
Northridge, the two associations around the site 
 

• Citizens indicated support for mixed-use development 
with an affordable housing component 
 

• Neighborhood would like to continue to participate in the 
shaping of this project, in according with our resolution for 
civic community collaboration 



Project management 

Development Authority: 
 

• RFP development and selection 
• Makes offering and issues bonds 
• Monitors compliance with housing 

component 

Planning & Budget 
(Strategic Planning): 

 
• RFP development and 

selection 

Facilities Management: 
 

• RFP development and selection 
• Project Manager 



Next Steps 



Comparable Projects List

Multnomah County, Oregon
  

Multnomah County constructed the 
Hollywood Library and Bookmark 
Apartments in 2002. This 13,000 square 
foot library included a coffee shop and 
47 market rate and affordable apartments 
in a mixed-use structure. This was the 
first example of a mixed-use project with 
private and public primary tenants and 
has become a model for joint venture 
housing and public use buildings. Since 
completion, Multnomah County has 
developed additional library branches 
with housing components, including the 

Sellwood-Moreland Library with 16 units and commercial space, that same year.

Tucson, Arizona

In December 2013, One East Broadway 
was completed, a seven-story mixed-
use project with housing, retail, and 
approximately 20,000 square feet 
of public offices leased to the Pima 
Association for Governments and the 
Regional Transportation Authority. The 
building was constructed by a private 
developer and ownership of the building 
transferred to the City of Tucson at 
completion with leases created to 
preserve tax-exempt status for an 8 year 
period.



Madison, Wisconsin

Set for groundbreaking this year, 
the West Johnson Street Complex 
in Madison will be a new 14-story 
structure with 255 apartments and 
30,000 square feet of offices for the City 
of Madison Fire Department, as well as 
first floor retail. 

Chicago, Illinois

The Harper Court Project in Chicago 
was developed in partnership with the 
City of Chicago and the University of 
Chicago. The project features 150,000 
square feet of university office space, 
425 residential units, and ground floor 
retail as well as structured parking. 
The project was completed last year.

Comparable Projects List



Dallas, Texas

The City of Dallas Office of Economic 
Development and Dallas Public Library 
issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) 
to develop a mixed-use project at 
Vickery Meadow, a redevelopment 
district, with private partners. The City 
recently selected a developer to design 
a ground-floor library, retail, housing 
units, and associated amenities. 
Situated on 4 acres, the team envisions 
a 5-story structure featuring 18,000 
square feet of library space, 15,000 
square feet retail, and 250 housing units 
plus parking. 

El Paso, Texas
   The City of El Paso issued a Request 

for Qualifications (RFQ) and 
Request for Proposals (RFP) to 
develop 31-acres in northeastern El 
Paso, the site of a former mall, into 
a mixed-use community. Three 
developers submitted proposals for 
the 30-acre site, 23 acres of which 
will be a joint venture project. The 
proposed buildout as of March 2014 
would consist of 13,000 square feet 
retail, 500 to 800 housing units, 480 

parking spaces, and a new street grid.

Comparable Projects List



San Antonio, Texas
  

Alamo Colleges in San Antonio is 
currently soliciting proposals for private 
partners to build an administrative 
complex on land they own. The objective 
is to get administrative office space at low 
or reduced cost by allowing residential, 
commercial, or retail uses on the site as 
well. Their Request for Proposals (RFP) is 
currently open. Adminstration at Alamo 
Colleges anticipate significant interest 
given the flexibility proposed. 

Comparable Projects List


	Item 02
	Crime Victims Awareness Week Agenda Request 040114
	Crime Victims' Week Res

	Item 03
	Light of Hope Agenda Request 040114
	Light of Hope 2014
	“LIGHT OF HOPE  - NATIONAL CHILD ABUSE AWARENESS MONTH”
	COUNTY JUDGE
	RON DAVIS                       BRUCE TODD
	COMMISSIONER, Pct. 1                     COMMISSIONER, Pct. 2

	LOH 2014 flyer

	Item 04
	Item 05
	Item 06
	Item 07
	Item 08
	Item 09
	Item 10
	Item 11
	Item 12
	Item 13
	Item 14
	Item 15
	Item 16
	Item 17
	Item 18
	Item 18 A
	Item 18 B

	Item 19
	Item 20
	10391 : Approve Mod 2 to Ct. 44--0434 Whittington/Travis Properties
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	New Vendor E-Mail from Auditor
	WhittingtonW9 2014
	44-0434 mod 2 vendor signed 2


	Item 21
	10513 : Approve Ct 44--1580 Maximus; Indirect Cost Allocation Plan
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	Memo to Purchasing
	Maximus ct vendor signed 2

	Travis County Contract FY 13_2YR_11122013.pdf
	AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE
	PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES
	By:
	Name:
	Title:
	MAXIMUS Consulting Services, Inc.
	By:
	Name:
	Title:
	Date:
	EXHIBIT A
	Scope of Services
	EXHIBIT B
	Compensation

	WBS - Travis Cnty-mar-2 yr revised_11122013.pdf
	Sheet1

	Untitled
	Untitled

	Item 22
	10545 : Medical and Surgical Supplies, CTMES & Henry Schein, 1311-005-SC
	Executive Summary Medical & Surgical Supplies
	award letter   medical surgical supplies 2014
	Bid_1311-005-SC_-_MEDICAL_AND_SURGICAL_SUPPLIES_Line_Item_Tab_Report


	Item 23
	10588 : Mod 12, Cont 4500000031, Securus Tech, inmate pay phone
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	Departmental Memo Securus promotion
	Securus Inmate Phone System (Mod 12) video visitaiton promotion


	Item 24
	Agenda Request Family System of Care
	Attachement A divider
	A1. FY14-15 New Investment _Provider, Partner Input Summary_Table
	A2. FY14-15 New Investment _Summary of CDBG Public Engagement
	Attachement B divider
	B1.Summary of needs and trends in outlying areas
	B2.Low Opportunity Area Maps
	Pages from Maps
	Pages from Maps-2

	Attachement C divider
	C1.Family S-O-C Proposal Summary
	C2.Rationale for System of Care and Wraparound
	Attachement D divider
	D1.Investment Options for Expansion_Table

	Item 25
	Item 26
	4-1-2014 Chapter 38 - Law Library -redline.pdf
	Chapter 38. Law Library0F
	38.001 General Information
	38.002 Services
	38.003 Environment
	38.004 Compliance with Laws, Violations
	38.005 Application and Enforcement of Policy
	38.006 Posting of Law Library Policy


	4-1-2014 Chapter 38 - Law Library - final.pdf
	Chapter 38. Law Library0F
	38.001 General Information
	38.002 Services
	38.003 Environment
	38.004 Compliance with Laws, Violations
	38.005 Application and Enforcement of Policy
	38.006 Posting of Law Library Policy



	Item 27
	Item 28
	Item 29
	Item 30
	Item C3
	CC 1029 Corrected AgRq
	CC 1029 Corrected Min

	Item C4
	TCDA Item 01
	3-25-14 North Campus Presentation Final.pdf
	Travis County �North Campus
	Slide Number 2
	North Campus Growth
	��Should other departments move to North Campus?��
	New Building Development:�Potential Tenant Space Needs
	Airport Boulevard Vision and Plan
	Slide Number 7
	Considering Mixed-Use Opportunities
	Slide Number 9
	Project financing
	How would it work?
	How would it work?
	How would it work?
	Neighborhood Support for Proposal
	Project management
	Next Steps





